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06th September,2023 

 To, 

BSE Limited 

Wholesale Debt Market Segment 

Phiroze Jeejebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001 

Scrip Code(s): 973425, 973426, 973427, 973428 

Dear Sir, 

Sub: Notice of 15th Annual General Meeting and Annual report for the financial year 2022-2023 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Pursuant to Regulations 53(2) & 50(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed herewith the Notice convening the 15th 

Annual General Meeting ("AGM") and Annual Report of Netscribes Data and Insights Private Limited 

(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) ("the Company") for the financial year 2022-23. 

The 15th AGM of the Company will be held on Saturday 30th September, 2023 at 04.00 PM at the 
registered office of the company at OFFICE NO. 504, 5TH FLOOR, LODHA SUPREMUS, LOWER 

PAREL, MUMBAI - 400 013 to transact the following business: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix remuneration, and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 

The Annual Report containing the AGM Notice is also being placed on the Company's website at 

https://www.netscribes.com/ 

We request you to take the above information on record and disseminate the same on your website. 

Thanking you,  

Yours faithfully,  

For of Netscribes Data and Insights Private Limited  

(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

 Madhuri Jhurani 

 Compliance Officer 

 Encl:a/a 
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NOTICE OF 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”) OF 

THE MEMBERS OF NETSCRIBES DATA AND INSIGHTS PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY 

KNOWN AS NS OXYMORON ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED) (“COMPANY”) WILL BE HELD 

ON SATURDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER 2023 A.T 4:00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF

THE COMPANY SITUATED AT OFFICE NO. 504, 5TH FLOOR, LODHA SUPREMUS, LOWER 

PAREL, MUMBAI - 400 013 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon.

2. To re-appoint M/s. Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, LLP. ,(Firm Registration 

Number 012754N/N500016 ) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 

5 (Five) consecutive financial years, from the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company until the conclusion of the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company and to authorize 

the Board of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, [including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force , Price Waterhouse, 

Chartered Accountants, LLP, having Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016 be and are hereby 

re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the consecutive term of five years, from 

the conclusion of this 15th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 20th Annual General 

Meeting to be held in the year 2028, to examine and audit the accounts of the Company at such 

remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory Auditors 

of the Company.” 

By Order of the Board of Directors  

For Netscribes Data and Insights Private Limited 

(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Sourav Mukherjee      Yuvraj Gharat 

Director     Director 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 06th September, 2023 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited, 
Office No. 504, 5th Floor, Lodha Supremus, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India. 

Board: +91 22 4098 7600 Fax: +91 22 4098 7500 Web: www.netscribes.com 
CIN: U74110MH2008PTC182827 

NOTES: 

1. A member who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend the

Meeting and on a poll, to vote thereat instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member

of the company.

2. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the Registered Office

of the company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not

more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A Member

holding more than ten percent of total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint

a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorized representative to attend the Meeting in terms of

Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the company a certified copy of the

Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

5. Members/Proxies/Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slips duly filled in

for attending the Meeting. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their

client ID and DP ID numbers and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their

Folio Number in the attendance slip or attending the Meeting.

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of Meeting and

ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged

at any time during the business hours of the company. All documents referred to in the Notice and

accompanying explanatory statement are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the company

on all working days of the company between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. upto the date of the Annual

General Meeting and at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

7. Route Map for the location of the aforesaid meeting is enclosed.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Item No. 2 

M/s. L.N.Kalani and Co Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, had tendered their resignation from the office of 

Statutory Auditors of the Company due to their pre-occupation with other professional commitments, effective 

from 06th February, 2023, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company.  

As per section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 any casual vacancy caused by resignation in the office of the 

Statutory Auditors could be filled up by the Company in General Meeting as per recommendations made by the 

Board of Directors in this regard.  

The Board of Directors in their respective meeting have recommended appointment of M/s. Price 
Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, LLP Mumbai (Firm Registration No 012754N/N500016), as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company and the Members of the Company at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 

(EGM) held on 7th February,2023 had approved the appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to hold the office with effect from the date of passing of the resolution until the ensuing 15th Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held in the year 2023. 

After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit team, 

efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) has  

proposed the re-appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, LLP , as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, from the conclusion of this 15th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 

20th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2028, to examine and audit the accounts of the 

Company at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company.” 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution at Item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice. 

The Board of Directors accordingly, recommends the re-appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse, 
Chartered Accountants, LLP as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the remuneration as may be 

decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the 

financial year 2023-24 to 2027-2028.  

Sourav Mukherjee Yuvraj Gharat
Director Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th September, 2023

By Order of the Board of Directors  
For Netscribes Data and Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited)
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NETSCRIBES DATA & INSIGHTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U74110MH2008PTC182827 

Regd. Office: Office No. 504, 5th Floor, Lodha Supremus, Lower Parel Delisle Road Mumbai Mumbai 

MH 400013 IN 

Email: legal@netscribes.com.  

Website: www.netscribes.com Board: +91 22 4098 7600 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s): 

E-mail Id:

Registered address:

Folio No./ Client ID:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of Equity Shares of Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited, hereby appoint 

Name: 

E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature: _____________________

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING of the Company, to be held on 30TH September, 2023 at 4:00 P.M. at the Registered office of the 

Company, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as indicated below: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated Financial Statements of the 
company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix remuneration, and if thought fit, to pass, with 

or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 

Signed this ______ day of _______ 2023 

______________________________ _____________________________ 

Signature of Shareholder  Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Note: This Proxy form must be duly completed and deposited with the Company at its Registered Office at least 

48 HOURS before the Meeting. 

(TEAR HERE) 

Affix a 

1 Rupee 

Revenue 

Stamp

here

http://www.netscribes.com/
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NETSCRIBES DATA & INSIGHTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U74110MH2008PTC182827 

Regd. Office: Office No. 504, 5th Floor, Lodha Supremus, Lower Parel Delisle Road Mumbai Mumbai 

MH 400013 IN 

Email: legal@netscribes.com.  

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be signed and handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall) 

 15 TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2023 AT 4:00 P.M. 

AT Office No. 504, 5th Floor, Lodha Supremus, Lower Parel Delisle Road Mumbai Mumbai MH 

400013 IN 

Name of the Member 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of the Joint holder 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(To be filled in if first named joint holder does not attend the meeting) 

Name of the Proxy holder 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(To be filled in if proxy form has been duly deposited with the Company) 

Folio No. ___________________________________ 

CLIENT ID/ DP ID___________________________ 

No. of Shares held____________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

Member’s / Proxy’s Signature 

(To be signed at the time of   handling over this slip) 

Note(s): 1. Please sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the  

Meeting Venue. 

2. Only shareholders of the company and/or their Proxy will be allowed to attend the Meeting
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited (formerly known as 
NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Netscribes Data & 
Insights PriYate Limited (formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended , and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid s tandalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit 
and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then 
ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
arc relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

4. We draw your attention to the following: 

a) Note 40 to the standalone financial statements, regarding the Scheme of merger by 
absorption (the "Scheme") between the Company and Netscribes (India) Private Limited 
and their respective shareholders and creditors, which has been approved by the 
National Company Law Tribunal vide its Order dated December 2 , 2022, with effect from 
the appointed date of September 6, 2021 (the 'appointed date'). The accounting 
treatment pursuant to the Scheme has been given effect to from the appointed date in 
accordance with the 'Pooling of Interests' method laid down under Accounting Standard 
(AS) 14 'Accounting for Amalgamations' as prescribed in the Scheme. 

Price Wacerhouse Chartered Accoum ants LLP, Nesco IT Building III, 8th Floor, Nesco IT Plrirlt;:Nescr;i:Gi5rm 
Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 063 
T: +91 (22) 61198000, F: +91 (22) 61198799 

Registered office and Head office: 11-A, Vishnu Digamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan. Gate No 2, 1st Floor, New Delhi • 110002 

Price Waterhouse (a Partnersh,p F,rm} converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001) 
with effect from July 25. 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 012754N/NS00016 (ICAI reg,strat,on 
number before conversion was 012754N) 
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b) Note 19 to the standalone financial statements, relating to the overdue balances payable 
to non-resident parties aggregating to Rs. 10 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023 which are due 
for a period exceeding the time period stipulated under FED Master Direction No. 
17/2016-17 dated January 1, 2016 (as amended) issued by the Reserve Bank of India, and 
for which the Company has intimated the Authorised Dealer Bank. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

Other Information 

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not co,·er the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
financial statements 

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equ ity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
a nd detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material miss tatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern bas is of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and ob tain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unce1tainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
abil ity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we arc required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit e,idcnce obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amo ng other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

11. We a lso provide those charged with governance with a s tatement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements rega rding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Other Matter 

12. The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 
and the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2021 included in these standa lone 
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements 
for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 prepared in accordance with the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006 (as amended), respectively, which were audited by the predecessor auditors who 
expressed an unmodified opinion vide their reports dated May 27, 2022 and May 31, 2021, 
respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in accounting 
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 a nd 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the in formation and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our a udit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have bee n kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report arc in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. Also refer paragraph 4(a) 
under the 'Emphasis of Malter' section above. 

(c) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repo1t in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations giYen to us: 

i. The Company docs not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position. 
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ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative 
contracts as at March 31, 2023. 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 

2023. 

1v. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (''Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer 
Note 45 (viii) to the standalone financial statements); 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the 
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or proYide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 45 (viii) to the standalone 
financial statements); and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

VI. As proviso to Ruic 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), 
which provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and 
related matters in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the 
Company only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting 
under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended), is currently not applicable. 
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15. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public 
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the 
Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 6, 2023 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Nu mber: 012754N/ N500016 

Ali Akbar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 117839 
UDIN: 23117839BGSNHC5767 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited (formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private 
Limited) ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that dale. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintain ing internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("!CAI"). These responsibilities incl ude the 
design, implementation and main tenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the audi tor's judgement, including the assessment of Lhe risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pe1tain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limita tions of Internal Financial Contro ls with re ference to financial 
statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal fina ncial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opin ion 

8 . In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference 
to fi nancial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal 
control over financial repoiting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by [CAL 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 6, 2023 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N /N500016 

~iAk~ 
Partner 
Membership Number: 117839 
UDlN: 231178398GSNHC5767 
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i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible 
Assets. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according 
to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has 
been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material 
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer 
Note 4 (a) to the standalone financial statements). Therefore, the provisions of clause 
3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of 
our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered 
Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate 
of the net canying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise 

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the 
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made 
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has 
appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise. 

11. (a) Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any 
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of Rs. 500 Lakhs, in aggregate from banks and finan cial ins titutions on the basis of 
security of current assets and accordingly, tl1e question of our commenting on whether 
the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of 
account of the Company docs not arise. 

iii. (a) The Company has, during the year, made investments in three companies and in eleven 
traded investments. The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans/ advances 
in nature of loans, or stood guarantees, or provided security to any parties. 

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, the terms and conditions under which such 
inves tments were made are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) The Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/ ad\'ances in nature of loans, or 
stood guarantee, or provided security Lo any parties. Therefore, to Lhis extent, the 
reporting under clause 3 (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(!) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 
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1v. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Act in respect of 
investments made. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees 
or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the 
extent notified. 

VI. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues in respect of income tax, provident fund, professional tax, 
employees' state insurance, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including goods and services tax, sen;ce 
tax, duty of customs, value added tax and cess, as applicable, with th e appropriate 
authorities. Also, refer Note 38 to the standalone financial statements regarding 
management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defa ulter by any 
bank or finan cial institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
pe1fonned by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, the Company has not raised funds on short term basis. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries. The Company did not have any joint ventures or associate companies 
during the year. 

(t) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by 
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries. The Company did not have any joint ventures or 
associate companies during the year. 
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x. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

x1. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a nd according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, ca rried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a nd according 
to the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143( 12) of the 
Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the 
management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the 
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not a pplicable to 
it, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xm. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the finan cial s ta tements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 
24 "Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the 
Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Acl 
and, accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xiv. The Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system during the year. 

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the 
provisions of Section 192 o f the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-[A oftl1e Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the re potting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking finan cial / housing finance aclivities 
d uring the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(,c,.'i)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the 
Company, the Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We haYe not, 
however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is 
accurate and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and had incurred 
cash losses of Rs. 3,047.09 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken 
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

XlX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios (Also refer Note 45 (i) to the standalone financial statements), ageing and 
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when lhey fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. (Also refer Note 44 to the standalone financial statements) 

xx. As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent 
under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause 
has been included in this report. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 6, 2023 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N500016 

~ 
Ali Akbar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 117839 
UDIN: 23117839BGSNHC5767 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2023 

(All amounts in fNR lakhs, unless otheiwise s tated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right of use asset 
Intangible assets 
Financial Assets 

i) Investments 
ii) Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Tax assets (net) 
Other non current assets 
Total non-current Assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 

i) Investments 
ii) Trade receivables 
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 
v) Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total Current assets 
Total Assets 

EQUTIY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-current Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease liabilities 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease liabilities 
iii) Trade payables 

a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
b) Total outstanding dues other than (iii) (a) above 

iv) Other financial liabilities 
Contract Liabilities 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 
Total current liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

Notes 

4(a) 
5 

4(b) 

6 

7 
37 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12(a) 
12(b) 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
5 

18 
5 
19 

20 
21 
22 
23 

Ason Ma.rch Ason March 
31, 2023 31, 2022 

356.91 424.34 
236.25 129.13 
97-48 107.77 

40.25 89.39 
453.16 799.18 
144.14 165.29 
537.81 296.54 

2.54 9,39 
1,868.54 2 ,021.03 

630.80 1,057.24 
3,242.02 2,526.02 
4,133.23 2,27L66 

322.32 5,440.61 
6.54 188.71 

s78.43 442.54 
8,913.34 11,926.78 

10,781.88 13,947.81 

2.01 2.01 
(4,317.64) (6,340.04) 

(4,315.63} (6,338.03) 

11,959.01 13,569.25 
125.01 63.,;1 

12,084.02 13,632.76 

1,520.00 4,465.00 
119.15 95.92 

148.01 30-47 
514.76 345.97 
296.28 836-42 

14.35 186.85 
294.25 324.81 
106.69 367.64 

3 ,013.49 6 ,653.08 
15,097 .51 20,285.84 
10,781.88 13,947.81 

The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number. 012754N/ N500016 

~ 
Ali Akbar 
Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

,-{)~:re .... 
• k~ector 

DIN: 00085678 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

As on April 
1, 2021 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

0.10 
-
-
-

0.10 
0 .10 

1.00 
(1.32) 

(0.32) 

Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

-
-
-

-
-

-
0.12 
0.30 
-
-
-

0.42 
0.42 
0 .10 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Notes 

Revenue from operations 24 
Other income 25(a) 
Other gains/(losses)-nct 25(b) 
Total Income 

Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 26 
Finance costs 27 
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 
Other expenses 29 
Total Expenses 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 
Current tax 37 
Deferred tax 37 
Total tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans Obligations 
Income tax relating to above 37 
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (In Rupees): 
Bas ic 43 
Diluted 43 

.For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

13,313.55 
112.18 

322.37 
13,748.10 

5,384.95 
2,242.62 

491.10 
2,880.09 

10,998.76 

2,749.34 

701.27 
25.26 

726.53 

2 ,022.81 

(16.34) 
4.11 

(12.23) 

2,010.58 

10,062.21 
10,023.85 

The above Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

In tenns of our report of even date. 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

8,060.32 
145.13 

466.95 
8,672.40 

3,764-46 
1,673.15 
344-48 

1,393-41 
7,175.50 

1,496.90 

407.23 
89.29 

496.52 

1,000.38 

(5-40) 
1.36 

(4.04) 

996.34 

4,976.25 
4,957.30 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Finn Registration Number. 012754N/N500016 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6 , 2023 

J~ r 

' ,~~urav Mukh~rjee 
Director 
D!N : 00085678 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 



Nctscribcs Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited} 
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31 , 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

--· ·- -- - -·- - ·-·· 

Particulars Notes No. of Shares 
As at April 01 2021 10 000 
Chanee in eauitv share canital l.~ 10 10'.t 
As at March :u 2022 20 103 
Chanee in eauitv share capital 15 -
As at March 31 202:J 20 10~ 

B. Other equity (Refer note 16) 

Securities Retained 
Premium Earnings 

As at April 1, 2021 - (1.32) 

Business combination (refer Note 40) 168.95 8,177-16 

Ind AS transition impact (refer Note 40) - (18.93) 
Profit for the year - 1,000.38 
Ite ms of other comprehensive income recognised 
directly in retained earnings 

• Remeasurcmcnts of defined benefit plan obligations - (5.40) 
• Income tax relating to above - 1.36 

Employee stock op lions expenses (refer Note ~o l . . 
As at March 31, 2022 168.95 9,153.25 
Profit for the year - 2,022.81 
Items of other comprehensive income recognised 

directly in retained earnings 
- Remeasurements of defined benefit plan obligations - (16.34) 
- income tax relating to above - 4.11 

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (1,453.50) 
Employee stock options expenses (refer Note 39) - -
As at March 31, 2023 168.95 9,7 10.33 

Amount 
1.00 
1.01 
2,01 
-

2.01 

Reserves and Surplus 

Debenture Capital 
Capital Reserve 

Share options 
on Business 

Redemption Redemption Combination outstanding 
Reserve Reserve (Refer note 40) account 

- -
- 48.95 (15,719.15) -
- - -
- - -

- - -
- . 
. . 7.96 

48.95 (15,719.15) 7.96 
. . . 

- - - -
- - -

1,453.50 
- . 11 .82 

1,453.50 48.95 (15,719.15) 19.78 

The above Standalone Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

In tcnns of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Finn Registration Number. 012754N/ N500016 

~i~bfat 
Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

1~ kh~erjec Sourav 
Director 
DIN: 00085678 

. Mumbai 
Place. 6 2023 
Dated: June ' 

@tJ· 
Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DfN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: J une 6, 2023 

Total Other 
equity 

(1.32) 
(7,324.09) 

(18.93) 
1,000.38 

(5.40) 
1.36 
7.96 

(6,340.04) 
2 ,022.81 

(16.34) 
4.11 
. 

11.82 
(4,317.64) 



Netscribcs Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS OXymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Standalone statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A. Cash nows from operating activities 

Profit before tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depredation and amortization expense 

Unwindi ng or discount on security deposits 

Interest Income 

Unrealised (gain) on foreign exchange (net) 

Net (Gain)/ Loss on sale/Disposal of Property plant and equipment 

Net (gain)/ loss on financial assets measured at fair value t hrough profit and loss 

Dividend income from investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss 

Interest an Non Convertible Debentures (net of origination fees) 

rnterest on shortfall of advance ta;c 

Liabili ties no longer required written back 

Allowances ror Expected Credit Losses 

Expo rt incentive receivable written off 

Interest on Lease Liability 

lmpairmen\ of non~ current investments 
Employee Stock opt ion expense 

Opera.ting profit before working capital changes 

Changes in ope.rating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 

(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets 

(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets 

(Increase)/ decrease in other non current assets 

Increase / (decrease) in other airre.nt financial liabilities 

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 

lncrtase / (decrease) in provisions 

Increase/ (decrease) in con tract liabilities 

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 

Cash now from operations 

Income taxes paid (net) 

Net ca.sh innow from ope.rating activities 

B. Cash now from investing activities 

Payment ror purchase or property, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Payment for purchase or intangible assets 
Payment for purchase of non current investments (rerer Note 40) 

Payment ror purchase of current investments 

Proceeds from sale of current investments 

Proceeds from repayment of loan by Subsidiary 

( Investments in)/ Proceeds from maturity of non current fixed deposits 

Dividend received 

Interest received 

Net cash inflow / (outOow) Crom investing activities 

c. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of Equity share capital 

Proceeds from issue of Non Convertible Oebentures 
Repayment of Non Convertible Debentures 

Principal elements ofleasc payments 

Interest paid 

Net cash inflow / (outflow) Crom financing activities 

Net increase / (dec:reasd in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents acquired on accounl or merger (Refer Note 40) 

Cash and C&Nh equivalents al the end of the year 

Non Cash inves ting a ctivities 

Acquisition of Right of use Assets 

Settlement for Merger of subsidiary through the issu, of Shares 

Reconciliation of cash and ca.sh equivalents as per U1e cash now st.atement: 

Ca.sh and ca.sh equivalents comprise of: 

cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12 (a)) 

Bank Balances 

- ln Current Accounts 

- In Exchange Earner's 1-·oreign Currency Account 

Cash a.nd cash equivalents al the end of tlte year 

The above Standalone statement or !."'.ash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

Fo r Price W a terhouse Charle.r ed Accountants LLP 

,;_ """~™'"'·-·· 

Ali Akbar 
Partner 
Membership No: 111839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

Year~nded 
March 31, 2023 

2,749.34 

491.10 

(6.61) 

(49.63) 

(35.75) 

4.41 

( u o.58) 

( u .73) 

2,214.73 

2.18 

(0.41) 

6.54 

l.49 ,22 

22.11 

49.14 

11.82 

5,485.88 

(712.53) 

92,77 

(135.89) 

6.85 

(540.15) 

307.21 

(46.90) 

(172.50) 

(26o.94) 

4 ,023.80 

(944.61) 

3,079.19 

(296.00) 

13-49 

(20.78) 

(1,488.53) 

2,034.10 

-
5,244.52 

u.73 
216.20 

5 ,714.73 

(4,465.00) 

( 140.27) 

(2,327.08) 

(6,932.35) 

1.861.57 

2,271.66 

4,133.2 3 

242.04 

1.01 

4,042.74 

90-49 

4,133.23 

Fo r and on behalf or the Board of Dire.ct o r s 

' 
SoW'11v Mukhcrje~~ 
Director 
DIN: 00085678 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022: 

1,496.90 

344.48 

(5.83) 

(111.o6) 

(25.53) 

(333.44) 

3.84 
(6.20) 

364.o6 

15.09 

13.42 

-
11.86 

7.96 

1,775.54 

(176-30) 

39.67 

(282.62) 

(9.39) 

322.33 

159.13 

72.63 

10.03 

263.09 

2 ,174.12 

(1,031.48) 

1,142.64 

(161.76) 

432.13 

(19.11) 

(17,000.58) 

(2,237.02) 

1,183.15 

50.00 

(2,952.52) 

6 .20 

315.67 

(20,383.84) 

3-57 

19,000.00 

(116.39) 

(1,341.67) 

17,545.51 

( 1,695.69) 

Yu vraj Gh ar at 
Director 

0.10 

3,967.25 

2,27 1.66 

752.37 

1.835.12 

436.54 

2,27 1.66 

DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: .June 6, 2023 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Background 
Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited - formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited (the "Company") is a Private 
Limited Company registered in India under the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile Companies Act, 1956). The Company has listed its 
Non Convertible redeemable debentures on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is engaged in business of providing 
research and intelligence solutions, investment and business research, market, competitive and social media intelligence and 
communication services to meet the tactical business objectives of the clients. 

During the year 2021-22, the application for the scheme of merger of Netscribes (India) Private Limited with the Company and their 
respective shareholders and creditors was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench ("NCLT, Mumbai"). The 
said scheme of merger was approved by the NCLT, Mumbai on December 2, 2022, which became effective from December 31, 2022 
upon its filing with Registrar of Companies (ROC), Mumbai. Pursuant to this scheme, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, 
Netscribes (India) Private Limited has been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed date September 6, 2021. 

These standalone financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 6, 2023. 

2 Swnmary of significant accounting policies 
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial statements. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented , unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 
The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant 
provisions of the Act. 

The standalone financial statements upto year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 were prepared in accordance with 
the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. These 
standalone financial statements were prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, specified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2oi3. 

These standalone financial statements arc the first statutory financial statements ('financial statements') of the Company 
under Ind AS. Refer Note 41 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the 
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 

( ii) Historical cost convention 
These standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following 
items: 

- certain financial assets and liabilities measured at Fair Value 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value 
- share-based payments. 

(iii) Current and Non-Current Classification 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Schedule m to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between providing the 
services and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating c'Ycle as 12 months for 
the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

(iv) New and amended standards adopted by the Company 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 23, 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 2022. These 
amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect 
the current or future periods. 

(v) New and amended standards issued but not effective 
The Ministty of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the 'Rules') which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 2023. 

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other 
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications. 
These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and 
on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to lnd 
AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment. 
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Notes forming part o f the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

(b) Segment reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker. 

The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic 
decisions and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. 

(e) Foreign currency translation 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee 
(INR), which is Company's functional and presentation currency. 

(ii) Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. 
All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other 
gains/ (losscs). 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates al the date 
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of 
the fair value gain or loss. 

(d) Revenue recognition 
The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies performance obligations under the terms of its contracts, and control of its 
services is transferred to its customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive from its 
customers in exchange for those services. This process involves identifying the cu~tomer contract, determining the 
performance obligations in the contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction price to the distinct 
performance obligations in the contract, and recognizing revenue when the performance obligations have been satisfied. 

A performance obligation is considered distinct from other obligations in a contract when it : 
(a) provides a benefit to the customer either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the 
customer and 
(b) is separately identified in the contract. 

Taxes assessed by a government authority that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue- producing 
transaction, that are collected by the Company from a customer, are excluded from sales. 

A performance obligation is satisfied over time if one of the following criteria are met: 
(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the entity performs; 
(b) the entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or 
(c) the entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity, and the entity has an enforceable 
right to payment for performance completed to date. 

If control transfers over time, an entity selects a method to measure progress that is consistent with the objective of depicting 
its performance. 

Nature of services: 
The Company recognizes revenue for services over time as the Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the 
customer controls from fixed price contracts and the cu~tomers simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as and 
when the milestones are completed as per the terms of the contract. Revenue from time-and-material contracts are recognised 
as the related services are performed. 

The Company has adopted the 'as-invoiced' practical expedient for performance obligation satisfied over time with respect to 
fixed price contracts. It permits an entity to recognize revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice the customer if 
that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date. 
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Contract assets and liabilities 

When the Company performs a service or transfers a good in advance of receiving consideration, it recognises a contract asset 
or receivable. 

A contract asset is a Company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Company has transferred to a 
customer. lf the Company transfers cont rol of goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration, the 
Company records a contract asset when the nature of the Company's right to consideration for its performance is other than 
passage of time. A contract asset will be classified as a receivable when the Company's right to consideration is unconditional 
(that is, when payment is due only on the passage of timc).The Company shall assess a contract asset for impairment in 
accordance with Ind AS 109. lmpairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and disclosed on similar basis as other 
financial asset in nature of trade receivable within the scope of Ind AS 109. The Company discloses contract assets under 
·current Assets·. 

The Company recognises a contract liability if the customer's payment of consideration precedes the Company's performance. 
A contract liability is recognised if the Company receives consideration (or ifit has the unconditional right to receive 
consideration) in advance of performance. The Company discloses contract liabilities under "Current Liabilities". 

(e) lncomc Tax 
The income lax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full , using the liahility method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not 
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction 
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related 
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets arc recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where 
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respectively. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation 
is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax 
treatment. The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending 
on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty. 

(0 Leases: 
As a lessee 
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for 
use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration 
in the contrJet to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real 
estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts 
for these as a single lease component. 

Assets and Liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 
present value of the following lease payments: 
• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable 
• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 
commencement date 
• amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees 
• the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option. 

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rdte implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which 
is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset 
in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company uses observable amortising loan rate available to the Company 
(through recent financing or market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Company uses that rate as 
a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate. 

Lea 
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: 
• the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 
• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received 
• any initial direct costs, and 
• restoration costs. 

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain 
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life. 

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an 
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise co­
working space. 

(g) Business combination 
Business combinations - common control transactions 

Business combinations involving entities that is controlled by the Company are accounted for using the pooling of interests 
method as follows: 
• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 
• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only made to 
harmonies accounting policies. 
• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had 
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the 
combination. However, where the business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated 
only from that date. 
• The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the tr,msferor is aggregated with the 
corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general reserve. 
• The identity of the reserves arc preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee. 
• The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of 
cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented 
separately from other capital reserves. 

(h) impairment of assets 

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are 
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than 
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash flows, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits 
held al call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less that arc readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, 
and bank overdrafts. 

(j) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables arc amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects 
Company's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables arc 
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds the 
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures t hem subsequently at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. 

(k) Investments and other financial assets 
(i) Classification 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
, those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and 
• those to be measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in equity instruments that arc not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an 
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI. 

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

(ii) Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets arc recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Company 
commits to purchase or sale the financial asset. 

(iii) Measurement 
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that arc directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Debt instruments 
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash 
flow characteristics of the asset. There arc three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt 
instruments. 

a) Amortised cost: Assets that arc held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest arc measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de.recognition is recognised directly in profit 
or loss and presented in other gains/ (losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit 
and loss. 
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b) Fair value through other comprehensive income ( FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash 
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at FVOCl. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OC!, except for the recognition of impairment 
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the 
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/ (losses) and impairment 
expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss. 

c) Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit o r 
loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within 0th.er gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Equity instrumen ts 
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to 
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from 
such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit o r loss are recognised in other gain/ ( losses) in the 
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI 
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

(iv) Impairment o f financial assets 
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial 
assets which arc measured at amortised cost and FVOCl. Impairment of financial assets is measured as either 12 month 
expected credit losses or life time expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition. The Company uses historical loss experience and adjusts the loss allowance to reflect the 
information about current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. 

Trade receivables arc of a short duration, normally less than 12 months and hence th e loss allowance measured as lifetime 
expected credit losses does not differ from that measured as 12 month expected credit losses. The Company measures expected 
credit losses for trade receivables using a provision matrix based on collection history. Accordingly, for trade receivables, the 
Company has followed simplified approach. Expected credit loss for security deposit are measured at 12 months expected 
credit losses for which credit has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Assets arc written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery based on management assessment. When recoveries 
are made, these are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

(v) De recognition of financial assets 
A financial asset is derecognised only when 
• The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
• retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the 
cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rew-drds of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derccogniscd. 

Where the entiiy has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derccogniscd if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement 
in the financial asset. 

(vi) Income recognition: 
Interest income 
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. 
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest 
method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income. Interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become 
credit-impaired. For credit- impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying aniount of the 
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance). 

Divide nds 
Dividends received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCI are recognised as other income in 
profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, 
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 
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(I) Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enfo rceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company o r the 
counterparty. 

(m) Property, plant and equipment 
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs arc included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derccognised when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Transition to Ind AS: 
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and 
equipment. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written down method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, based on 
technical evaluation done by management taking into account the nature of the assets, their estimated period of use and the 
operating conditions. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed at least at each financial year 
end. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes arc accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting 
estimate. 

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 

The estimates of useful lives of tangible assets arc as follows: 

Assets Estimated 
Useful Lives 
(in years) 

Building 60 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 

Vehicles 8 
Servers and Networks 6 
Office Equipment 5 
Computers 3 

Leasehold improvements arc amortised over the period of lease term. 

Gains and losses on disposals arc determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or 
loss within other gains/(losses). 
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(n) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amorti,.ation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. A rebuttable presumption that the 
useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use is considered by the 
management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the 
expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed 
accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset arc determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets based on management evaluation is as follows: 

Assets Estimated 
Useful Lives 
(in years) 

Computer Software '.l 

Transition to Ind AS 
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all intangible assets measured as per 
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets. 

(o) Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables 
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised 
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

(p) Borrowing 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in 
profit or Joss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of 
borrowing facilities arc recognised as transaction costs of the borrowing to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down. ln this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that 
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and 
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
profit or loss as other gains/Oosses). 

Where the terms of a fi nancial liability arc renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all 
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional righ t to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan 
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the 
reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before 
the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

(q) Borrowing cost 
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which 
they are incurred. 
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( r) Provisions 

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions arc not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

(s) Contingent liabilities 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. It can also 
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic 
resources will be required, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the 
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision. 

( t) Employee benefits 

a) Short-term employee benefits 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that arc expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service arc recognised in respect of employees' services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The 
liabilities are p resented as current financial liabilities in the balance sheet. 

b) Post-employment obligations-defined benefit plans - Gratuity (funded) 
The Company provides for a gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan"). The gratuity scheme is administered 
through tbe Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of 
defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the 
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit 
method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in Rupees is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair 
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in 
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

e} Post-employment obligations-defined contribution plans - Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance 
Fund 

The Company pays provident fund and Employee State insurance fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds 
as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit 
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in 
the future payments is available. 
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d) Other long term employee benefits- Compensated absences 

The liabilities for earned leave arc not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be 
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit 
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating 
to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to 
occur. 

e) Share based payments 
The fair value of options granted under the Company's Employee Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense 
with a corresponding increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over 
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the 
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact 
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 
Wbe.re shares are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service conditions, any expenses previously 
recognised in relation to such shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture. 

0 Bonus plan: 

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually 
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

(u) Contributed equity 
Equity shares are classified as equity. 
Lncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, 
from the proceeds. 

(v) Earning per share (EPS) 
(i) Basic earnings per share 
Basic EPS is computed by dividing: 
- the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders 
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period adjusted for bonus clements in 
equity shares issued during the year. 

(ii) Diluted earning per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account: 
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

( w) Round.ing o f amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 
requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. 
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3 Critical estimates and judgements: 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the 
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies. 

The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 
circumstances arising that arc beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they 
occur. 

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its critical accounting estimates and 
Judgements and accordingly provides an explanation of each below. The discussion below should also be read in conjunction 
with the Company's disclosure of significant accounting policies which are provided in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies 
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements. 

(i) Classification oflcases under Ind AS 116 
Ind AS 116 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any 
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on 
the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend 
or terminate the contract will be exercised. ln evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant 
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the 
underlying lease to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of 
the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current 
economic circumstances. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental boITOwing rate specific to the lease being 
evaluated and is benchmarked to an amortising loan rate that is readily available in the market. 

( ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
The useful life used to amortise or depreciate intangible assets or property, plant and equipment respectively relates to the 
expected future performance of the assets acquired and management's judgement based on technical evaluation of the period 
over which economic benefit will be derived from the asset. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as 
well as anticipation of future events which may impact their life such as changes in technology. The charge in respect of 
periodic depreciation/ amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and th e expected 
residual value at the end of its amortisation life. Reduction/ Increase in an asset 's expected life or its residual value would 
result in an increased/ reduced depreciation/ amortisation charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Defined benefit plans 
The Company's obligation on account of gratuity and compensated absences is determined based on actuarial valuations. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include 
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the discount rate. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the 
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in 
India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and 
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 

(iv) Expected credit loss on trade receivables 
The Company follows a 'simplified approach' (i.e. based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss ("ECL")) for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. For the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, 
the Company estimates irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. 
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4(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Gross carrying value 

Particulars Asal 

April 01, 2022 
Additions Disposals 

Furniture and Fixtures 82.27 (5.64) 

Vehicles u.56 n,31 

Office equipments 209.86 3.65 (8.65) 

Leasehold Improvements 379.32 (43.92) 
Computers 1,314.02 194.61 (142.32) 

Total 1 aa".0'.t 27,;.,;7 (200.~·>1 

Q._-, .. JU-- LY~ ll- -- -- .c,. .... ···----- - -

Gross Carrying value 

Particulars Deemed cost 
asat Acquisition Additions Disposals 

April 1, 202.1 (refer Note 40) 
(refer Note 41) 

Building 244.51 (244.51) 
Furniture & Fixture 82.27 
Vehicles t6.31 (4.75) 
omce equipments 209.78 0.08 
Leasehold Improvement 380.16 (0.84) 
Computers 1,168.55 156.6o (11.13) 

Total 2 101.~8 1~6.68 1261.23] 

Asal 

March 31, 2023 

76.63 

88.87 

204.86 

335.40 

1,366.31 

2 072.07 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

82.27 
u.56 

209.86 
379.32 

1,314.02 

1.007.03 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying 
value 

Asat 
Charge for the Asat Asat 

Disposals 
April 11 2022 year March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

58.37 6.09 (5.14) 59.32 17.31 
10.89 5.88 - 16.77 72.10 
161.12 22.42 (7.23) 176.31 28.55 

185.00 71.55 (28.53) 228.02 107.38 

1,157.31 219.17 (141.74) 1,234.74 131.57 

1.~.,2.60 ">2~.11 (182.6A) l-"l~.16 <1~6.01 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying 
value 

Acquisition 
Asat (refer Note Charge for the Disposals Asat Asat 

April 1, 2021 
40) 

year March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 

132.77 15.29 (148.o6) 
53.65 4.72 58.37 23.90 
13.37 0.72 (3,20) to.89 0.67 

138.39 22.73 161.12 48.74 
t41.26 44.20 (0,46) 185.00 194.32 

t,026.85 141.29 (10.83) t,157.31 156.71 

- 1.,;06.20 228.o~ '162.•• l-~"2.60 424.<14 
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Q,-, - ·- J""--·- - - -

Gross Carrying value 
Particulars 

Asat 
Anril 0 1 2oa2 

Additions Disposals 

Computer software 256.70 20.78 . 

Total 2«6.70 20.78 . 

A\UJ unwllllun; uaac1.a 

Gross Carrying value 

Particulars Deemed cost 
as at Acquisition Additions Disposals April 1, 2021 (refe.r Note 40) 

(refer Note 41) 

Computer software 237.59 19.11 

Total 2'l7.S.Q 10.11 

Notes: 
1. The Company does not have any Capi1al work in progress as a1 March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 
2. The Company does not have any intanRible assets under development as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 

Asat 
March31 202:i 

277,48 

277.48 

Asal 
March 31, 2022 

256.70 

2'<6.70 

Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Carrying 
value 

Charge for the As at Aprll 1, 2022 Disposals Asal Asat 
year March ·u 202•, March 31 2023 

148.93 31.07 180.00 97.48 

1•8.0'> ,U.07 180.00 0'7,48 

Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Carrying 
value 

Acquisition Asat (refe r Note Cha111e for the Disposals Asat Asat 
Aprll 1, 2021 

40) year M arch 31 1 2022 March 31, 2022 

138.09 10.84 148.93 107.77 

. 1·>8.00 10.84 1<18.0~ 107,"7 
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5 Leases 
The Company's Lease asset consist leasehold office premises. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective approach in which 
the Company has recognised a lease liability on the lease commencement date and recognised right -of -use assets which is equal to the lease 
liability at the commencement date. When measuring lease liabilities, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is 
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of­
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. The Incremental borrowing rate applied by the company 
is 10% p.a. The difference between the lease liability as at commencement date and lease liability on the date of the transition, and accumulated 
depreciation on right -of -use assets till the date of the transition have been adjusted against the retained earnings standing as on the transition 
date. 
The Company has applied below practical expedients permitted by standard: 

- The Company has not applied the requirements oflnd AS u6 for leases oflow value assets. 
- The Company has excluded the initial direct costs from measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of transition. 
- The Company has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component. 

(i) Amounts Recognised in Balance Sheet 

Particulars 

(a) Right of use asset 
Leasehold Office Premises 
Total 

(b) Lease liability 

Non Current 

Current 

Total 

The following is the movement in Right -of -use assets 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 

Acquisition 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 3 1, 2022 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Accumulated depreciation 

Acquisition 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Adclitions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

The following is the movement in Lease liabilities 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 

Acquisition 

Additions 

Disposals 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 

Payment oflease liabilities 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Adclitions 

Disposals 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 

Payment oflease liabilities 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Asat 
March :u 2023 

2~6.2~ 
236.2_,; 

125.01 

119.15 

244.16 

Amount 

752.37 

-
(2.22) 

750.15 

242.04 

(570.26) 

421.93 

Amount 

518.55 

104.69 

(2.22) 

621.02 

134.92 

(570.26) 

185.68 

Amount 

275.82 

11.86 

( 128.25) 

159.43 

225.00 

22.1 1 

Asal Asal 
March 31 2022 Amil 1 2021 

120.13 -
129.J.1 -

63.51 

95.92 -
159.43 -
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(ii) Amount recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March :u 2023 March '>1 2 022 

Depreciat ion charge of Right Of Use Assets ( refer Note 28) 134.92 104.69 
Interest expense (included in finance costs) (refer Note 27) 22.11 11.86 

I Exncnsc relating to leases of low-value assets (refer Note 29) 27.~7 2~.68 

The total Cash Outflow for Leases principal portion during the year was Rs. 140.27 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 116.39 lakhs) 

(iii) Extension and termination optio ns 
Extension and termination options are included in the lease office premises of the Company. 
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor. 
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6 Non current Investments 

lnvesb:nents carried at cost 

Equity Investments in Subsidiary Companies 

Unquote d 
100 [March 31, 2022 - 100; April 1,2021 - 1'il) equity shares of USD 0.01 each fully paid-

up held in Netscribes, Inc. United Stales 

10,451[March 31, 2022 - 10451; April 1,2021- Nil] equity shares oft 10 each fully paid-up 
held in lnrea Research Solutions Private Limited, India [net of impairment of Rs. 49.14 
lakhs (previous year Rs. nil)] 

1 [March 31, 2022 - 1; April 1,2021 - Nil] equity share of SGD I each fully paid-up held in 
Netscribes Global Pte. Ltd. Singapore • 

Total 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 

• Below the rounding off norm adapted by the Company 

7 Other non current financial assets 

Unsecured, Considered good 

Long term deposits with banks with maturity period more 1han 12 mon1hs 

Fixed deposit held as lien # 

Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks 

Security Deposits 
Total 

# Held as lien by bank in favour of the Debenture Trustees in relation to Debentures 

8 Tax assets (net) 

Advance Tax [Net of Provision for Income Tax Rs. 1,593.30 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 
890.oS lakhs)] 

Total 

9 Other non current assets 

Prepaid Expenses 

Tot.al 

10 Current investments 

Investment in equity instruments fully paid up (at FVrPL) 

Quoted 
- 5,000 (March 31, 2022: 5000; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares of Tata Consultancy 

Services Limited of face value of Rs. 1 each 
- NIL (March 31, 2022: 6,78,648; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares of Ujjivan Small 
Finance Bank of face value of Rs. 10 each 
- :,,/IL (March 31, 2022: 1,25,000; April 1, 2021 : NIL) equity shares of Ashok Leyland 
Limited of face value of Rs. 1 each 
- NI L (March 31, 2022: 1,00,000; April 1, 2021 : NIL) equity shares of Stale Bank of 
India of face value of Rs. 1 each 
- NIL (March 31, 2022: 1,50,000' April 1, 2021 : NIL) equity shares of Zomato Limited 
of face value of Rs. 1 each 
- NIL (March 31, 2022: 10,000; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares of Matherson Sumi 
Wiring lndla Limiled of face value of Rs.1 each 
- 50,000 (March 31, 2022: NIL; April 1, 2021 : NIL) equity shares of CSB Bank Limi1ed 
of face value of Rs. 10 each 
- 75,000 (March 31, 2022: Nil, April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares of Federal Bank 
Limited of face value of Rs. 2 each 
• 31,500 (March 31, 2022: NII.., April 1, 2021: NTL) equity shares of Indian Hotels 
Company Limited of face value of Rs. 1 each 
· 10,001000 lMarcn 311 2022: 1'1L, Apnl t, 2021: ;\lLJ cqu1tysnares 01 :s:outn 1na1an 
Bank Limited of face value of Rs. 1 each 

Total Current lnvesbncn.ts 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof 

Aggregate amount or unquoted Investments 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 

As on March 31, As on March 31, 
2023 2022 

33.25 33.25 

7.00 56.14 

0.00 0.00 

40.25 89.3 9 

-
40.25 89.39 

49.14 -

As on March 31, As on March 31, 
2023 2022 

- 295.00 

340.00 340.00 

16.63 14.43 

96.53 149.75 

453.16 799.18 

As on March 3 1, As on March 3 1, 
2 02'.l 2022 

537.81 296.54 

537.8 1 296.54 

As on March 31, As on March 31, 
2023 2022 

2.54 9.39 

2.54 9.39 

As on March 3 1, As o n March 31, 
2023 2022 

16<>.29 186.94 

10044 

146.56 

49340 

123.45 

645 

122.93 

99. 19 

102. 19 

146.20 

630 .80 1,057.24 

630.80 1,057.24 

As on April 1, 
2021 

-

-

-

-

-
-
-

As on April 1, 
2021 

-
-
-
-
-

As on April 1, 
2021 

-

As on April 1, 
2 0 21 

-

As on April 1, 
2021 
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11 Trade receivables 

As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 1, 
2023 2022 2021 

Trade receivables from contract with customers - billed 2,2o6.91 2,193.14 

Trade receivables from contract with customers - unbilled A 1,o69.28 36o.51 

Trade receivables from contract with customers - related parties 

Less: Loss Allowance (refer Note 32) (34.17) (27.63) 

Total Receivables 3,242.02 2,526.02 
Current Portion 3,242.02 2,526.02 

Non Current Portion 

Break-up of security details 

Trade receivables considered good - secured 

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 3,276.t9 2,553.65 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade receivables - credit impaired -
Less: Loss Allowance (refer Note 32) (34.17) (27.63) 

Total 3 ,242.02 2,526.02 

AThe receivable is 'unbilled' because the Company has not yet issued an invoice; however, the balance bas been included under trade 
receivables (as opposed to contract assets) because it is an unconditional right to consideration. 

Aging of Trade Receivable 

As at March 31, 2023 

Outstan.t: .... for the follo"inst oeriods from the due date 

-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-

Partic.u l11.n1 Unbilled Noa Due Less Than 6 6 Months - 1 1- 2. Year z-3Ycar More th.an 3 

Undi.routed trade receivables 
- Considend ~ood 

- Which have signifiCilnt increase in Cl"Pdit 
risk 

Credit irunaoired 

• Considered c-1 
Vv'hich h3\'0 flgnific.ant inCTPaw in CT"Pdit 

risk 
• Credit lmoaired 
Total 

Less: Allowanr.e for credit loss 
Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Un.U.puted 

Months Y= Year 

I f'V.J'l .28 080.00 u8o.7t u.8< 2.'>!':'. 

I 
I 

- - -

~ 06o.28 nKn.OO 1 18o.71 -u..8• :,.•• 

0.21% 0 • .12% l.16% "4.00% 100.00%! 100.00" 100.00% 

2.22 ,I . LI 1'1.1,,,t u.8-= 2•< 

I 06.,.06 ,.Re.So l 16,.0.,. 23.00 

Out.standinu for U1e foTiowino IV"riods from the due date 
Unbilled Not Due Less Than 6 6 Months - 1 t-z Year Z-3 Year More than 3 

Months Year Year 
I 

Total 

'>,:r,6.10 

-'"'.10 

_a±.!Z.. 
"t.:;t~ 

Total 

- Coasiden!d Good ,6o.s1 L70>.o., 466.4s 10.90 ---~u"'.s,.is'--+--- --~1------+----'""'""'"'"',.,.,,6.~s 
- Which have 5loGJlifka.nt increase in credit 
risk 
· Credit im,,.jred 

~ 
-Considered c-1 
- Which have significant increase m crrd:it 

risk 

Tot.II.I 

I-~~:ted loss rate 
Less: Allowance for credit loss 
Total 

'160.'l:J l.'70'1:.0~ "66:...s 

0.21% 0-"2% 1.16% 
0.7~ - .08 <.so 

.,,0.76 1.6g6.86 •61.06 

- There are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Company 

I 

10.QO u .8, 

~'-""" 100.00'8 

2.-~6 11.Sc; 

s.-... 

- There are no trade receivables outstanding as al the start of April 1, 2021, hence trade receivable aging is not provided as at that date. 

2 ~e-~.6-~ 

100.00% 100. 00% 

2•.6:1 
2.526.02 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part oftbe standalone financial statements for the year cnd.ed March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in IN R lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

12(a) Cash and cash equivalents 

As on March 31, 
2023 

Balance with Banks 

In Curren! Account 4,042.74 

In Exchange Earner's Foreign Currency account 90.49 

Total 4 ,133.23 

As on March 3 1, 
2022 

1,83.5.12 

436.54 

2,271.66 

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods. 

12(b) Othe r banlc balances 

As on March 31, As on March 31, 
2023 2022 

Fixed deposits held as lien @ 4,520.51 

Deposits with maturily more than three months bul less than 12 monlhs . 724.00 

Long Term Deposits with remaining maturity less lhan 12 months 295.00 

Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks 27.32 196.10 

Total 322.32 5,440.61 

@ Held as hen by bank m favour of the Debeniure Trustees ,n relation to Debentures. 

13 Other current financial assets 

As on March 31, As on March 31, 
2023 2022 

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 2.6o t.88 

Advances to Employees 1.92 

Expon Incentive Receivable 149.22 

Security Deposits 2.02 37.61 
Total 6.54 188.71 

14 Other current assets 

As on March 3 1, As on March 31, 
2023 2022 

Prepaid Expenses 245.19 204.66 

Balances with Government Authorities 333.24 237.88 
Total 578.43 442.54 

As on April 1, 
2021 

0.10 

0.10 

As on April 1, 
2021 

. 

. 

As on April 1, 
202.1 

. 

. 

As on April 1, 

2021 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

15 Equity share canital 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

Amount Amount Amount 
Authorised Share Capital 
50,000 (March 31, 2022-50,000; April 1, 2021 -50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. to 5 .00 5.00 5.00 
each. 

Iss ued, Subscribed and Paid up 
20,103 (March 31, 2022 - 20,103; April 1, 2021 - 10,000) F.quity Shares ol 2.01 2.01 t.00 

Rs.10 each fully paid. 
2.01 2.01 1.00 

Authorised share capital 

No. of Shares Amount 
As at April Ol, 2021 50,000 5.00 
Increase during the year. -
As at March 31, 2022 S:0000 c.oo 
Increase during the year: -
As at March~,. 202~ coooo i;:,oo 

(i) Movements in Equity Share Capital : 

No. of Shares Equity Share 
Capital (per value) 

As al April 01, 202.1 10,000 l.00 

lncrcase/(Occrease) durinR the year: - -
- Issued in Business Combination (refer :,;ote 40) 10 )Q'! 1.01 

As at March 31, 2022 20 10'> 2.01 

lncrease/(Decrease) during the year -
As at March ~1 202~ 20 10"> 2.01 

Terms and rights attached to equity shares: 
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.to per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held and to participate in 
dividend, and to share in the proceeds or winding up the company in proportion to the number or and amounts paid on the shares held. The dividend proposed by the 
Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

(ii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aJIIIN'gale shares in the Company: 

No. of Shares % holdine 
As at April Ol, 202l 
Sourav Mukherjee 9,382 93.82'.I\ 
Gagan Kaul 618 6.18 '.I\ 

As a.t March 31, 2022 

Sourav Mukherjee 19,294 95.98'.I\ 

As at March 31, 2023 
Sourav Mukherjee t0,2Qd a,.08'.I\ 

(iii) Details of shareholding of promoters: 

No. of Shares Percentage of Percentage of 
totaJ number of change during 

shares the year 
As at April 01, 2021 
Sourav Mukherjee 9,382 93.82% -

As at March 31, 2022 

Sourav Mukherjee 19,294 95.98% 105.65% 

As at March 31. 2023 
Sourav Mukherjee t0,20d a,,08% 

(iv) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash: 

Man:h ~i. 202~ Man:h .,, 2022 Anril 1 2021 

Shares issued as consideration for acquisition of subsidiary (refer Note 40) 10,103 

Sha.res reserved for issue under options 
lnfonnation relating to Company's Employee Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year and options outstanding 

al the end of the reporting period, is set out in note 39. 

Note: 
Pursuanl to the approved Scheme (refer Note 40)1 the Company is required to increase the authorised capital and to issue shares to the remaining shareholders of the 
transferor company. To give effect to aforesaid requirement of the Scheme, the Company made an online application to the Registrar of Company (ROC) to increase 
the Authorised share capital, however, the same is pending with the ROC for the processing and hence the Authorised capital is not increased. The Company has taken 
reasonable steps and informed ROC about the same. 
Since the shares required to be issued under the approved Scheme is within the existing authorised capital. the same is considered as issued against the purchase 
consideration and consequently considered for the earning per share calculation. 

' 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

16 Other Eouitv· Reserves & s11rnlus 

Securities Premium 
Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Share Options Outstanding Account 
Capital reserve on business combination (refer Note 40) 
Capital Redemption Reserve 
Retained earnine.s 
Total 

(i) Securities Premiwn 

Opening Balance 
On Business combination f refer Nole .it.O) 

ClosinJ< balance 

(ill Debenture Redemotion Reserve 

Opening Balance 
Aoorooliations dulin2 the vear 
ClosinJ< balance 

(iii) Share options outstandin~ account 

Opening Balance 
Emnlovee stock ootions exnenses 
ClosinJ< balance 

(iv) Retained earninJ<S 

Opening Balance 
On Business combination (re(er Note 40) 
ImpaL't of Ind AS transition (rerer Note 40) 

Net profit for the year 
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings 
• Remeasurement.s of defined benefit plan obligations 
- Income tax relating to above 
Transfer to debenture redemotion reserve 
ClosinJ< balance 

(v) Capital reserves 

Openin~ Balance. 
On Business combination (refer Note dO) 

ClosinJ< balance 

( ')Ca ' ta) d VI 1Dl re emotion reserves 

Opening Balance 
On Business combination (refer Note 401 
ClosinJ< balance 

Nature and purpose of other reserves: 
(i) Securities premiwn 

March 31, 2023 

168.95 
1,453.50 

19.78 
(15,719.15) 

48.95 
0,710.S' 

' ""1..,.6 .. 

As on March 31, 2023 

168.95 

168 ..... ,... 

As on March 31, 2023 

I AcO.SO 

1 .. ,,,..,._i::;:.o 

As on March 31, 2023 

7.96 
11.82 

...... 8 

As on March 311 2023 

9,153.25 
. 
. 

2,022.81 

( 16.34) 
4.11 

( I AcO.SQ) 

0 .-,10.·n 

As on March 31, 2023 

(15,719.15) 

f, .- ... ,o.1i:::\ 

As on March 31, 2023 

48.95 

A8, fte 

March 31, 2022 April t , 2021 

168.95 -
. . 

7.96 . 
(15,719.15) . 

48.95 . 
a,1,,.2S (1.02) 

7& -·o.o,,l ·,1.•21 

As on March 31, 2022 As on April 11 2021 

168.a< 
168.o~ . 

As on March 31, 2022 As on April 1, 202 1 

. 

As on March 31, 2022 As on April t , 2021 

7.a6 .. ~ 

As on March 31 1 2022 As on April 1 1 2021 

( 1.32) (1.32) 
8,177.16 . 

( 18.93) 

1,000.38 . 

(5.40) . 

1.36 . 
. 

o _, ie::"l.2 i::: '1.~21 

As on March 31, 2022 As on April 11 2021 

(1s.71a$l 
'·--in.~ 

As on March 31, 2022 As on April 1, 2021 

. 

d8.a< . 
A8.<>~ . 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The re.serve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(i.i) Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Debenture redemption reserve represents amounts set aside out of retained earnings during the year for redemption of debentures issued in accordance with section 

71 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

(iii) Share options outstanding account 
The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the Company's Employee stock option plan. 

(iv) Retained earning,, 
Retained earnings mainly represents all current and prior year profits as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss less Remeasuremcnts of post-employment 

benefit obligations and transfers to debenture redemption reserve. 

(v) Capital reserves 
Capital reserve on merger of Nctscribcs India Private Limited being wholly owned subsidiary company ( refer note 40). 

(vi) Capital redemption reserves 
Capital Redemption Reserve is created equal to the nominal value of the shares purchased pursuant to Buy Back of its own fully paid up equity shares. 



Nctscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 

{formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

17 Non current borrowings 

Secured: 

Debentures 

1,900 (March 31, 2022: t,goo) Redeemable non-convertible debentures• 

Less: Current Maturities oflong term debt (included in current borrowing) 

Total 

•includes Accrued Interest 

Note: 

Terms of Secured borrowing.s: 

As on March 31, 
2023 

13,479.01 

(1,520.00) 

11,959.01 

As on March 31, As on April t , 
2022 2021 

t8,034.25 

(4,465.00) 

13,569.25 . 

During the year 2021-22, the Company has issued 1,900 non convertible redeemable debentures with face value of Rs. 1,000,000 aggregating to Rs. 19,000 
lakhs, carrying the interest rate of 15.25% per annum which is effective till the merger effective date (i.e. December 30, 2022) payable at the quarterly rest. 
These debentures are redeemable over the period of 5 years from the date of its allotment. As per the debenture agreement these debenture would carry a 
revised interest rate of 11.5096 per annum starting the merger effective date (i.e. December 31, 2022). 
During the current year the Company has redeemed 23.50% of the face value, aggregating to Rs. 4,465 lakhs. These debentures are listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange and are secured against 
1. the first ranking charge over all of the assets (current+ non current, excluding right of use assets, deferred tax assets (net)) of the Company both current 
and future; and 
2. shares held by promoter in the Company. 

18 Current borrowing.s 

As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 1, 
2023 2022 2021 

Secured 

Current Maturities of Non Current borrowing.s (refer Note 17) 

Redeemable non-convertible debentures 1,520.00 4,465.00 

Total 1,520.00 4 ,465.00 . 

Refer note 17 for the details of security. repayment terms and interest details 

Net Debt Reconciliations : 
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. 

Particulars 
Asal As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 As at April J, 2021 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,133.23 2,271.66 0 .10 

Liquid Investments 630.80 1,057.24 

Lease Liabilities (244.16) (159-43) . 

l.lorrowings (13,479.01) (18,034.25) 

Net Debt (8 ,959.14) (14,864.78) 0.10 

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities 
Particulars Other Assets Liabilities from financing 

activities 

Cash &Cash Liquid Borrowings Lease 
Equivalents Investments liabilitv 

Net debt as at Apri.l , , 2021 0 .10 . 

Addition pursuant to business combination (refer note 40) 3,967.25 (275.82) 

Cash Flows (1.695.69) 1,033.34 (19,000.00) 1t6.39 

Inlerest Payment 1,329.81 ll .86 

Non Cash Changes 
Fair "a. lue adjustment 23.89 1,282.07 

Interest r~xpenses . (t,646.13) (u .86) 

Net dehL< as at March 3 1, 2022 2,271.66 1,057.24 (18,034.25) ( 159.43) 

Net debts as at April 1, 2022 2.271.66 1,057.24 (18.034.25) ( 159-43) 

Cash Flows 1.861.57 (369.57) 4,465.00 140.27 

Interest Payment 2,304.97 22. 11 

Non Cash Changes 

Addition to Lease liability (225.00) 

Fair value adjustment (56.87) 

Interest E."i>Cnses (2,214.73) (22, ll) 

Net debt as at March 31. 2023 4 ,133.23 630.80 ( 13,479.01) (244.16) 

Total 

0.10 

3.691-43 

(19,54.5.96) 

1,341.67 

t,305.97 

(1.657.99) 

(14,864 .78) 

(14.864.78) 

6,097.27 

2,327.oS 

(225.00) 

(56.87) 

(2.236.8,j) 

(8,959.14) 



Netscribcs Data & Insights Private Limited 

(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakbs, unless otherwise stated) 

19 Trade payables 

As on March 31, 
202.J 

Current 
Trade payables: micro and small enterprises (refer :)lote 30) 148.01 

Trade payables: others 514.76 

Total 662.77 

Note: 

As on Marcb 31, As on April ,, 
2022 2021 

30.47 

345.97 0.12 

376.44 0.12 

Trade payables includes payables to non-resident parties towards various expenses. An amount of Rs. 10 lakhs is outstanding for a period more than 6 months but less than three years as at 
March 31, 2023 whiclt are beyond the time period permitted under the :vtaster Direction 17/2016 - 2017 (as amended). The Company has intimated the Authorised Dealer bank in this regard. 

Aging of Trade Payable 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Undisputed lrdde oa,·a hles 
:vticro entemrises and small entemrises 
Others 
Disnuted trade oa,1tbles 
Miao entemrises and small entemrises 
Others 
Total 

As at Marcb 31, 2022 

Pa.rticllla.rs 

Undisputed trade oa \-ahles 
ltticro enterorises and small enteruri.ses 
Others 
ni=utcd trade =.-ables 
Micro enle.mrises and small enlernrises 
Others 
Total 

As at April 1, 2021 

Pa.rticulan 

l!icro ente?"!'lrises and small entarnrises 
Othe..,; 
Total 

Unbilled :Sot Due 

4.0S I 12-.81 

188-"' I 2't UO 

- I -
-

1<>2.:i.9 I :t6!;.!l.1 

Unbilled Not Due 

2"'.00 
168.Ro 161::1 

168.80 188.:;.1 

Unbtll.d .'.':otDue 

Outstandin• for thr follo"i n• ,.,.riod.s from the due date 
Less Than l 1- 2. Year 2-3Year More than 3 Total 
Year Year 

-
16.u O.Ql 148.01 

88.oo 0.10 0.81 <1.<1..76 

- - - -- - - -
JOA . .• 0.20 I o .8~ 662.77 

Outstandin, for the followin• -riods from the due date 
Less Than s 1-2 Year 2.-3 Yea·r More than 3 Total 
Year Year 

30 .. p 
l-1. 7d o.S• ">Ae:. ()'7 

18.21 o.8• 

Ouuta.ndin for the foUo°"in• --...aods from the due date 
Total 

0.12 

0.1:? 0.12 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 

(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statement.~ for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in !NR lakhs, un less othe rwise stated) 

20 Other current financial liabilities 

As on March 311 

2023 

Advances from Director 

Security Deposit received 8.10 

Other Payables 2.70 

Employee benefi ts payable 285.48 
Total 296.28 

21 Contract liabilities 
As on March 31, 

2023 

Income received in advance (refer note 36) 14.35 
Total 14.35 

22 Current provisions 

As on March 31, 
2023 

Provision for Compensated absences (refer Note 38) 151.53 

Provision for Gratuity (refer Note 38) 85.58 

Provision for claims (refer Note below and Note 38) 57.14 
Total 294.25 

The details of movement in Pro\.ision for claims 
As on March 31, 

2023 

Opening Balance 57.14 

Recognised During the year 

Payment of claims during the year 

Closing Balance 57.14 

23 Other current liabilities 
As on March 31, 

2023 

Advances from customers 4.34 

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 102.35 

Total 106.69 

As on March 31, As on April 1, 

2022 2021 

0.30 

4.05 

33.n 
798.6o 

836.42 0.30 

As on March 31, As on April 1, 
2022 2021 

186.85 

186.85 -

As on March 31, As on April 1 , 

2022 2021 

137.70 

129.97 

57.14 -
324.81 -

As on March 31, As on April 1, 
2022 2021 

- -
57.14 

57. 14 -

As on March 31, As on April l , 
2022 2021 

0.34 

367.30 

367.64 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

24 R f evenue rom ooerations 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Revenue from contract with customers 
- Sale of Services (Refer Note 36) 13,313.55 8,060.32 

ITotal 13,313.55 8,060.32 

25(a) Other income 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Interest Income: 
On intercorporate loans - 0.96 
On bank deposits 49.63 110.10 

Dividend income from investments mandatorily measured at fair value 11.73 6.20 
through profit or loss 
Liability no longer required written back 0,41 -
Rent Income 41.01 20.65 
Miscellaneous Income 2.79 1.39 
Unwinding of discount on Security deposit 6.61 5.83 

iToau 112.18 145.13 

25(b) 0th ergams / (I osses -net 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation 216.20 137.34 
Net gain/(loss) on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment (4.41) 333.45 

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 110.58 (3.84) 
through profit and loss 
Total 322.37 466.95 

26 E mp1oyee b ti enc 1t exoense 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Salaries, Allowances and Bonus 4,939.97 3,528.33 
Contribution lo Provident and Other Funds 148.23 100.33 
Gratuity 42.25 23.15 
Leave compensation 80-47 32.95 
Employee stock based payment expense 11.82 7.96 
Staff Welfare 162.21 71.74 

Total 5,384.95 3,764.46 

27 Finance cost 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Interest on shortfall of advance tax 2.18 15.09 
Interest on non convertible debentures 2,214.73 1,646.13 
Interest on dues payable to micro and small enterprises 3.60 0.07 
Interest on lease liability 22.11 11.86 

Total 2,242.62 1,673.15 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly lrnown as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private·Llmited) 
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
28 d Depreciation an amortisation exnenses 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer Note 4(a)) 325.11 228.95 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer Note 5) 134.92 104.69 
Amortisation on intan11:ible assel~ (refer Note 4(b)) 31.07 10.84 

Total 491.10 3 44.48 

29 0th erexnenses 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Rent (refer Note 5) 27.37 23.68 
Information Technology Support Charges 446.74 206.56 
Travelling and Conveyance 98.18 31.70 
Outsourcing cost 917.56 424.53 
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Fees 790.63 486.26 
Power 28.27 15.06 
Communication expenses 37.38 20.87 
Repairs and Maintenance- Others 57.78 41.05 
Insurance Expenses 14.22 5-46 
Recruitment Expenses 74.81 13.53 
Security Charges 17-78 11,40 
Rates and Taxes 34.65 36.91 
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 75.00 47.05 

(refer note 2 below) 
Audit Fee (refer note 1 below) 29.59 10-47 
Impairment of investment in subs idiary 49.14 -
Allowances for Expected credit losses (refer Note 32) 6.54 13-42 
Miscellaneous Expenses 174-45 5-46 

Total 2,880.00 1,393.41 

di Note 1: Details ofpavment to au ·tors 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 3 1, 2022 

Payment to Auditor 
As auditor: 
Statutory Audit fees 19.70 9.89 
Tax audit fees 1.00 0.58 
Limited review 3.00 -
Certificates 5.80 -
Out of Pocket exoenses 0.09 -
Total 29.5q 10.47 

Note 2: Corporate social responsibility expenditure 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2 023 March 31, 2022 

Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 43-43 47.05 
Amount of expenditure incurred 75.00 47.05 
Amount of shortfall/(excess) for the year (31.57) -
Amount of cumulative shortfall/(excess) at the end of the vear (31.57) -

The Company has incurred Rs. 75 Lakhs during the year towards donation to various charity foundations for the purpose of 
Education, health and treatment of girl children, care for special children, relief to poverty etc. There is no shortfall in the 
spending CSR expenses as at end of the current year and previous year. 



Nctscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 

(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
N ates forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

30 Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the basis of information available with the Company: 

Particulars Year ended 
March :u 202'> 

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as al year end 144.34 

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMEO Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.35 

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMEO Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 542.20 

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMl.m Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMEO Act, beyond the appointed 
day during the year 

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 3.25 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMEO Act 

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 ofMSMEO Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMEO Act, beyond the -
appointed day during the year 

Interest acc,ued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 3.67 

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest 0.07 
dues above arc actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the MSM ED Act 

Year ended Asat 
March '>1 2022 Aoril 01, 2021 

30.40 -

0.07 -
- -
- -

- -

- -

0.07 -
- -

Note: The above information regarding dues payable to Micro and Small enterprises is compiled by management to the extent the information is available with the Company regarding the status of 
suppliers as Micro and Small Enterprises. 
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:i1 Fair Value Measurement 

Financial Instrument by category and hicra«:hy: 

Asat March 31, 2023 

Fair value t·alrvaluc At amortised 
through profit through other cost 
and loss comprehensive 
(tVPL) income 

(FVOCI) 
Financial Assets 
Investments (excluding investments in subsidiaries) 630.80 
Trade receivables . 3,242.02 
Cash and cash equivalents . 4,133.23 
Other balances with bank 322.32 
Security Deposits 98.55 
~ on Current Bank deposits and interest thl!rcon . 356.63 
Other financial assets 4.52 
Total 6:to.80 . 8 l'i7,27 

Financial LlabWtfos 
Borrowings 13,479.01 
Lease liabilities 244.16 
Trade Payables 662.77 
Other Financial Liabilit ies 296.28 
Total 1.4.682.22 

As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021 

Fair value Fair value At amortised Fair value Fair value through At 
through profit through other cos t through profit other amortised 
and loss (FVPL) comprehensive and loss (FVPL) comprehensive cost 

income in<:ome (FVOCI) 
(fVOCI) 

1,057.24 . 
2,526.02 . 
2,271.66 0.10 

5,440.61 . 
187.36 . 
649.43 . 
~~l.09 

1,0!i.7,24 11,226. 17 . 0 .10 

18,034.25 . 
159.43 
376.44 . . 0 .12 

816.42 0.10 
10 ... 06.54 . 0 ,42 
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(formerly known as NS OA·ymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

(i) f'air value hierarchy 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that arc (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed 
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An 
explanation of each level follows below the table. 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total 
- recurring fair value measurements 

/\sat March 31, 2023 
Financial assets 
Financial lnveslmenls at FVPL 
Listed eoui tv investments 630.80 . 630.80 
Total financial assets 630.80 . 630.80 
Financial liabilities . . . 

As a t March 31, 2022 
Financial assets 
Financial Investments at FVPL 
Listed eQuity investments I 057,24 . 1,057,24 
Total financial assets 1,057.24 . 1,057.24 
Financial liabilities . 

As at April I , 2021 
Financial assets 
Financial Investments at 1-VPL 
Listed eauitv investments . 
Total financial assets 
Financial liabilities . . 

Assets and liabilities which are measured at Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed 
/\sat March 31, 2023 
Financial assets 
Securi ty Deposits 98.55 98.55 
Non Cunrcnl Bank deposits . 356.63 :l56.6:l 
Total financial assets " ~~. 18 "~~. 18 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings . 11,47Q.Ol 1:t ,A.~ 0 .01 
Total financial liabilities 1·~.479.01 13,479 .01 

As at March 3 .1, 2022 
Financia] assets 
Security Deposits 187.36 187.36 
Non Current Bank dcoosils MQ,43 649.43 
Total financial assets . 8'.<6.70 8'.<6.70 
Financial liabilities 
Horrowin~s . 18,0~d.25 18 034.25 
Total financial liabilities 18,0'.U.2~ 18 OCld.2~ 

As at April 1, 2021 

Financial assets . . 
Total financial assets . . 
Financial liabilities . 
Total financial liabilities 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 

(formerly known as NS 0>.'Yrnoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year e.nded March :11, 202:1 

(All amounts in lNR lakhs, unless othetwise stated) 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 
Level t: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial 
assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1. 

Level 2:The fair value of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined us ing valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and 
rely as little as possible on entity-specific es timates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 

(ii) Commentary: 
(a) The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances and other current financial assets and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short­
term nalure. The fair value of non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabilities also approximates its carrying value. 

(b) The fair values for security deposits were calculated based on cash nows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs 
including eountcrpartyeredit risk. 

(c) The non-current borrowings arc classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk. 
(d) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 

32 Financial Risk Management 
The Company's activi ties expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company"s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analy,e 
the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly lo renccl 
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables. 
(i) Risk management 
Credit risk is managed on Company basis. For banks and financial institutions, only independently ra ted parties with a good ratings are accepted. 
The Company assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into at-count its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set 
by the board. 

(ii) Impairment of financial assets 
The Company primarily has trade receivables for sale of service that are subject to lhc expected credit loss model. While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impair ment requirements of Ind AS 109, the identified 
impairment loss was immaterial. 

·rradc receivables 
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. 

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates arc 
adjusted to rcnect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. 

Trade receivables arc written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan 
with the Company, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 365 days past due. 
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previous)y wriLten off are credited against the same line item . 

.. 
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Loss allowance as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 was determined as follows for both trade receivables and contract asset• Wlder the simplified approach: 

Outstandin11 for the followin11 oeriods from the due date 
As at March 31, 2023 Unbilled Not Due Less Than 6 6 Months - 1 1-2 Yea.r 2-3 Year More than 3 Year 

Months Year 
Gross CarryinR Amount of Trade Receivable I 069.28 989.00 I 180.71 34.85 - 2.:1;; 
Exoected Loss Rate 0.21% 0.42% 1.16% 34.0096 100.0096 100.00% 100.0096 
Exoec1ed Credit loss 2.22 4 , IJ 11,64 11.8.s 2.'lS -
CarIYin2 amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) I 067.o6 984.89 1,167.07 n.oo - -

Outstandin11 for the followln11 oeriods from the due date 
As at March 31, 2022: Unbilled Not Due Less Than 6 6 Months-, 1- 2 Year 2 -3 Year Morethan3Year 

Months Year 

Gross Carrvine Amount of Trade Receivable :l60.51 1.701,Q-1 466.45 10.00 11.8• 
F..xoected Loss Ra te 0.2196 0.42% 1.16% 23,4596 100.00% 100.00% 100.0096 
Exnected Credit loss 0.7< 7.08 S.10 2.56 11.Ss -
Carrvinl1' amount of trade receivables (net of imnairmcnt) ooq.n 1,606.86 461.o6 8.14 -

Reconciliation ofloss allowance provision of trade receivables 

Particulars AmoWlt 
Loss allowance on April 1 2021 -
Loss allowances of me<2ed subsidiary as on appointed date 14.2 1 

Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 13.42 
Receivables wri11en off during the year as uncollectible -
Unused amount reversed -
Loss allowance on March ·:t t 2022 2 7.63 
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profi t or loss during the year 6.54 
Receivables wri llen off during the year as uncollectible -
Unused amount reversed -
Loss allowance on March ·u :.102·< 'U,1'7 

Total 

1,276,IQ 

34.17 
1,242.02 

Total 

2,«1.M 

27.61 
2.s26.02 
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(All amounts in lNR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

(b) Uquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of com milted credit 
facili ties to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. 

( i ) flnancinK arrangements 
The Company docs not have any undrawn borrowing facility at the end of reporting period. 

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities 
The table below prO\odes details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities: 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities l..ess than 
6 · 12 months Between t - 2 Between 2 • 5 Over5years Total six months l,•ears lvears 

At March 31, 2023 
Borrowings 1,203.38 1,944.08 4430.67 11,076.78 . 18,654.91 
Lease liabilities 68.52 68.52 103.28 28.80 269.12 
Trade Payables 662.77 662.77 
Other Financial liabilities 288.18 8.10 206.28 
Total 2,222.8<; 2 ,020. 70 ... ~·>->.Q<; u , 10 5 .58 19,88'>.0 8 
At March 31, 2 0 2 2 

Borrowings 5,730.22 1,039.75 3,147.46 15,507.45 25,424.88 
Lease liabilities 79.46 25.32 50.65 16.88 172.31 
Trade Payables 376.44 . 376-44 
Other Financial liabilities 8 .. 2-'.17 4-0!i . 806.42 
Total 7,0 18.dQ t ,0 6 Q. 12 '>, 198. 11 1!i,!i2 d.'.l'.l 26,810.0!i 
At April 1, 2021 

Trade Payables O.l2 0. 12 
Other Financial liabilities 0.10 - . o.so 
Total 0 . '12 0.42 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscountcd cash flows. Ila lances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
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(c) Markel Risk 

a ) Foreign exchange risk 

i) f"oreign currency risk exposure 
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash nows of a financial instrument will nuctuatc because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has transactions with foreign parties and is exposed to 
foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency sales, purchases, primarily with respect lo t:UR, USD, GBP, AED, CAD. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities 
denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency (INRJ at the year end. 

The Company's exposure lo foreign currency risk at the end of the period arc expressed in INR, is given in the table below. The amounts represent only the financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other 
than the functional currency of the Company. 

The fore.ign currency outstanding balances that have not been hedged by any derivative instrument or otherwise are as follows: 

March 3 1, 2023 March 31, 2022 Aoril 1. 2021 
Particulars Foreign Foreign Amount t'orcign Amount Foreign Amount 

Currency Currency (In Rupees Currency (In Rupees Currency (In Rupees 
Denomination Amount lakhs) Amount lakhs) Amount lakhs) 

(in lakhs) (in lakhs) (in lakhs) 

~ 
Trade Receivables USD 20.16 1,057.83 15.84 1,200.69 -

EUR 0.22 19.41 0.19 t6.15 -
GBP 0. 12 12.59 0.21 20.88 
Af'.0 0.01 0.16 1.45 29.99 

Liabilities CBl 
Trade Payables USD 0.67 55.01 0.14 10.55 

EUR 0.02 t.59 0 .01 0.73 -
GBP 0.02 1.53 - -
CAD - 0.05 2.80 

Net Expo•ure to foreign risk [A· BJ 
USD 19.49 t,602.82 15.70 J,l90,l4 -
EUR 0.20 17.82 0.18 15.42 
GBP 0.11 lt.06 0 .2 1 20.88 
AED 0.01 0.16 1.45 29.99 
CAD - (o.osl (2.80) 

(u) Sensitivity 
The sensitivity of profil or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and the impact on other components or equity arises from foreign 
forward exchange t..'Ontracls and foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash now hedges. 

USD sensitivit 
INR/USD - increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1%) 
INR/USD - decrease by t% (31 March 2022 - t% 

F.UR sensitivity 
INR/EUR - increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1%) 
INR/EUR - df!_crease by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1% 

GBP sensitivity 
INR/GBP - increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - t%) 
lNR/GBP - decrease by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1%) 

Impact on profit after tax (Amount) Impact on other components of equity (Amount) 

March 31, 2023 I March 31, 2022 I April 1, 2021 March 31, 2023 I March 31, 2022 JApril 1, 2021 
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b) Cash flow and fair va.Iue interest rate risk 

The Company docs not have any borrowings having variable interest rate, hence there is no interest rate risk due to rate variation. 

c) Price risk 
(a) Exposure 

The Company's exposure 10 equity securities price risk arises from invesimcms held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit or loss (see note 10). 

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company. 

The majority of the Company's equity investments are publicly traded. 

(b) Sensitivity 

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases or the index on the group's equity a nd profit for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased by 5% or decreased by 5% 
with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index. 

Impact on profit after tax (Amount) 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

increase in 5% (March 31, 2022- 5%) 31.54 52.86 

decrease in 5% (March 31, 2022- 5%) (31.54) (52.86) 

Profit for the period would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity securities classified as at [air value through profit or loss. 

c) Hedging Activity 

The Company docs not have any derivative contracts and hence all the foreign currency receivable and payable are exposed to foreign currency nuctuation 

33 Capital Risk Management 

Kisk management 
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to: 
• safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 
• Maintain an optimal capi tal structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

. 

In order 10 maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid 10 shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt, the Company monitors capital on the 
basis of the following gearing ratio: 
net debt (total bcrrowings and lease liabilities net or cash and cash equivalents) and liquid investments 

Net Debt equity ratio As on March 31, As on March 3 1, As on Apri.l 1, 2021 
2023 2022 

Net debt Snc:::n.ld ld 86A.78 {0.10) 
Total eouitv 
Net debt to total eouitv ratio 

(4.~l~.6~) (6,••8.o•J (o.•2) 
(2.08) (2.~~) O,'>'> 
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34 Related party disclosures 

a2 Subsidiaries 
Name of the Entity 

Nelscribes, Inc. - United States 
lnrea Research Solutions Private Limited 
Netscribes Global Pte. 1.td. - Singapore 

b) Key management personnel 
Sourav Mukherjee- DireclOr 
Yuvraj Ghara t- Director 

c) Key management personnel compensation 

1. Sourav Mukhe£i.ee - Director 
Partieular8 
Transactions durin11 year 
Remuneration 11 

Balances as at year end 
Remuneration Payable 

2. Yuvr3i Gharat - Director 
ParticuJars 
Transactions during year 
Remuneration ii 

Balances as at year end 
Remuneration Payable 

Nature of relationship with the 
Company 

Wholly owned subsidiary 
Wholly owned subsidiary 
Wholly owned subsidiary 

March 31, 2023 March.3!,,2022 

357,79 816.85 

195.02 236.36 

March~ March.3!,,2022 

33.50 51.44 

25.63 

# The liability for gratuity and leave encashmenl is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the Key Management Personnel is not 
ascer1ained separately and, therefore, not included in Key management personnel compensation. 

d) Transactions with Related parties 
The following transactions occurred with subsidiaries during the year: 

Particulars Netscribes Inc. lnrea Research Solutions Private Umited 
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022 March 31 2023 March :u 2022 

Receiving of services 
Sale of scl"\;ccs 162.18 99.83 

Interest received on Inter Corporate l.oan 0 .96 

Business Promotion 

l.oan repaid by related party 50.00 

Netscribes Global Pie. Ltd. 
March :u 202:l March :u 2022 

3.18 2.51 

. 
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e) Outstanding balances arising from sale of services and capital items 

The following balances arc outstanding at the end of the reponing period in relation to transactions with related panics: 

Ne tscribcs Inc. lnrea Reseatth Solutions Private Limited 
Particulars 

Income received in advance 

Other receivable as at Year End 

Investments 

• Amounts is below rounding off norm adopted by the Company. 

Note : 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1.95 54.52 

14.23 

33.25 33.25 

There are no loans, advances in the nature of loan given to or taken from directors or any other officers during the year. 

35 Segment Dis closure 

a. Operating segments 

April 1, :l021 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

. -

- 7.00 56.14 

The Company is principally engaged in a single business segment viz., providing research and intelligence solutions, investment and business research, market, competitive and 
social media intelligence and communication services to meet the tactical business objectives to its customers. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reponing provided 10 the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and 
makes strategic decisions and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. 

b. Gi!ographic lnformation 
Segment Revenue: Revenues arc attributable to individual geography based upon the location of the customers. 

Particulars For the year ended For the year 
M.arch 3 1, 2023 ended March 31, 

2022 

India 4,815.20 2,974.66 
Outside India 8,a98.1s .'i,08.<;.66 

13,313.55 8 ,0 6 0 .32 

s -- ·-·- ----- - d Liabir-· -
Particulars As on March 3 t , As on March J l , As on April t , 

202:~ 2022 202.1 

Segment Assets 
India 9,091.89 12 ,680.10 0.10 

Other countries 1,68Q.QQ l 267.71 . 
10,781.88 13,94 7.St 0.10 

Segment liability 
India 15,039.38 20,271.76 0.42 
Other countries sS.11 14.08 

•~ ,00?.~1 20,28~.8,t. 0.A2 

April 1, 

2 0 :u 

-

Netscrlbes Global Pte. Ltd. 
March 3l, 2 0 23 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

. 

. . -

1. Revenue within India include rcnderin~ or services in India to customers located within India; and revenues outside India include rendering of services outside India to customers located outside India. 
2. Segment Assets includes alt assets including deferred Tax assets and right of use assets 
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36 Revenue from Contract with Customer 

a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

The Company derives revenue from the sale of services and following table shows disaggregation by geographic market: 

Particulars 
Vear ended 

March 31, 202.3 
Research and related services 

- India 
. Outside India 

4,815.20 
8,498.35 

13,313.55 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

2,974.66 
5,085.66 

8 ,06o.32 

. Revenue from top live customers are Rs. 7,337.26 Lakhs (March 31, 2023) and Rs. 4,981.08 Lakhs (March 31, 2022) which represents 55.11 % and 61.80 % of 
the total sales in the respective year of the Company. 

b) Reconciliation ofrc,·enuc recognised with contract price 

Particulars 

Contract price 
u,ss: Adjustments to contract price 

c) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers 

Parti.culars 
Current Contract Liabilities related to revenue 
Trade Receivables (including unbilled) 

d) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

13,313.55 

13,313,55 

March 31, 2023 
14.35 

3,242.02 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

8,o6o.32 

8,060.32 

March 31t 2022 
186.85 

2,526.02 

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reponing period relates to carried forward contract liabilities. 

Particulars 

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year 

c) Unsatisfied performance obligations 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

186.85 

186.85 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

176.82 

176 .82 

The contracts are for periods of one year or less and are billed as per terms of the contract. As permitted under Ind AS 115, the transaction price allocated to these 
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. 
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37 Taxation 

{a) Income tax expense 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Current tax on Profit for the year 
Tax impact of earlier years 
Total current tax expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax (recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss) 
Deferred tax (recognised in Other comprehensive income) 
Total deferred tax charge/ {credit) 

income tax expense 

{b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit muJtiplied by India tax rate 

Particulars 

Profit from operations before income tax expense 

Statutory Income Tax Rate 
Tax on Book profits 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating ta'<able income: 
Corporate social responsibility expenses disallowed in lax 

Impairment of Investment in subsidiary 
Special bonus not considered as a deduction for Computation of Income under Income Tax Act. 
Effeet on income taxable under different head al different tax rate 
Tax impact of earlier years not forming part of tax computation 

Others 
Total 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

701.10 
0.17 

701.27 

25.26 
(4 .11) 

21.15 

722.42 

For the year ended 
March 3 1, 2023 

2,749.34 
25. 17% 

692.00 

t8.88 
12.37 

(4.87) 
0 .17 
3 .87 

722.42 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

430.13 
(22.90) 

407.23 

89.29 
(1.36) 

87.93 

495.16 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

l,496.90 
25.17% 

376.74 

lt.84 

114.89 
l0.79 

(22.90) 
3.80 

495.i6 
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Cc) Deferred Tax Assets/ Uabililies 
The balan~ comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Particulars All al March31 2023 
Aas<u Liabilities 

Property, Plant and F.Quipmen, and lnlan•ible assets sa.88 
AJlowances ror Expected credit loss 8.60 
Unwinding interest on borrowing 
Emolovee benefit obli2ations 110.Sa 

Lease Liabilitv Cnet or Rillht of use assets) 1.00 
Interest in excess of1imit paid to non resident debenture holders 86."4 
Others 11,42 

Total 271.24 

Net Deferred Tax Assets 144.14 

Particulars Property, Plant Lease Liability (net Others 
and Equipment of Right of use 
and Intangible aHets) 

assets 

As al Aoril 1 2021 
Acquired through Business Combination (48.49) (10.57) 
on 6th Seotember 2021 

Char,.cd/(crcdilcd) 
- to orofit or loss 21,12 2.94 
- to other comcrehensive income 

direct Iv to eouitv 
As at March ·u 2022 (27,s,J C?.6·, J 
Char,.ed/(crcdilcd) 
- to crofil or loss (24.51) 5.64 
• to other comorehcnsive income 
• directlv to eouitv 
As at March 31 2023 (51.88) (1.00) 

127.10 

127.10 

(2.74) 

(0.58) 

Cs.•,2) 

(8.10) 

(11.42) 

A1 al March :U 2022 Aa at April 1 2021 

AJJscu Uabilitics Assets Liabilities 
27.'7 

6.os 
138.46 

171.Q4 

7.6, 
86."4 
3 .32 

303,75 138,46 
165.29 

Allowances for Unwinding Employee beoefil lnlcreAl in Total 
l!xpccted credil inlerest on obligations CXCCH of limit 

loss borrowing paid to non 
resident 

debenture 
holden 

(3.58) (187.84) (253.22) 

(3,38) 138,46 17,26 (86.54) 89,29 
(1.s6l (l.'.t6) 

. . 
(6,n• 1'<8.46 '171.nA 186.•• ( 165.29) 

(1.65] (11.36) 65.24 25,26 
. (4.11) (4.11) 

. 
(8.60) l2?.10 (110.81) (86.~41 (144.14) 
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38 Employee Benefits 

A) Defined Benefit Plans 
Post employment obligations: 
Gratuity· Defined benefit plan 
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible 
for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary 
multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. This defined benefit 
plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk and market (investment) risk. 

B) Balance sheet amounts - gratuity 
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligations over the year are as follows: 

Particulars Mardi 31, 2023 Mardi 31, 2022 

i Changes in defined benefit obli113tions 
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 219.94 218.69 
Interest cost n.33 9.29 
Current service cost 35.56 34.68 
Benefit Paid from the fund (53.40) (53.27) 
Compcnents of actuarial gain/losses on obligations 

Due to change in financial assumptions (u.64) (5.07) 
Due to change in demographic assumption 
Due to experience adjustments 31.00 15.62 

Present value of oblig;,tion as at the end of the year 232.79 219.94 

ii Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets 
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 89.97 106.59 
Interest Income 4.64 4.53 
Contributions by employer 102.98 31.o8 
Benefit Paid from the Fund (53.41) (53.27) 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan assets 3.03 1.04 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1.47.21 89.97 

iii Net employee benefit expenses for the year 
Current service cost 35.56 34.68 
Net interest cost 6.69 4.76 
Net employee benefit expenses for the year II 42.25 39.44 

Other Comprehcns:ivc lncome for the CUJ"t"C:nt year 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the year 19.37 10.56 
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (3.03) (1.04) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the C\l.n"el1l year tJ 16.34 9.52 

iv Category of fair value of plan asset 
Policy of insurance 147.2 1 89.97 

V The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans arc as follows: 
Present value of funded obligations 232.79 219.94 
Fair value of plan assets 147.21 89.97 
Net Liability/(Asset) 85.58 129.97 
Unfunded plans -
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 85.58 129.97 
Current 85.58 129.97 
Non Current -

# Comparative amount represents annual amount for the penod Apnl 1, 202110 March 31, 2022 
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vi 

vii 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: 

Rate of Discounting 7.2096 5.1596 
Rate of Salary Increase 9.0096 p.a. 9.0096 
Rate of Employee Turnover 33.0096 p.a. for all 33.00% p.a. for all 

service groups. service groups. 

Sensitivity Analysis 
Impact on defined benefit obligation due 10 change in assumptions 

Di'icount rate Sensitivity 
Increase by 196 (5.17) (5.30) 
Decrease by 196 5.49 5.65 

Salary KJ'Owth rate Sensitivity 
Increase by 196 5.29 5.37 
Decrease by 196 (5. 10) (5.15) 

Employee Turnover rate Sensitivity 
Increase by 196 (1.53) (1.96) 
Decrease by 196 I.SQ 2.05 

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring al the end of the reporting period, while 
holding all other assumptions constanl. 
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions 
wou1d occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be oorrelated. 
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method 
at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheel. 
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 

viii Risk E.q,osurc 
Through iis defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below: 

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the 
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset. 

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the 
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability. 

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on government bonds. lf the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in Lndia, it is funded through 
insurance managed funds. 

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk. 

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the asselS. Although 
probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines. 

C) In view of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others v/s . The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal' and 
outcome of the review petition filed by Surya Roshni Ltd against the SC judgement, the Company deducted provident fund on basic wages as defined in Employees' 
Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 w.e.f. April 1, 2018. The Company has made provision aggregating to Rs. 57.14 Lakhs for the cases where 
provident fund was not deducted basis the above judgement. 

0) Other long Term Employee Benefits 

Compensated absences: 
The leave obligations cover the company's liability for leave. The amount of the provision of Rs. 151.53 lakhs (as at March 31, 2022: Rs. 137.70 lakhs) is presented as 
current, since the company does not have an unconditional right 10 defer settlement for any of these obligations. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using 
the Projected Unit Credit method) by an Independent actuary at the end of each year. 

E) Defined Contribution plan 
The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of t296 of basic salary and 
employee state insurance fund as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the 
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period 1owards 
defined contribution plan is Rs. 148.23 Lakhs (~larch 31, 2022 - Rs. 100.33 Lakhs). 
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39 Employee Stock option plan 

As at March 31, 2022, the Company has the following stock option plans for employees. 
2004 Employee stock option plan (hereinafter referred as "Plan A") and 2015 Employee stock option plan (hereinafter referred as 
"Plan B") 

The plans entitles senior employees to purchase shares in the Company at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with vesting conditions; all 
exercised options shall be settled by issue of equity shares of the Company. As per the plan, holders of vested options are entitled to purchase one equity 
share for every option at an exercise price of lNR 10. 

(a) Below is the summary of options granted under the plan: 

Particulars March 3.11 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

Plan A 
Opening balance 2,500 890.702 890,702 
Granted during the year - 2,500 -
Exercised during the year (10,780) -
Expired during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - (879,922) -
ClosinJ?. Bala.nee 2,500 2,500 890,702 
Vested and exercisable 5.'iO - 890702 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Aprill, 2021 

Plan B 
Opening balance 18,000 42,919 42,919 
Granted during the year - 18,000 

Exercised during the year (24,919) 
Expired during the year - -
Forfeited during the year (3,000) (18,000) 
ClosinJ?. Balance 15,000 18,000 42,919 
Vested and exercisable 4.S:OO - 42,91Q 

The weighted average share price al the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2023 - Rs. 10. 

(b) Share options outstanding al the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices: 

Plan Gra.nt date Expiry date Accounting Exercise Share options as at Share options as Share options as 
Method priec March 31, 2023 at March 31, at April 1, 2021 

2022 

A 01-Nov-2021 14 years from the date Fair Value 10 2,500 2,500 890,702 
of option's vesting 

B 01-Nov-2021 14 years from the date Fair Value lO 15,000 18,000 42,919 
of option's vesting 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end 14 years 14 years 14 years 
of period 
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(c) Measurement offa.ir values 
The estimated grant -date fair value of stock options granted under plan A is Rs. 163.67 and under plan 8 is Rs. 163.67 for the grants made on November 21, 
2021. The fair value at grant date is independenUy determined using the Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the 
option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the 
term of the option. 

The fair value of the options granted during the period ended March 31, 2022 and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the 
equity-setUed share based payment plans are as follows: 

Vcstin2 in 
November t , November t, November 1, 

2022 2023 2024 

Share price at grant dale 163.67 163.67 163.67 
Exercise price 10 10 10 
Expected volatility 35% 35% 34% 
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0% 
Expected tenure 8.01 9.01 10.01 

Risk-free interest rate (based on 2overnment bonds) 7% 7% 7% 

(d) Expense arising from share-based payment transactions 
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows : 

March ·u 202-. March.,, 2022 

Employee stock option plan expenses 11.82 7.96 
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40 Business Combinations 

During the Financial year 2021-22, the application for the scheme of merger by absorption (the "Scheme") of Netscribes (India) Private Limited ('NIPL') with the 
Company and their respective shareholders and creditors was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench ("NCLT, Mumbai") with appointed date as 
September 6, 2021 (the 'appointed date'). The Scheme was approved by the NCLT, Mumbai on December 2, 2022, which became effective on December 31, 2022 upon its 
filing with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Pursuant to which, Netscribes (India) Private Limited has been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed 
date of September 6, 2021. The accounting treatment pursuant to the Scheme has been given effect to from the appointed date in accordance with the 'Pooling of 
Interests' method laid down under Accounting Standard (AS) 14 'Accounting for Amalgamations' as prescribed in the Scheme. Since Ind AS is adopted by the Company, 
the figures for the year ended March 3 1, 2022, have been restated to give effect to the Scheme from Lhe appointed date which is also the date on which the Company 
acquired control of NIP!. by way of acquisition of majority shares in Nll'L The net Ind AS transition impact relating to period April 1, 2021 to September 5, 2021 relating 
to NIP !. is Rs. 18.93 lakhs. Accordingly the figures in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the prior year ended March 3 1, 2022 are not comparable to the figures for the 
year ended March 31, 2023. The amalgamation has resulted in recognition of negative Capital Reserve of Rs. 15,719.15 lakhs as at the appointed date. 

The merger is accounted in the books of the Company as follows: 
(i) The assets, liabilities and reserves of the Subsidiary have been merged with assets, liabilities and reserves of the Company at the carrying values on the appointed date; 
(ii) eliminated all Inter-Company balances standing as at appointed date; 
(iii) 10,103 equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid has been issued to the remaining 19.0896 shareholders of the Subsidiary as part of the purchase consideration 
amounting to Rs. 1.01 lakhs in the ratio of 3.95 :1000; 

(ii) Pursuant to step (i),(ii) and (iii) above, the negative capital reserve of Rs. 15,7 19.15 lakhs created, which is reported as capital reserve in the books of the Company as 
part of Reserve and Surplus. 

(a) Details of purchase consideration, the net assets merged and capital reserve are as follows: 

Purchase consideration AmOWlt 
Equity shares issued (10,103 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 1.01 

The assets, liabilities and reserve of NlPL as on the appointed date is as under: 

AmoWlt 
(Book va.lue as on 

September 6, 
2021) 

Assets acquired (A) 11,281.85 

Liabilities assumed (B) 1,604.36 

Reserves and Surplus 
Securities premium 168.95 
Capital redemption reserve 48.95 
Retained earnings 8,177.16 
Total (C) 8 ; <os .o6 

Net Assets acquired (A-8-C) 1,28 2.43 
Consideration paid 1.01 
Capital Reserve 1,281.42 

Elimination of Investment of subsidiary in the books against the capital reserve: 
Capital Reserve 1,281.42 
Investment in subsidiary ( 17,000.S7) 
Capital Reserve (15,719.1:,) 
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41 First time adoption oflnd AS 

Transition to Ind AS 

These are the Company's first standalone fi nancial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs wi th effect from April 1, 2022, with a transition 
date of April 1, 2021. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the first financial sta tements the Company has prepared under Ind AS. For all 
periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the previously applicable Indian 
GAAP (hereinafter referred to as "JGAAP"). 

The adoption of lnd AS has been carried out in accordance with lnd AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. lnd AS 101 requires that all lnd AS 
standards and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first Ind AS financial statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years 
presented. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statemenls which comply with lnd AS for year ended March 31, 2023, together with the comparative 
information as at and for the year ended March 31. 2022. The Company's opening Ind AS Balance Sheet has been prepared as at April 1. 2021, the date of transition 
to lndAS. 

ln preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2oo6 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act. An explanation of how 
the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes. 

A. Exemptions and e ><ceptions availed 
In preparing these tnd AS financial statements. the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The 
re.suiting difference between the carrying values of lhe assets and liabHities in the financial statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and IGAAP have been 
recognised directly in retained earnings. This note explains the adjustments made by the Company in restating its [GA.AP financial statements, including the Balance 
Sheet as at April 1, 2021 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

A.1 Ind AS optional exemptions 

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions applied in the transition from previous IGAAl' to Ind AS. 
A. 1. t. Deemed cos t 

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the canying value for all ofits property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets as recognised in 
the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the IGAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making 
necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities, if any. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure aU of its property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets at their IGAAP carrying value. 

A-1.2 Share based payment transactions 

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter not to apply Ind AS t02 .. Share based payment .. to equity instruments that vested before the date of transition to Ind AS and 
not to apply Ind AS102 to liabilities arising from the share based payment transactions that were settled before the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly the 
Company has elected to apply this Ind AS 102 to the equity instruments option that are unvested as at transition date and recognised liabilities only for such 
unvestcd options in these financial statements. 

A-1.3 lnvestmenlS in subs idiaries. 

On transition, Ind AS 101 allows an entity to treat canying cost as deemed cost for invesunents held in subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Company has elected to treat 
previous GAAP carrying amount as deemed cost for lls investments held in a subsidiary. 

A. 2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions 

The Company has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS which are mandatorily required under Ind AS mt: 

A-2. 1 Estimates 

On assessment of estimates made under the Previous GM.P financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise such estimates 
under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. 
lnd AS estimates as at April t, 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with (GAAP. The Company made estimates for 
following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under lGAAP: 

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model; 
· Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cosL 

A.2..2 Classification and measurement of financial assets 

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (debt instruments) on t.he basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at 
the date of transition to Ind AS. Consequently, the company has applied the above assessment for the classification of financial assets to be measured at amortised 
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. 

8: Reconciliations between IGAAP and lnd AS 

The following reconciliations provide the explanation and quantification oft.he differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to Jnd AS in accordance 
with Ind AS 1ol''First Time Adoption of Indian Accounti.ng Standards". 

(I) Reconciliation of total equity as al April 1, 2021 and March 31, 2022. 

(ii) Reconciliation or total comprehensive income for the year ended March 3 1, 2022. 

(iii) Impact of adoption of Ind AS on the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to confirm with the financial statements prepared under tnd AS. 
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Reconciliation of total equity 

Particulars Note Asal 
reference March 31, 2022 

Total equ.ity as per previous GAAP (3,047.40 ) 

Adjusbnents on transition to Ind AS: 
Adjustment on accounl of merger (4,141.61) 

Post merger changes in other equity of merged entity 

• Effect of Leases accounting as per IND AS 116 C(ii),C(iii) (18.58) 

- Effect of recognising financial liabilities al amortised cost C(v) 1,275-34 

- Effect of Fair value of Equity Instruments C(v) 23.89 

• Others (1.67) 

• Tax on Above Adjustments C (vii) (423.96) 

- Other Comprehens ive Income (Net of Tax) C(i) (4.04) 

Total equ.ity under Ind AS (6,338.03) 

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income 

Particulars Note For the year ended 
reference March •u , 2022 

Net profit as per previous GAAP (3,047.09) 

Merger Impact on profit 3,181.47 

Acljusbnents on transition to Ind AS: 
Effect of Leases accounting as per IND AS 116 C(ii) 6.72 

Effect of recognising financial liabilities at amortised cost C(v) 1,275.34 

Effe<.1 of Fair value of Equity Instruments C{v) 23.89 

Others (15.99) 

Tax on Above Adjustments C (vii) (423.96) 

Net Profit as per Ind AS 1,000.38 

Qther Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) C(iv) 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan obligations (net of tax) C(i) (4.04) 

Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 996.34 

Reconciliation of statement of cash flo ws for the year ended March 311 2022: 

Particulars 
Amount as per 
Previous GAAP 

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the year end as per Indian GAAP 
Net cash nows from operating activities (572.99) 

~et cash nows from investing activities (17,577.38 ) 

Net cash flows from financing activities 18,224.22 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equ.ivalents 73.85 

Cash and cash equ.ivalents as at April 01, 2021 0.10 

Cash & Cash Equivalent acquired during the merger . 

Cash and cash equ.i, '8.lents as at March 31, 2022 as per Ind AS 73.95 

C: Notes to first-time adoption: 

i: Remeasu.re.ments of post-employment benefit o bligations 

As at April 1, 

2021 

(0.32) 

. 

(0.32) 

Effect of 
Effect o f 

Merger 
transition 
to Ind AS 

1,715.63 

(2,Bo6-46) -
(678.71) . 

(1,769.54) 
. . 

3,967.25 . 

2, 197.71 

Under tnd AS. remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net 
defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of Statement of Profit and Loss. Under the IGAAP, these remeasurements were 
forming pan of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit before tax for the year ended March 31, 2022 increased by Rs 4.04 
lakhs (net of tax). There is no impact on the total equity as at ~ arch 311 2022. 

ii : Recognition of right of use assets and lease liability 

Under Ind AS 116, a lessee has an option to apply Ind AS 116 with full retrospective approaches wherein the Right of use assets and lease liability are measured as if 
Ind AS 116 has been applied since the start of the lease with the restatement of comparative figures presented in the financial statements. On the transition date the 
difference betw een lease liability and right of use assets is to be adjusted against the equity. Consequently, the lease liability is accounted as a finandal liability under 
Ind AS 109 . .. Financial instruments" and right of use asset is amortized over its useful life. 
Under IGAAP. the lessee recognised lease rentals under an Operating lease as an expense in the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. 
As a result of this change the profit for the year ended March 31, 2022 increased by Rs. 6.72 Lakhs and total equity as at March 31, 2022 decreased by Rs 18.58 
lakhs. 

iii : Fair valuation of Security d eposits 

Security deposits given for the leased assets are recognized at carrying value under the previous GAAP whereas as per Ind AS lease deposits arc recognised at fair 
value as at the date of inception. Accordingly the company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. 

The difference between the transaction value and the fair value has been recognised as Right-or-use assets. Interest on lease deposits is rcoognised over the period of 
the lease based on the incremental rate of borrowing of the lessee as the interest rates implicit in the leases are not easily ava ilable and the Right-of-use assets are to 
be amortised on a straight line basis. 

iv: Other comprehensive income 

Under Ind AS. all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or pennits 
otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 'other comprehensive income' 
includes remeasurcments of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehens ive income did not exist under IGAAP. 

Amount as 
per 
Ind AS 

1,142.64 

(20,383.84) 

17,545,51 

(1,695.69) 
0.10 

3,967.25 

2,271-.66 
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v: FinanciaJ 1.nstnune.nts 

(a) In accordance with Ind AS 109 •Financial Instruments", investments in quoted equity instruments are recognised at fair value through the statement of profit 
and loss at each reporting period. Consequently, the quoted equity investment recognised at lower of cost or fair value under the Previous GMP has been restated to 
fair value. Pursuant to which the gain/loss (net) has been recognised in profit and loss account as adjustment due to adoption of Ind AS. 

(b) In accordance with Ind AS 109 .. Financial lnstruments", premium payable on redemption, discount on issue, transaction costs on issue of debentures are 
required lo be considen.'Cl as effective finance costs and recognised in the statement of profit and loss using the effoctive interest rate. Consequently, transaction 
costs recognised directly in statement of profit and loss or amortised using a different approach under the Previous GAAP has been reversed and are now recognised 
through the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate. 

vi: Share based payment transactions 

Ind AS 101 pennits a first time adopter to apply Ind AS J02 to the equity instruments option that are unvested as at transition date and recognised liabilities only for 
such unvested options. Pursuant to which the Company has determined their obligation towards Employee stock options. 

vii: Deferred Tax on Ind AS acljustments 

In accordance with Ind AS 12, .. Income Taxes", the Company on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on temporary differences, i.e. based on balance 
sheet approach as compared to the earlier approach of recognising deferred taxes on timing differences , i.e. profit and loss approach. The tax impacts as above 
primarily represent deferred tax consequences arising out of Ind AS re-measurement changes. 
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

42 Contingent Liabilities 
There is no any contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2023 

43 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

(a) Basic earnings per share (In Rupees) 

(b) Diluted earnings per share (In Rupees) 

(c)Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share 
Particulars 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic earnings per share 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating diluted earnings per share 

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 
Particulars 

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic eaminf.S per share 
Adjustments for calcularion of diluted earnings per share: 

Employee Stock option plans 

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 
diluted earnings per share 

Year ended Yearend.ed 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

10,o62.21 4,976.25 

10,023.85 4,957.30 

Vear ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

2,022.81 1,000.38 

2,022.81 1,000.38 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

20,103 20,103 

n n 

20,180 20,180 

44 The Company has negative capital reserves pursuant to the merger of :-If PL which has impacted the net-worth of the Company as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023. 
Having regard to the profit from operation during the current year and previous year, approved business plans and cash now projections approved by the Board of Directors, 
the Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis and no adjustments have been made to write down the assets to net realisable value. 
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45 Additional Re~ulatory Information required by Schedule Ill. 

f Key financial 
Ratio N umerator 

Current Ratio (times) Current Assets 

Debt F.quity Ratio (times) Net Debt 

Denominator 

Current Liabilities 

Total equity 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times) Earnings available for Debt Debt Service 
service 

Return on Equity Ratio(%) Profit after tax Average shareholder's 
Equity 

Trade Receivables Turnover (times) Revenue from Operations Average Trade 
Receivables 

Trade Payables Turnover (limes) Adjusted Other i,;xpenses Average Trade 
(Refer note I below) Payables 

I 

Net Capital lumovcr Ratio (times) Revenue from Operations Working capital 
(Refer note 2 below) 

Ket Profit Ratio(%) Profit after lax Revenue from 
operations 

Return on Capital employed (96) Earning Before Interest & Capital employed 
Tax(EBIT) (refer note 4 below) 
(refer note 3 below) 

Return on Investment(%) EBIT Total assets 

Notes, 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

2.96 

(3.12) 

0.72 

-38% 

4.62 

4.15 

2.26 

15% 

54% 

4696 

Year ended %Variance 
March 31, 2022 

(refer Note 6 
below) 

1.79 65% 

(2.85) 10% 

1.83 -61% 

-31% 24% 

6.38 -28% 

3.54 17% 

1.53 48% 

12% 22% 

2796 101% 

23% 10496 

1. Adjusted other expenses = Other expenses - allowances for credit losses - expenditure for corporate social responsibility - impairrnenl of investment in subsidiary 

2. Working capital = current assets - current liabilities 

3. F.Urr = Profit before lax + Finance cost 

4. Capital employed = Shareholder's equity + Total Debt (current + non current borrowing) 

5. The Company is in business of rendering services and does not hold any inventory hence, inventory turnover ratio is not applicable. 

6. The ratios for year ended March 31, 2022 consider the amounts for profit and loss post merger effective September 6, 2021 and arc not annualised (refer Nole 40) 

Reason for Variance for change in 
ratios by more than 25% as compared 
to previous year 

Improved current ratio on account of 
increase in investments and bank balances. 

Reduction in ratio is due lo principal and 

interest repayment during the current year. 

Reduction is due to increase in revenue and 
better receivable management 

Due to increase in revenue 

Increase is due to increase in profit and 
repayment of debt. 

Increase is due to increase in profit and 
repayment of debt out or cash generated 
from operations. 
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Notes forming part o f the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

( ii) Wilful defaulter 

The Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(iii) Details of Benami property held 
No proceedings have been initiated on o r are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibit ion) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and Rules made thereunder. 

( iv) Borrowing secured against current assets 
The Company does not have any borrowings from financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the current year and previous year. 

( v) Disclosure of Re lationship with Struck off Companies 
The Com pany has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956. 

( vi) Compliance with number o f layers of companie.~ 
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules , 2017. 

(vii) Compliance with approved scheme(s ) o f arrangements 
The Company has entered into scheme of arrangement during the year 20 21-22 which was approved by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) during the year and became 
effective on December 31, 2022 upon filing with Registrar of Companies. The Company has complied with the Scheme of Arrangement. (refer Note 40) 

(viii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and s hare premium 
The Company has not adva nced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities [Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise) that the Compa ny shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

(i") Undisclosed Income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in lhe tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 1, that has not been recorded in 
the books of account. 

(x ) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

(xi) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and inves tment property 
The Company has not revalued its properly, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year. 

(x.ii) Title deeds of immovable properties 
The Company does not have any immovable property during the year. 

(xiii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 
There are no c harges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

4 6 Name Change 

Pursuant to approved Scheme, the Company's name has changed from NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited to Netscribes Data & Insights P.rivate Limited. The Board 
resolution in this respect was passed on December 19, 2022, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to effectuate the name change as per the approved 
Scheme. Subsequent to the board resolution, the Company filed name change application with Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on December 24, 2022 for seeking their 
approval for the name change and the same was approved by the MCA on Decemcber 29, 2022. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

~~]~-~' "''~"~~'"' 

Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

For and o n behalf of the Board of Directors 

1~~ rector iec l 
IN: 00085678 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

W-J· 
Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited (formerly known as 
NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Netscribes Data & 
Insights Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its 
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") 
(refer Note 42 to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the 
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated 
financial statements"). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, and consolidated total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in 
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements" 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India 
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, 
other than the unaudited financial information as certified by the management and referred 
to in sub-paragraph 14 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

4. 

Price Wacerhouse Charcered Accouncancs LLP, Nesco IT Building III, 8th Floor, Nesco IT Park, Nesco Complex, Gate No. 3 
Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 063 
T: +91 (22) 61198000, F: +91 (22) 61198799 

Registered office and Head office: 11-A. Vishnu Digamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan, Gate No 2, t st Floor, New Delhi· t 10002 

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a limited Liability Partnership _with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001) 
with ef fect fro m July 25, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number 1s 012754N/N500016 (ICAI reg1strat1on 
number before conversion was 012754N) 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited (formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors 
Private Limited) 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Page 2 of9 

Other Information 

5. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Director's report but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we arc required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

6. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the 
Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and arc free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

8. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group arc responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

9. Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding 
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of 
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures arc 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent augitors. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. ~ \lMlLred ·, 
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11. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such 
other entity included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

13. The comparative financial information of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2021 included in these consolidated 
financial statements are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the 
years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 prepared in accordance with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), which were audited by the predecessor 
auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinion vide reports dated May 27, 2022 and May 31, 
2021 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in 
accounting principles adopted by the Group on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by 
us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

14. We did not audit the financial information of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial information 
reflect total assets of Rs. 105.93 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 90.50 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, 
total revenue of Rs. 184.17 lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other 
comprehensive income) of Rs. 9.01 lakhs and net cash flows (outflow) amounting to Rs. 13.04 
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
These financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the 
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates 
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in 
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information 
insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial 
information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 
by the Management, these financial information are not material to the Group. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect 
to the financial information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

15. As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO 
2020"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 
of the Act, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included in the CARO 
2020 report issued in res peel of the standalone financial statements of the Holding Company 
which is included in these Consolidated Financial Statements. Further, in our opinion, and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, CARO 2020 is not applicable to 
any of the subsidiary companies included in these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report arc in 
agreement with the relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in 
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexurc A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial 
position of the Group. 

ii. The Group was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable 
losses on long-term contract. The Group did not have any derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2023. 

111. During the year ended March 31, 2023, there were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India. 
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iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which arc 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
(Refer Note 46 (vii) to the consolidated financial statements). 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which arc 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which arc material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such 
subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 46 (vii) to the 
consolidated financial statements). 

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 
of Rule 11(c) contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Holding Company, its subsidiary company, has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year. 

VI. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), 
which provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and 
related matters in the accounting software used by the Group, is applicable to the 
Group, only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting 
under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended), is currently not applicable. 
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17. The provisions of Section 197 read ·with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public 
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the 
Group. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 6, 2023 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Firm ij."on Number: 012754N/N500016 

Ali Akbar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 117839 
UDIN: 23117839BGSNHE4547 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of 
and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as "the Holding Company"), as of that date. Repo1ting under clause (i) of sub 
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements is not applicable to the subsidiary company 
incorporated in India namely Inrea Research Solutions Private Limited, pursuant to MCA 
notification GSR 583(E) dated June 13, 2017. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, which is a company incorporated in India, 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 
respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls system 
with reference to consolidated financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is a company incorporated in India, has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 6, 2023 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N / N500016 

A];Akb~ 
Partner 
Membership Number: 117839 
UDIN: 23117839BGSNHE4547 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private limited) 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right of use asset 
Goodwill 
Other Intangible Assets 
Other Financial Assets 
Tax assets (net) 
Other non current assets 
Total Non-current assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 

i) Investments 
ii) Trade receivables 
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 
v) Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total Current assets 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 
Total Equity 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Lease liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Total Non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease liabilities 
iii) Trade payables 

a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
b) Total outstanding dues other than (iii) (a) above 

iv) Other financial liabilities 
Contract liabilities 
Provisions 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Other current liabilities 
Total Current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

Notes 

4(a) 

5 
4(h) 
4(h) 

6 

7 
8 

9 
10 

11(a) 
n(h) 

12 
13 

14 
15 

16 

5 
37 

17 

5 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 

As on March As on March 
31, 2023 31, 2022 

356.94 424.35 
236.25 129.13 

3,409.75 3,409.75 
5,477-87 6,407.69 

453.16 799.18 
537.76 298.87 

2.54 9.39 
10,474.28 11,478.36 

630.80 1,057.24 
3,269.18 2,535,47 
4 ,215.53 2,365.14 

324.39 5,442.57 
6.80 188.94 

599.42 463.25 
9,046.12 12,052.61 

19,520.40 23,530.97 

2.01 2.01 
3,197.17 1,798.67 

3,199.18 1,800.68 

11,959.01 13,569.25 
125.01 63.51 

1,210.00 1,420.27 
13,294.02 15,053.03 

1,520.00 4,465.00 
119.15 95,92 

148.01 30,47 
527.08 370.78 
296.28 836.42 

12,40 184,46 
294.25 324.81 

2.98 1.74 
107.05 367.66 

3,027.20 6,677.26 
16,321.22 21,730.29 

19,520.40 23,530.97 

The above Consolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number. 012754N/N500016 

AliAAb~ 
Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

i~ e~jee • 
rector 
N: 00085678 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

As on April 
1, 2021 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

0.10 
-
-
-

0.10 
0 .10 

1.00 
(1.32) 

(0.32) 

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
0.12 
0.30 
-
-
-
-

0.42 
0.42 
0.10 

Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 



Nctscribcs Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Other Gains / (Losses) 
Total Income 

Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Other expenses 
Total Expenses 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 
Total tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans Obligations 
Income tax relating to above 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings Per Equity Share (In Rupees): 
Basic 
Diluted 

Notes 
For the yea r ended 

March 31, 2023 
24 13,332.36 

25(a) 112.64 
25(b) 322.37 

13 767.37 

26 5,384.95 
27 2,242.62 
28 1,410.62 
29 2,839,49 

11,877.68 

1889.69 

37 702.92 
37 (206.16) 

496.76 

1,3Q2.93 

(16.34) 
37 4.11 

(12.23) 

1,380.70 

45 6,928.97 
45 6,902.55 

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

8,071.69 
149.77 
164.70 

8 386.16 

3,764.46 
1,673.15 
882.00 

1,405.27 
7,724.88 

661.28 

408.93 
(122.07) 
286.86 

374.42 

(5.40) 
1.36 

(4.04) 

370.38 

1,862.53 
1,855.39 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number. 012754N/ N500016 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Af·~-W Partner 
Membership No: u7839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

_j~ •~ ·cc .,.. 

k rector 
DIN:00085678 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

Yuvr.tj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 



Netscribes Data & Insiehts Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Notes No. of Shares 
As at April 01, 2021 10,000 
Chane.e in eauitv share caoital 14 10,103 
As at March 31, 2022 20.103 
Chan.e.e in eauitv share capital 14 -
As at March 31, 2023 20.103 

8. Other equity (refer note 15) 

Amount 
1.00 

I.OJ 

2.01 
-

2.01 

Reserves and Surulus 

Debenture Share options Foreign 
Retained 

Redemption outs tanding Currency 
Earnings 

Reserve account 
Translation 

Reserve 

As at April 1, 2021 (1.32) - - -
Acquisition during the year (refer Note 40) (28.82) - - -
Profit for the year 374-42 - - -
Items of other comprehensive income recognised 
directly in retained earnings 

- Remeasurements of defined benefit plan obligations (5-40) - - -

- Income tax relat ing to above 1.36 - - -
Gain on relinquishment of ESOPs (refer Note 39) 1,428-44 - - -
Employee stock options expenses (refer Note 39) - - 7.96 -

Additions during the year - - - 22.03 
As at March 31, 2022 1.768.68 7.96 22.03 
Profit for the year 1,392.93 - - -
Items of other comprehensive income recognised 

directly in retained earnings 
- Remeasurements of defined benefit plan obligations (16.34) - -
- Income tax relating to above 4.11 - -

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (1,453.50) 1,453.50 -
Employee stock options expenses (refer Note 39) - - 11.82 
Additions during the year - - ~.98 
As at March 31, 2023 1 6'l!,.88 1 "~"' -"0 19.71S 21S.01 

The above Consolidated Statement o f changes in equity should be read in conjunction with t he accompanying notes. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: J une 6, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

{~ 
DIN: 00085678 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

Total Other 
equity 

(1.32) 
(28.82) 
374.42 

(5-40) 
1.36 

1,428-44 
7.96 

22.03 
1,798.67 
1,392.93 

(16.34) 
4.11 

-
11.82 
5.q8 

3,197.17 

@),J· 
Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended Marclt 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled) 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit before Tax 
Adjusbnents for: 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 
Interest Income 
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss 
Net (Gain) / Loss on Sale/ Disposal of Property plant and equipment 
Net (gain)/ loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 
Allowances for Expected Credit Losses 
Export incentive receivable written off 
Dividend income from investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Interest on Non Convertible Debentures (net of origination fees) 
Interest on shortfall of advance tax 
Interest on Lease Liability 
Employee Stock option expense 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets 
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets 
(Increase) / decrease in other non current assets 
Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabilities 
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 
Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities 
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 

Cash flow from operations 
Income Taxes Paid (net) 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 
Payment for Purchase of Property plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of Property plant and equipment 
Payment for Purchase of Intangible Assets 
Payment for purchase of non current investments, net of cash acquired (refer Note 40) 
Payment for purchase of current investments 
Proceeds from sale of current investments 
(Investments in)/ Proceeds from maturity of non current ftxed deposits 
Interest received 
Dividend received 
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares 
Proceeds from issue of Non Convertible Debentures 
Repayment of Debentures 
Principal element of lease payments 
Interest paid 
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Non Cash Investing and Financing activities 
- Acquisition of right of use assets 
-Settlement for Merger of subsidiary through the issue of Shares 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of the following: 
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11 (a)) 
Bank Balances: 
- In Current Accounts 
- In Exchange Earner's Foreign Currency Account 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

The above Consolidated statement of cash nows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

[n terms of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Srm ... ;~ "'"N/K;ooo,o 

AJiAkbar 
Partner 
Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: J une 6, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

1,889.69 

1,410.62 

(6.61) 
(49.75) 
(35.So) 

4.41 
(110.50) 

6.54 
149.22 
(11.73) 
(0.61) 

2,214.73 
2.18 

22.11 

11.82 
5,496.32 

(724.17) 
92.74 

( 136.17) 
6.85 

(540.15) 
294.87 

(172.06) 
(46.90) 

(260.61) 

4 ,010.72 

(942.72) 
~.o68.oo 

(296.00) 
13.49 

(20.78) 

(1,488.53) 
2,034.10 
5,244.41 

216.32 
11.73 

!<.714,74 

(4,465.00) 
(140.27) 

(2,327.08) 
(6-0·>2.:t5) 

1,850.39 
2,365.14 

4,215.53 

242.04 
1.01 

4,125.04 
90.49 

4.21!<.!<'.t 

.. 

Dated: J une 6, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

661.28 

882.00 
(s.83) 

(114.81) 
(24.54) 
(31.20) 

3.84 
13.42 

(6.20) 
(o.88) 

364.06 
15.09 
11.86 
7.96 

1,776.05 

(158.43) 
67.67 

(260.04) 
(9.39) 

322.33 
151.28 
(19.25) 
72.63 

263.11 

2,205.96 
(1.031.So) 
1, 174.16 

(161.76) 
432.13 
(19.11) 

(12,923.17) 
(2,237.02) 

l,183.15 
(2,954.44) 

319.39 
6.20 

(16 '>~A,6'.t) 

3.57 
19,000.00 

(116.39) 
(1,341.67) 

17."-'1~.51 

2,365.04 
O.IO 

2,365.14 

752.37 

,,928.60 
436.54 

2 .~6,;.14 

Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

1 Background 
Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited - formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited (the "Company") is a 
Private Limited Company registered in India under the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile Companies Act, 1956). The Company has 
listed its Non Convertible redeemable debentures on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company and its subsidiaries 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Group") are engaged in business of providing research and intelligence solutions, investment and 
business research, market, competitive and social media intelligence and communication services to meet the tactical business 
objectives of the clients. 

During the year 2021-22, the application for the scheme of merger of Netscribes (India) Private Limited with the Company and their 
respective shareholders and creditors was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench ("NCLT, Mumbai"). The 
said scheme of merger was approved by the NCLT, Mumbai on December 2, 2022, which became effective from December 31, 2022 

upon its filing with Registrar of Companies (ROC), Mumbai. Pursuant to this scheme, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, 
Netscribes (India) Private Limited has been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed date September 6 , 2021. 

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 6 , 2023. 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 
The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 

The consolidated financial statements upto year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 were prepared in accordance 
with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. These 
consolidated financial statements were prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified 
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, specified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

These consolidated financial statements are the first statutory financial statements ('financial statements') of the group 
under Ind AS. Refer Note 41 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group's 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following 
items: 
- certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value 
- share-based payments. 

(iii) Current and Non-Current Classification 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the group's operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between providing the 
services and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

(iv) New and amended standards adopted by the group 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 23, 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 2022. These 
amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect 
the current or future periods. 

(v) New and amended standards issued but not effective 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the 'Rules') which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 

2023. 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 
(i) Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are all e ntities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity where the group is exposed to, or 
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group. 

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of 
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions 
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of 
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the group. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. 

(ii) Changes in ownership interests 
The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity 
owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the 
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the 
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity. 

When the group ceases to consolidate an investment because of a loss of control or significant influence, any retained 
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair 
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an 
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in 
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean 
that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. 

(c) Segment reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker. 

The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the group, and makes strategic 
decisions and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. 

(d) Foreign currency translation 

(i) Functional and presentation currcm.'Y 
Items included in the financial statements of group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

(ii) Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
tra nsactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or 
loss. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other 
gains/(losses). 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part 
of the fair value gain or loss. 

(iii) Group companies 
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hypcrinflationary economy) that 
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows: 

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet 

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the 
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the 
dates of the transactions), and 

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(e) Revenue recognition 
The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies perlormance obligations under the terms of its contracts, and control of its 
services is transferred to its customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive from its 
customers in exchange for those services. This process involves identifying the customer contract, determining the 
perlormance obligations in the contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction price to the distinct 
perlormance obligations in the contract, and recognizing revenue when the perlormance obligations have been satisfied. 

A performance obligation is considered distinct from other obligations in a contract when it : 
(a) provides a benefit to the customer either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the 
customer and 
(b) is separately identified in the contract. 

TaJCes assessed by a government authority that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue - producing 
transaction, that are collected by the group from a customer, are excluded from sales. 

A perlormance obligation is satisfied over time if one of the following criteria are met: 
(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the entity perlorms; 
(b) the entity's perlormance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or 
(c) the entity's perlormance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity, and the entity has an enforceable 
right to payment for perlormance completed to date. 

If control transfers over time, an entity selects a method to measure progress that is consistent with the objective of depicting 
its perlormance. 

Nature of services: 
The Group recognizes revenue for services over time as the Group's perlormance creates or enhances an asset that the 
customer controls from fixed price contracts and the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as and 
when the milestones are completed as per the terms of the contract. Revenue from time-and-material contracts are 
recognised as the related services are perlormed. 

The Group has adopted the 'as-invoiced' practical expedient for perlormance obligation satisfied over time with respect to 
fixed price contracts. It permits an entity to recognize revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice the customer if 
that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's perlormance completed to date. 

Contract assets and liabilities 

When the Group perlorms a service or transfers a good in advance of receiving consideration, it recognises a contract asset 
or receivable. 

A contract asset is a Group's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a 
customer. If the Group transfers control of goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration, the 
Group records a contract asset when the nature of the Group's right to consideration for its perlormance is other than 
passage of time. A contract asset will be classified as a receivable when the Group's right to consideration is unconditional 
(that is, when payment is due only on the passage of time).Tbe Group shall assess a contract asset for impairment in 
accordance with Ind AS 109. Impairment of a contract asset is measured , presented and disclosed on similar basis as other 
financial asset in nature of trade receivable within the scope of Ind AS 109. The Group discloses contract assets under 
"Current Assets". 

The Group recognises a contract liability if the customer's payment of consideration precedes the Group's performance. A 
contract liability is recognised if the Group receives consideration (or if it bas the unconditional right to receive 
consideration) in advance of perlormance. The Group discloses contract liabilities under "Current Liabilities". 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
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(f) Income Tax 
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities 
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it 
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of 
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax 
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply 
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset 
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respectively. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain 
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending 
on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty. 

(g) Leases: 
As a lessee 
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for 
use by the Group. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the 
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate 
for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these 
as a single lease component. 

Assets and Liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 
present value of the following lease payments: 
• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable 
• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 
commencement date 
• amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees 
• the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option. 

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset 
in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses observable amortising loan rate available to the Group 
(through recent financing or market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Group uses that rate as a 
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease 
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: 
• the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 
• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received 
• any initial direct costs, and 
• restoration costs. 

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain 
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life. 
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(h) Business combination 
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity 
instruments or other assets arc acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the 
- fair values of the assets transferred 
- liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business 
- equity interests issued by the group 
- fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. 

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited 
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest 
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's 
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets. 

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 

The excess of the: 
- consideration transferred 
- amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity 
- acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity 
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value 
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the 
business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as 
capital reserve. 

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their 
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at 
which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. 

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are 
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity 
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such 
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. 

(i) Impairment of assets 

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are 
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there arc separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other 
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. 

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(j) Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash flows, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less that arc readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value, and bank overdrafts. 
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(k) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinaiy course of business and reflects 
Group's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are 
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Group holds the 
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. 

(I) Investments and other financial assets 
(i) Classification 
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), 
and 
• those to be measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. 
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an 
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI. 

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

(ii) Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Group 
commits to purchase or sale the financial asset. 

(iii) Measurement 
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Debt instruments 
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash 
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt 
instruments. 

a) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in 
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement 
of profit and loss. 

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI}: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash 
flows and for selling the financial asset.~, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment 
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the 
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit 
or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using 
the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/ (losses) and impairment 
expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss. 

c) Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at 
fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through 
profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Equity instruments 
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to 
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from 
such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established. 
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(m) 

(n) 

(iv) Impairment of financial assets 
The Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial 
assets which are measured at amortised cost and FVOCI. Impairment of financial assets is measured as either 12 month 
expected credit losses or life time expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition. The Group uses historical loss experience and adjusts the loss allowance to reflect the 
information about current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. 

Trade receivables are of a short duration, normally less than 12 months and hence the loss allowance measured as lifetime 
expected credit losses does not differ from that measured as 12 month expected credit losses. The Group measures expected 
credit losses for trade receivables using a provision matrix based on collection history. Accordingly, for trade receivables, the 
Group has followed simplified approach. Expected credit loss for security deposit are measured at 12 months expected credit 
losses for which credit has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery based on management assessment. When 
recoveries are made, these are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

(v) Dereoognition of financial assets 
A financial asset is derecognised only when 
• The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
• retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the 
cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards 
ofownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 
Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in 
the financial asset. 

(vi) Income recognition: 
Interest income 
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. 
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest 
method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income. Interest income is calculated by applying 
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently 
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount 
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance). 

Dividends 
Dividends received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCI are recognised as other income in 
profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition 
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the 
counterparty. 

Property, plant and equipment 
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Transition to Ind AS: 
On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, pla 
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, pl 

e,"<.. 
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Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written down method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, based 
on technical evaluation done by management taking into account the nature of the assets, their estimated period of use and 
the operating conditions. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed at least at each financial 
year end. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in 
accounting estimate. 

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 

The estimates of useful lives of tangible assets arc as follows: 

Assets Estimated 
Useful Lives 
(in years) 

Building 60 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 

Vehicles 8 
Servers and Networks 6 
Office Equipments 5 
Comouters 3 

Leasehold improvements arc amortised over the period lease term. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or 
loss within other gains/Oosses). 

(o) Intangible assets 

(p) 

(i) Goodwill: 
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for 
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying 
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. 

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash­
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the 
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal 
management purposes, which in our case are the operating segments. 

(ii) Other Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost and in the case of Intangible assets acquired in a business combination, are 
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Intangible assets are subsequently carried net of accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated 
useful lives. A rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when 
the asset is available for use is considered by the management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are 
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous 
estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an 
intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets based on management evaluation is as follows: 

Assets Estimated 
Useful Lives 
(in years) 

Computer Software 3 
Brand 10 

Customer relationships 7 

Transition to Ind AS 
On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all intangible assets measured as per 
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets. 
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(q) Borrowing 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in 
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of 
borrowing facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the borrowing to the extent that it is probable that some or all of 
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no 
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for 
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
profit or loss as other gains/Oosses). 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish 
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan 
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the 
reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before 
the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

(r) Borrowing cost 
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
or sale. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

(s) Provisions 

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions arc not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

(t) Contingent liabilities 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within tbe control of the Group. It can also 
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic 
resources will be required, or the amount ofobligation cannot be measured reliably. 

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the 
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision. 

(u) Employee benefits 

a) Short-term employee benefits 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
The liabilities are presented as current financial liabilities in the balance sheet. 
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b) Post-employment obligations-defined benefit plans - Gratuity (funded) 
The Group provides for a gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan"). The gratuity scheme is administered through 
the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined 
benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair 
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit 
method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in Rupees is determined by discounting the estimated 
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the 
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised 
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

c) Post-employment obligations-defined contribution plans - Provident Fund and Employee State 
Insurance Fund 

The Group pays provident fund and Employee State insurance fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds 
as per local regulations. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit 
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction 
in the future payments is available. 

d) Other long term employee benefits- Compensated absences 

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be 
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit 
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to 
occur. 

e) Share based payments 
The fair value of options granted under the Group's Employee Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense 
with a corresponding increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over 
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of 
the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the 
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 
Where shares are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service conditions, any expenses previously 
recognised in relation to such shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture. 

0 Bonus plan: 

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged 
or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

(v) Contributed equity 

(w) 

Equity shares are classified as equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options arc shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, 
from the proceeds. 
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(ii) Diluted earning per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account: 
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

(x) Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Jakhs as per the 
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 

3 Critical estimates andjudgements: 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the 
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies. 

The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they 
occur. 

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its critical accounting estimates 
and Judgements and accordingly provides an explanation of each below. The discussion below should also be read in 
conjunction with the Group's disclosure of significant accounting policies which are provided in Note 2 to the financial 
statements. 

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies 
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 

(i) Classification of leases under Ind AS 116 
Ind AS 116 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any 
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on 
the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to 
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any 
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the 
importance of the underlying lease to the Group's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the 
availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects 
the current economic circumstances. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the 
lease being evaluated and is benchmarked to an amortising loan rate that is readily available in the market. 

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets 
The useful life used to amortise or depreciate intangible assets or property, plant and equipment respectively relates to the 
expected future performance of the assets acquired and management's judgement based on technical evaluation of the 
period over which economic benefit will be derived from the asset. The lives are based on historical experience with similar 
assets as well as anticipation of future events which may impact their life such as changes in· technology. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciation/ amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and 
the expected residual value at the end of its amortisation life. Reduction/Increase in an asset's expected life or its residual 
value would result in an increased/ reduced depreciation/amortisation charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Defined benefit plans 
The Group's obligation on account of gratuity and compensated absences is determined based on actuarial valuations. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in 
the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions 
are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the discount rate. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with 
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in 
India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases 
and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 
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4(a) Property Plant and Equipment 

Particulars Gross Carrying value 

As at April 1, 2022 Additions Disposals 

Furniture and Fixtures 82.27 (5.64) 
Vehicles 11.56 7731 
Office equipments 209.86 3.65 (8.65) 
Leasehold Improvements 379.32 (43.92) 
Computers 1,314.02 194.61 (142.32) 

Total 1,997.03 275.57 (200.52) 

Af aJ rroncrtv r 1ant ana r.;c u 1nmcn t 

Gross Carrying value 

Particulars Deemed cost 
as at April 01, Acquisitions 

Additions Disposals 2021 (Refer note 40) 
(Refer Note 41) 

Building 562.81 - (562.81) 
Furniture & Fixture 82.27 -
Vehicles 16.31 - (4,75) 
Office equipments 209.78 0.08 
Leasehold Improvement 380.16 - (0.84) 
Comnuters 1,168.55 156.60 (11.13) 

Total 2.,110.88 1><6.68 lc~n,c~ 

Note: 
1. The group docs not have any Capi tal work in progress as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 

As at March 31, 
2023 

76.64 

88.87 

204.85 

335.40 

1,366.31 

2,072.08 

As at March 
31,2022 

82.27 
11.56 

209.86 
379.32 

1,314,02 
1 nn"T.O"l: 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying value 

As at April 0 1, 2022 Charge for the Disposals As at March 31, As at March 3 1, 
year 2023 2023 

58.37 6.09 (5.14) 59.32 17.32 
10.89 5.88 - 16.76 72.11 
161.11 22.42 (7.21) 176.31 28.54 

185.00 71.55 (28.53) 228.02 107.39 
1,157.31 219.16 (141.74) 1,234.73 131.58 

1,572.67 325.10 (182.63) 1,715.14 356.94 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying value 

Acquisition s 
As at April 1, (Refer note Charge for the 

Disposals As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2021 year 2022 2022 40) 

- 132.77 31.33 (164.10) 
- 53.65 4.72 - 58.37 23.90 
- 13.37 0.72 (3.20) 10.89 0.67 
- 138.39 22,72 161.11 48.75 
- 141.26 44.20 (0.46) 185.00 194.32 
- 1,026.86 141,20 (10.80) 11~7.'ll 156.71 

1 co6.28 ~·• .08 '178,cn' 1.'<72,67 424.">'< 
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(h) Note 4, dwill dOth :Goo an .bl eAssets er lntang,1 

Particulars Other Intangiole Assets 
Goodwill 

Computer 
Brand 

Customer 
software Relationshins 

Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at April 1,2021 - - - -
Acquired pursuant to Business combination (refer Note 3,409.75 237.59 1,282.50 5,538.90 
40) 
Additions - 19.11 -

Disoosals - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,409.75 256.70 1,282.50 5,538.90 
Additions - 20.78 - -
Dispnsals - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,409.75 277.48 1,282.50 ....... 8.90 

Particulars Other Intangible Assets 
Goodwill Computer Brand Customer 

software Relationshivs 
Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 
Balance as at April 1,2021 - - -
Acquired pursuant to Business combination (refer Note 138.09 
40) 
Amortisation - 10.84 72.73 448.75 
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 148.93 72.7J 448.75 
Amortisation - 31.07 128.25 791.27 
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 180.00 200.98 1,240.02 

Particulars Other lntangiole Assets 
Goodwill Computer 

Brand 
Customer 

software Relationships 

Net Carrying Amounts as at March 31 2023 3,409.75 97.48 1,081.52 4,298.88 
Net Carrying Amounts as at March 31 2022 3,409.75 107.77 1,209.77 5,090.15 

Notes: 
1. Useful life of Brand & Customer relationships is considered to be 10 years & 7 years 
2. The group does not have any intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 

Impairment testing of goodwill 

Total 

-
7,058.99 

19.11 

7,078.10 
20.78 

-
7 098.88 

Total 

-
138.09 

532.33 

670-41 
950.60 

-
1,621.01 

Total 

5,477.87 
6,407.69 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of providing research and intelligence solutions, investment and business research, market, competitive 
and social media intelligence and communication services. The canying amount of goodwill as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 3,409.75 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 
3,409.75 lakhs) which is arising on account of Business combination effected in the financial year 2021-22 and given effect to in these financial statements 
for the first time on transition to Ind AS (transition date April 1, 2021). 

The Company bas performed on an overall basis its annual impairment test for the year ended March 31, 2023, considering its performance and the overall 
performance of the industry in which the Company operates. As a result of its analysis, management concluded that there is no impairment of the goodwill. 
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5 Leases 
The Company's Lease asset consist leasehold office premises. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective approach in which 
the Company has recognised a lease liability on the lease commencement date and recognised right -of -use assets which is equal to the lease 
liability at the commencement date. When measuring lease liabilities, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, 
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset 
in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. The Incremental borrowing rate applied by the company is 10% p.a. 
The difference between the lease liability as at commencement date and lease liability on the date of the transition, and accumulated depreciation 
on right -of -use assets till the date of the transition have been adjusted against the retained earnings standing as on the transition date. 
The Company has applied below practical expedients permitted by standard: 

- The Company has not applied the requirements of Ind AS 116 for leases of low value assets. 
- The Company has excluded the initial direct costs from measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of transition. 
- The Company has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component. 

(i) Amounts Recognised in Balance Sheet 

Particulars As at As at April I , 

March 31 2023 March 31 2022 2021 

(a) Right of use asset 
Leasehold Office Premises 236.25 129.13 . 
Total 236.25 129.13 . 

(b) Lease hability 
Non Current 125.01 63.51 
Current 119.15 95.92 
Total 244.16 159-4.'3 -

The following is the movement in Right -of -use assets 

Particulars Amount 
Balance as at April 1, 2021 
Acquisition 752.37 
Additions 
Disoosals (2.22) 
Balance as at March 31 2022 750.15 
Additions 242.04 
Disoosals (~70.26) 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 421.93 

Particulars Amount 
Accumulated depreciation 
Acquisition 518.55 
Additions 104.69 
Disnosals (2.22) 
Balance as at March :u, 2022 621.02 
Additions 134.92 
Disoosals (570.26) 
Balance as at March 31 2023 185-68 

The following is the movement in Lease liabilities 

Particulars Amo unt 
Balance as at April 1, 2021 
Acquisition 275.82 
Additions 
Disposals 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 11.86 
Pavment oflease liabilities (128.2sl 
Balance as at March 31 2022 159.43 
Additions 225.00 
Disposals 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 22.11 

Pavment of lease liabilities (162.J8) 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 244-16 
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(ii) Amount recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars For the year 
ended 

March 3 1, 2023 

Depreciation charge of Right Of Use Assets ( refer Note 28) 134.92 
Interest expense (included in finance costs) (refer Note 27) 22.11 

Exoense relating to leases of low-value assets (refer Note 29) 2Q.76 

For the year 
ended 

Mareh 3 1, 2022 

104.69 
11.86 

24.80 

The total Cash Outflow for Leases principal portion during the yea r was Rs. 140.27 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 116.39 lakhs) 

(iii) Extens ion and termination optio ns 
Extension and termination options are included in the lease office premises of the Company. 
The majority of extension and termination options held a re exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor. 
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6 Other non current financial assets 
As on March 

31, 2023 
Unsecured, Considered good 
Long term deposits with banks with maturity period more than . 

12 months 
Fixed deposit held as lien , 340.00 
Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks 16.63 
Security Deposits (considered i:ood) 96.53 
Total '1'i.3.16 

, Held as lien by bank m favour of the Debenture Trustees m relatJon to Debentures 

7 Tax assets (net) 
As on March 

31, 2023 
Advance Tax [Net of Provision for Income Tax Rs. 1,593.30 lakhs 537.76 
(Previous Year Rs. 890.08 lakhs)l 
Total 'i.37.76 

8 Other non current assets 
As on March 

31 2023 

Preoaid Exoenses 2.<;4 
Totru 2,5" 

9 Current investments 
As on March 

31, 2023 
Investment in equity instruments fully paid up (at 

FVfPL) 
Quoted 
5,000 (March 31, 2022: 5000; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares 160.29 
of Tata Consultancy Services Limited of face value of"' 1 each 

NIL (March 31, 2022: 6,78,648; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity 
shares of Ujjivan Small Finance Bank of face value of 'f 10 each 

NIL (March 31, 2022: 1,25,000; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares . 
of Ashok Leyland Limited of face value of"' 1 each 

NIL (March 31, 2022: 1,00,000; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity 
shares of State Bank of India of face value of'{ 1 each 

NIL (March 31, 2022: 1,50 ,000' April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares . 
of Zomato Umited of face value oft 1 each 

NIL (March 31, 2022: 10,000; April 1, 2021: NIL) equity shares 
of Matherson Sumi Wiring India Limited of face value on, each 

50,000 (March 31, 2022: NIL; April 1, 20 21 : NIL) equity shares 122.93 
of CSB Bank Limited of face value of { 10 each 

75,000 (March 31, 2022: NIL, April 1, 2021: NIL) equity sha res 99.19 
of Federal Bank Limited of face value on 2 each 

31,500 (Mareh 31, 2022: NIL, April 1, 2021 : NIL) equity shares 102.19 
of Indian Hotels Company Limited of face value of"' 1 each 

10,00,000 (March 31, 2022: NIL, April 1, 2021: NIL) equity 146.20 
shares of South Indian Bank Limited of face value of"' 1 each 

Total Ctlt'ttnt Investments 630.80 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value 
thereof 630.80 
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments . 

AoorPoatc amount of imoairment in the value of investments . 

As on March 31, 
2022 

295.00 

340.00 
14-43 

149.75 
799.18 

As on March 31, 
2022 

298.87 

298.87 

As on March 31, 
2022 

Q.3Q 

'1,311 

As on March 31, 
2022 

186.94 

100.44 

146.56 

493.40 

123.45 

6-45 

. 

. 

. 

1,057.24 

1,057.24 
. 

As on April 1, 
2021 

. 

. 

. 

. 

As on April 1, 
2021 

. 

. 

As on April 1, 
2021 

. 

. 

As on April 1, 
2021 

. 

. 

. 

" 

. 

. 

. 
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10 Trade receivables 
Ason March As on March 31, As on April 1, 

31, 2023 2022 2021 

Trade receivables from contract with customers - billed 2,225.97 2,185.99 -
Trade receivables from contract with customers - unbilled' 1,077.38 377.11 
Less: Loss Allowance (refer Note 32) (34.17) (27-63) -
Total Receivables 3,269.18 2,535.47 
Current Portion 3,269.18 2,535.47 
Non Current Portion - -
Break-up of security details 
Trade receivables considered good - secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 3,303.35 2,563.10 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Less: Loss Allowance (refer Note 32) (34.17) (27.63) -

Total trade receivables ~.269.18 2 """.47 -

'The receivable is ' unbilled' because the group has not yet issued an invoice; however, the balance has been included 
under trade receivables (as opposed to contract assets) because it is an unconditional right to consideration. 

Aging of Trade Receh•able 
As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Undisouted trade retti<"ablcs 
· Considered rood 
- Which have signifkant increase in credit 
risk 
-Credit imoaired 
llicnuted mtde receh-ables 
-Considered Good 
~ Which ha,·e significant increase in credit 
risk 

Credit irnooired 
Total 

Outstandinv for the followins 1><riods from the due date 
Unbilled Not Due Less Than 6 6 Months· I 1·2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 

Months Year Year 

l,07)',38 988.98 l.199.79 34.85 2.>< 

Emocted loss rate 0.2.1% 0., 2% I.LI% ,,.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

11(8) 

Les5: Allowanre for credit loss 

Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Undi,oul:ed 
- Cons.Jen,d Good 
\.Vhk.h have significant incre~ in credit 

risk 

1 ""'-uted 
-Considered Good 
- Which have significant increase in credit 
risk 
-Credit imDBired 
Tot111I 

2.22 4.11 

I 07S,16 o8A,8-

Unbilled Not Due 

'l68.oo t 70,:;,.oo 

:t68.oo 1.705.go 

13.6.i 11.8~ 2.:l., 

1186.15 2-1.00 - -

Oulstandine for the followine ·-...:.. ....... CN>m the due dale 
Less TI\an 6 6 Months · 1 1-2 Year 2 ·3 Vear Mon: than 3 
Months Year Year 

I 
,66.Js 10.00 u.8'" 

10.C)O 11.85 

100.00%. i 00.00% 100.00% 

Less: Allowance for ae<li.t loss o.;c:; -.o8 S.SQ 2 .s6 11 .S i:. 

Total t.6o8.82 .J.6t.06 8 ..... 

~ There arc no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Group 
-There are no trade receivables outstanding as at the start of April , , 2021, hence trade receivable aging is not provided as at that date . 

Cas h d an cas h . al CQWV ents 
As on March As on March 31, As on April 1, 

31, 2023 2022 2021 

Balance with Banks 
In Current Account 4,125.04 1,928.60 0 . 10 

In Exchange Earner 's Foreign Currency account 90-49 436.54 

Total 4 21!-,53 2.~6!-,14 0.10 

There are no repatnat.Ion restnchons wtth regard to cash and cash eqmvalents as at the end of the reportmg penod and pnor periods. 

Total 

,.,o,:>s 

34.r 

3,269.18 

Total 
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n(b) Other bank balances 
As on March As on March 31, 

31, 2023 2022 · 

Fixed deposits held as lien @ 4,520.51 
Deposits with maturity more than three months but less than 12 2.03 725.93 

months 
Long Term Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 295.00 -

months 
Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banlcs 27.36 196.13 

Total '>2d.'>0 o;,442.57 
@ Held as hen by bank m favour of the Debenture Trustees m relallon to Debentures. 

12 Other current financial assets 
As on March As on March 31, 

31, 2023 2022 

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 2.60 1.88 
Advances to Employees 1.92 
Export Incentive Receivable - 149.22 
Security Deno.<its 2.28 17.84 
Total 6.80 188.0d 

13 Other current assets 
Ason March As on March 31, 

31, 2023 2022 
Prepaid Expenses 245.20 204.54 
Balances with Government Authorities O<A.22 2~8.71 
·1ota1 !>90,d2 463.25 

As on April 1, 
2021 

-
-

-

-

-

As on April 1, 
2021 

-
-
-
-

As on April 1, 
2021 

-
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14 Eouity share capital 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

Amount Amount Amount 

Authorised Share Capital 5.00 5.00 5.00 
50,000 (March 31, 2022 -50,000; April 1, 2021-50,000) Equity Shares of 
Rs.1oeach. 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 
20,103 (March 31, 2022 - 20,103; April 1, 2021- 10,000) Equity Shares of 2.01 2.01 1.00 
Rs.10 each fully paid. 

2.01 2.01 1.00 

Authorised share capital 

No. of Shares Amount 
As at April 01, 2021 50,000 5.00 
Increase during the year: -
As at March 31, 2022 50000 5.00 
Increase during the year: -
As at March 31 2023 50000 5.00 

(i) Movements in Equity Share Capital : 

Equity Share 
No. of Shares Capital (per 

value) 
As at April 01, 2021 10,000 1.00 

lncrease/(Decrease) during the year 
Issued on merger of subsidiary (refer Note 40) 10,lOj 1.01 

As at March 31, 2022 20 103 2.01 
Increase/ (Decrease) during the year -
As at March 31 2023 20103 2 .01 

Terms and rights attached to equity shares: 
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held 
and Lo participate in dividend, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid 
on the shares held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the annual general 
meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

(ii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company: 

No. of Shares %Holdin2 
As at April 01, 2021 
Sourav Mukherjee 9,382 93.82% 
Gagan Kaul 618 6.18% 

As at March 31, 2022 
Sourav Mukherjee 19,294 95.98% 

As at March 31, 2023 
Sourav Mukheriee IQ,294 9~.98% 

(iii) Details of shareholding of promoter's 

Percentage of Percentage of 
No. of Shares total number of change during 

shares the year 

As at April 01, 2021 
Sourav Mukherjee 9,382 93.82% -

As at March 31, 2022 
Sourav Mukherjee 19,294 95.98% 105.65% 

As at March 31, 2023 
Sourav Mukheriee 19,294 95.98% -
(iv) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash: 

March 31 2023 March 31 2022 April I 2021 

Shares issued as consideration for acquisition of subsidiary (refer Note 40) 10,103 

Shares reserved for issue under options 
Information relating Lo Group's Employee Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year 
and options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is sci out in note 39. 

Note: 
Pursuant to the approved Scheme (refer Note 40), the Company is required to increase the authorised capital and Lo issue shares Lo the 
remaining shareholders of the transferor company. To give effect to aforesaid requirement of the Scheme, the Company made an online 
application to the Registrar of Company (ROC) to increase the Authorised share capital, however, the same is pending with the ROC for 
the processing and hence the Authorised capital is not increased. The Company has taken reasonable steps and informed ROC about the 
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15 Other Eouitv- Reserves & snrnlus 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Anril 1, 2021 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,453.50 -
Share Options Outstanding Account 19.78 7.96 
Retained earnings 1,695.88 1,768.68 (1.32) 
Foreign Currency Translation reserve 28.01 22.03 

... 197.17 1 ~n8.67 (1."2) 

(i) Debenture Redemotion Reserve 
As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 1, 

2023 2022 2021 

Opening Balance - -
Appropriations during the year 1,4S..SQ 
Closini: balance 1 AM.SO - -
(ii) Share ootions outstanding account 

As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 1, 
2023 2022 2021 

Opening Balance 7.96 - -
Employee stock options expenses 11.82 7.06 -
Closini: balance 10,78 7.96 -
(iii) Retained earnini:s 

As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 1, 
2023 2022 2021 

Opening Balance 1,768.68 (1.32) (1.32) 
Acquisition during the year (refer Note 4 0) (28.82) -
Net profit for the period 1,392.93 374.42 -
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained 

earnings -
- Rcmcasurcments of defined benefit plan obligations (16.34) (5-40 ) -
- Income tax relating to above 4.11 1.36 -
- Gain on relinquishment of ESOP (refer Note 39) 1,428-44 
- Transfer to debenture redemotion reserve (l,4S3.SO) - -
Closini: balance 1 6qs.88 1 768.68 (1.'>2) 

(' ) F 1 . lV oreum currencv trans ation reserve 
As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 1, 

2023 2022 2021 
Opening Balance 22.03 -
Addition during the year s.98 22.0> -
Closini: balance 28.01 22.0~ -

Nature and purpose of other reserves: 

(i) Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Debenture redemption reserve represents amounts set aside out of retained earnings during the year for redemption of debentures 

issued in accordance with section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(ii) Share options outstanding account 
The share options outstanding account is used lo recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the Company's 
Employee stock option plan. 

(iii) Retained earnings 
Retained earnings mainly represents all current and prior year profits as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss less 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations and transfers to debenture redemption reserve. 

(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve 
Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are accumulated in this reserve within equity. 
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16 Non Currcn tbon·owings 

Secured: 
Debentures 
1,900 (March 31, 2022: 1,900 ) Redeemable non-co1n·er tible 

debentures• 
Less: Current Maturities of long ter m debt (included in current 

botTowing) 

Total . Includes Accrued interest 
Note: 
Tcr n1s of Secured horrnwings: 

As o n March As on .Mar c h 3 1, 
:11 , 202:1 2 022 

13,479,01 18,034,25 

(1,520.00) (4,465.00) 

11,959.01 13,569.25 

As o n April 1 , 

2021 

-

During the year 2021-22, the Group has issued 1,900 non convertible redeemable debentures with face value of Rs. 
1,000,000 aggregating to Rs. 19,000 lakhs, can)ing the in terest rate of 15 .25% per annum which is effecti\'c till the merger 
effeclive date (Le December 30, 2022) payable at the quarterly resL These debentures are redeemable over the period of 5 
years from the date of its allotment. As per the debenture agreement these debenture would carry a revised interest rate of 
11.50% per annum starting lhe merger cffccti"e date (i.e December 3 1, 2022). 
During the current year the Group has redeemed 23.50% of the face \'aluc, aggregating to Rs. 4,465 laklls. These 
debentures are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and are secured against: 
t. the first ranking charge over all of the assets (current+ non current, excluding right of use assets, deferred tax assets 
(net)) of the Company both current and future; and 
2 . shares held by promoter in the Group. 

17 Curren t borrowings 

As on March As on March 31, As on April 1 , 

Secured 
Curr ent Maturi ties of Non Cur rent b or rowings ( refer 

Note 16) 
Redeemable non-convertible debentures 

To ta l 

:1 1. 2023 

1,520.00 

1,.520,00 

Refer note 16 for the details of security, repayment terms and interest details 

Net Debt Reconciliation: 

2022 2021 

4,465.00 

4 ,465.00 

This section sets ou t an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. 

Particulars As on March As on March 3 1, As on Ap ril 1 , 

3 1, 202:J 2022 2021 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,215.53 2,365.14 0.10 
Liquid Investments 630.80 1,057,24 
Lease Liabilities (244 .16) (159,43) 
Borrowings ( 13,479.01) (18,034.25) 

Net D ebt (8,876.84) (14,771.30) 0.10 

Reconciliation of liabilit ies fro m fin a n ci n~ activities 

Other A.~scts Liabilities from firrn n cing 

Particulars 

Net deht as at Apr il 1 , 2021 
Addition to Le a$e liability 

Cash Flows 
In terest Payment 
Non Ca s h Changes 
Fair value adjustment 
Interest Expenses 
Net d e b ts as a t March 3 1, 2022 
Net d ebts as a t April 1, 2022 
Cash Flows 
Interest Payment 
Non Cash Changi:i; 
Addition to Lease liability 
Fai r "alue adjustment 
Interest Expenses 
Net dcht as a t Marc h 31, 2023 

Cash & Cash 
Equi\'alcnts 

0, 10 

2,365.04 

2 ,:365.14 
2,365,14 
1,850,40 

4,215.54 

Liquid 
In,·cstm ents 

1,033.34 

23,90 

l 0 57,24 
1,057.24 
(369,57) 

(s6.87J 

6:io.so 

acth itics 

Borro,-vings Lease liability 

(275,82) 

(19,000.00) 116,39 
1,329.81 11.86 

1,282.07 
(1,646,13) (11.86) 

( 18,034.25) (159,43) 
(18,034.2sl (159,43) 

4,465.00 140.27 
2,304,97 22. 11 

(225,00) 

(2,2 14,71) (22, 11) 
( 1:l,479,01) (244.16) 

Total 

0 .10 

(275,82) 

( 15,485,23) 
1,34 1.67 

1,305,97 
( 1,657.99) 

( 14 ,771.30) 
(14,771.30) 

6,086.10 
2,327.08 

(225.00) 
(56,87) 

(2,236,8~) 
(8,876,84) 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

18 Trade oavables 
As on March As on March 31, 

3 1 2023 2022 

Current 
Trade payables: micro and small ente'l'rises (refer Note 30) 148.01 30-47 

Trade payables: others 527.08 370.78 

Total 67.<; .0Q 401.2!; 

Note: 

As on April 1, 
2021 

0.12 

0.12 

Trade payables includes payables to non-resident parties towards various expenses. An amount of Rs. 10 lakhs is outstanding for a period more than 6 months 
but less than three years as al March 31, 2023 which are beyond the time period permitted under the Master Direction 17/2016 - 2017 (as amended). The 
Company has intimated the Authorised Dealer bank in this regard. 

Ageing of Trade Payable 
As at March 31, 2023 

l'articulan 

Undisputed trade •~•ables 
Micro eotemrises and small enterorises 
Others 
ni=uted trade o»ables 
Micro enterorises and small enterprues 
Others 
Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

l'arti<ulars 

Unduputed trade nnablcs 
Micro e utemrises and small enlernri"8!l 
Others 
Disouted trade oa•ables 
Micro cntemrises and small e-ntcrnri<:M:. 

Unbilled Not Due 

4.0o 120.81 

200.66 237--40 

204.72 :i6, .21 

Unbilled Not DtJe 

2~.00 

lQ'.\. 70 161.51 

Outstandine for the follo··0 -- ··-'·•· from the due date 
Less Thant 1-2 Year 2-3 Year llorcthan3 Total 
Year Year 

16.14 0.01 148.01 
88.oo 0.10 o.s, <2?.o8 

104 .14 0.20 0.83 675.09 

Outslandin for the follo,,imi: oeriods from the due date 
Leu Than t 1-2 Yntr 2-3 Year More than 3 Total 
Year Year 

0 -

14.7,t o.B:i • .,.,, .. ,8 

f-Olh"'To1=:~:::-------------------+---,.-,,-o+----,8~8~_,-,+---,78.-21-+---o~.8~h-+-----+---- :...._r- ao1.1.~ 

As at April 1, 2021 

Particular., I Unbilled Not Due 

Unni.nutcd trade oavablcs 
Micro entell)rises and small enterprise5 I 
Othe~ I 

Out:standin for the follo1'int!: rw>nod., front thr due datr 
Lcsslnan 1 

0.12 

2 -3Ycar l\tontl1an 3 
Year 

Total 

0.12 

~Dis_,,·,=out,,ed,,_,,tcad= "-•" o,a,,.,c,:·a:,:bl,,es,._ ___________ +-l---+-----+------+----+-----+-------,1--· _ 
~licro onterorises and small onterpris&s I 
Other, 
Tot~ I 

..:.. 
0.,2 0 .12 

19 Other current financial liabilities 

Advances from Director 
Security Deposit received 
Other Payables 
Employee benefits payable 
Total 

20 Contract liabilities 

21 

Income received in advance(refer Note 36) 
Total 

Current provisions 

Provision for Compensated absences (refer Note 38) 
Provision for Gratuity (refer Note 38) 
Provision for Claims (refer note below and note 38) 
lOtaJ 

The details of movement in Provision for claims 

Opening Balance 
Recognised During the year 
Pa ent of claims dmin the ear 
Closin Balance 

As on March As on March 31, As on April 1, 
3 1, 2023 2022 2021 

- 0 .30 
8.10 4.05 
2.70 33.77 

28~.48 70 8.60 
2<16.28 816-42 0.30 

As on March As on March 31, As on April 1, 

31, 2023 2022 2021 

12.40 184.46 
12.40 184.46 -

Ason March As on March 31, As on April 1, 
31, 2023 2022 2021 

151.53 137.70 
85.58 129.97 -
57.14 57.14 

294.25 324.81 -

As on March As on March 31, As on April 1, 
31 , 2023 2022 2021 

57.14 
57. 14 

• 7.1 

' 
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22 Current Tax Llabilities (Net) 
As on March As on March 31, 

31, 2023 2022 

Provision for Income Tax (refer note below) 2.98 1.74 

Total 2 .98 1.74 

23 Other current liabilities 
As on March As on March 31, 

31, 2023 2022 

Advances from customers 4.69 0.34 
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at 
source 102.os •67.•2 
Total 107.0S. ">6'1.66 

As on April 1, 

2021 

-
-

As on April t, 
2021 

-



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Revenue fro m operdtlons 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Revenue from contract with customers 

Sale of services (refer Note 36) 13,332.36 
-

Total 13,332.36 

25(a) Other income 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Interest Income: 
On bank deposits 49.75 
Dividend income from investments mandatorily measured at fair value through 11.73 
profit or loss 
Liability no longer required written back 0.61 
Rent Income 41.01 
Miscellaneous Income 2.93 
Unwinding of discount on Security deposit 6.61 
Total 112.64 

25(b) 0th ergams / (I osses -net 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation 216.19 
Net gain / (loss) on sale/ disposal of property, plant and equipment (4.41) 
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets rnandatorily measured at fair value through 110.59 
profit and loss 
Total 322.37 

26 E mp1ovee b fi enc texnense 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Salaries, Allowances and Bonus 4,939.97 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 148.23 
Gratuity 42.25 
Leave compensation 80-47 
Employee stock based payment expense 11.82 
Staff Welfare 162.21 

Total 5,384.95 

27 Finance cost 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Interest on shortfall of advance tax 2.18 
Interest on Non Convertible Debentures 2,214.73 
Interest on dues payable to micro and small enterprises 3.60 

Interest on Lease Liability 22.11 
Total 2,242.62 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

8,071.69 

8,071.69 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

114.81 
6.20 

o.88 
20.65 

1.39 
5.83 

149.77 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

137.34 
31.20 
(3.84) 

164.70 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

3,528.33 
100.33 

23.15 
32.95 

7.96 
71.74 

3,764.46 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

15.09 
1,646.13 

0.07 
11.86 

1,673.15 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer Note 4(a)) 325.10 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer Note 5) 134.92 
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer Note 4(b)) 950.60 

Total 1,410.62 

29 0th erexPenses 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rent (refer Note 5) 29.76 
Information Technology Support Charges 446.74 
Travelling and Conveyance 98.19 
Outsourcing cost 917.56 
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Fees 792.94 
Power 28.27 
Communication expenses 37.38 
Repairs and Maintenance- others 57-78 
Insurance Expenses 14.22 
Recruitment Expenses 74.81 
Security Charges 17.78 
Rates and Taxes 35.18 
Allowances for Expected Credit loss (refer Note 32) 6.54 
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities (Refer 75.00 
Note 2 below) 
Audit Fee (refer note I below) 29.79 
Miscellaneous F.xnenses 177.55 

Total 2,839.49 

tail Note 1: De s of payment to auditors 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Payment to Auditor 
As auditor: 
Statutory Audit fees 19.90 
Tax audit fees 1.00 
Limited review 3.00 
Certificates 5.80 
Out of Pocket expenses 0.09 

Total 29.79 

Note 2: Corporate social responsibility expenditure 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 43-43 
Amount of expenditure incurred 75.00 
Amount of shortfall/(excess) for the year (31.57) 
Amount of cumulative shortfall/(excess) at the end of the year (31.57) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

244.98 
104.69 
532.33 

882.00 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

24.80 
206.56 

31.69 
424-53 
492.54 

15.06 
20.87 
41.05 
5.46 

13.53 
11.40 

37.08 
13.42 
47.05 

10-47 
9.76 

1,405.27 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

9.89 
0.58 
-
-
-

10.47 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

47.05 
47.05 

-
-

The Company has incurred Rs. 75 Lakhs during the year towards donation to various charity foundations for the purpose of 
Education, health and treatment of girl children, care for special children, relief to poverty etc. There is no shortfall in the spending 
CSR expenses as at end of the current year and previous year. 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

30 Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the basis of information available with the Group: 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as al year end 144.34 
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.35 
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 542.20 
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 
appointed day during the year 

-

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 

3.25 

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond -
the appointed day during the year 
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 3,67 
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 0.07 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

30,40 
0.07 

0.07 

Note: The above information regarding dues payable to Micro and Small enterprises is compiled by management to the extent the information is available with the Group regarding the status 
of suppliers as Micro and Small Enterprises. 
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year e nded March 31, 2023 
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31 Fair Value Measu rement 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Fair valu e Fair value At amortised Fair value Fair value 
through profit through other cost through profit through other 

and loss (FVPL) comprehensive and loss (FVPL) comprehensive 
income (FVOCI) income (FVOCI) 

Financial Assets 
Investments 630.80 1,057.24 
Trade receivables 3,269.18 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,215.53 
Other balances with bank 324.39 
Security Deposits 98.81 
Non Current Bank deposits and interest thereon 356.63 
Other financial assets 4,52 
Total 6'>0.80 - 8,269.06 t 057,24 -
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 13,479.01 
Lease liabilities 244.16 
Trade Payables 675.09 
Other Financial Liabilities 2Q6.28 
Total - - 14,694.54 -

As at April 1, 2021 

At amortised Fair value Fair value At 
cost through profit through other amortised 

and loss (FVPL) comprehensive cost 
income {FVOCI) 

2,535.47 -
2,365.14 - 0.10 

5,442.57 
187.59 
649.43 

11;.1.)0 

11,'>'>l.'>O 0.10 

18,034.25 
159.43 
401.25 - 0.12 
816.42 0.10 

1n •nl,'>« 0,42 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Ox-ymoron Advisors Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

(I) Fair value hierarchy 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values 
are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indicat ion about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the 
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows below the table. 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair Levell Level 2 Lcvel3 Total 
value - recurring fair value measurements 
At March 31, 2023 
Financial assets 
Financial Investments at fVPL 
Listed eauitv investments 6"<0.80 6io.8o 
Total financial assets 6::10.80 - 6::10.80 
Financial liabilities - -

At March 31, 2022 
Financial assets 
Financial Investments at FVPL 
Listed eauitv investments l,0,7.24 l,Oi:.7,24 
Total financial assets 1,057.24 - 1,057.24 
Financial liabilities - - -
At April 1, 2021 
Financial assets 
Financial Investments at FVPL 
Listed eouilv investments - -
Total financial assets - -
Financial liabilities - - -

Assets and liabilities which are measured at Level 1 Level 2 Lcvel3 Total 
amortised cost for which fair values are 
disclosed 

At March 31, 2023 
Financial assets 
Security Deposits - 98.81 98.81 
Non Current Bank deoosits - is6.fr, "<56.6"< 
Total financial assets - A~~.44 A~~.44 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowine.s - 1',470.0l 13,479.01 
Total financial liabilities 1~,47Q.Ol }'>-A"T00 Ql 

Al March 31, 2022 
Financial assets 
Security Deposits 187.59 187.59 
Kon Current Bank denosits 64Q,41 64Q.4"< 
Total financial assets 8:i7.02 8::17.02 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowin"s - 18,o~.2s 18,0"<4.25 
Total financial liabilities 18,0-.4.25 18,0::14.25 

At April 1, 2021 
Financial assets - -
Total financial assets - -
Financial liabilities - -
Total financial liabilities -



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
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1ltc Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value o f financial instruments by valuation technique: 
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivat ives and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used 
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1. 

Level 2:The fa ir value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable 
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 

(ii) Commentary: 
(a) The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances and other current financial assets and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to 
their short-term nature. The fair value of non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabilities also approximates its carrying value. 
(b) The fair values for securi ty deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of 
unobservable inputs including counterpa rty credit risk. 
(c) The non-current borrowings arc classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk. 
(d) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair va lue, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 

32 Financial Risk Managem ent 
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk a nd liquidity risk. The Group"s risk ma nagement assessment and policies and processes a re established to identify and 
analy,e the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and complia nce with the same. Risk assessment and manage ment policies and processes are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables. 

(i) Risk management 
Credit risk is managed on Company basis. For banks and financia l inst itutions, only independently ra ted parties with good ratings are accepted. 
The Group assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance 
,vith limits set by the board. 

(ii) Impairment offinancial assets 
The Group primarily has trade receivables for sale of service that are subject to the expected credit loss model. While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, the 
identified impairment loss was immaterial. 

Trade receivables 
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. 

The expected loss rates are ba sed on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before the reporting date and the oorresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss 
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. 

Trade receivables are wri tten off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a 
repayment plan with the group, and a fa ilure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 365 days past due. 
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off arc credited against the same line item. 

A. Loss allowance as at March 31, 2023 and March 3 1, 2022 was d etermined as follows for both trade receivables and contract assets unde r the simplified approach : 

As at March 31, 20 23 

Expected Credit loss 
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 
impairment} 

Unbilled 

1.077-~8 
0.21% 

2.22 

1,075.16 

Not Due 

o .. 

984.87 

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date 
Less Than 6 16 Months - 1 
Months Year 

1·2 Year 

.00% 100.00% 

1,186.15 23.00 

2 -3Year 

2. 

100.00% 

More than 3 
Year 

100.00% 

Total 

3,269.18 
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OutstandinR for the followinR oeriods from the due date 
As at March 31, 2022 Unbilled Not Due LessThan6 6Months- 1 1-2Year 2-3Year 

Months Year 

Gross Carrv;n• Amount of Trade Receivable ~68.oo L70~.oo 466.dS 10.90 11.8~ 
Exnected Loss Rate 0.21% 0.d2% 1.16% 21.4S% 100.00% 100.00% 
Exnected Credit loss 0.7.S 7.08 S.1Q 2.S6 1t.8s 
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 

367,25 1,698.82 461.o6 8.35 imnairment) 

(i} Reconciliation of loss allowance provision of trade receivables 

Particulars Amount 
Loss allowance on April 1 2021 
Loss allowances of merged subsidiary as on appointed date 14.21 
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 13,42 
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 
Unused amount reversed 
Loss allowance on March~• 2022 27.63 
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 6.54 
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 
Unused amount reversed 
Loss allowance on March '.:tl 202'.:t '"1.17 

(b) Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed 
credit facili ties to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. 
(i) Financing arrangements 
The Group does not have any undrawn borrowing facility at the end of reporting period. 

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities 
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturit ies of significant financial liabil ities: 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 6-12months Between 1 - 2 Between 2-5 
Overs years Total six months vears years 

At March 31, 2023 
Borrowings 1203.38 1,944.08 4430.67 11,076.78 - 18,654.91 
Lease liabilities 68.52 68.52 103.28 28.80 - 269.12 
Trade Payables 675.09 675.09 
Other Financial liabilities 288.18 8.10 206.28 
Total 2,2~!..17 2 020.70 4,"''>'l,Q!. ll,10!..!.8 10,80"',40 
At March 31, 2022 
Borrowings 5,730.22 1,039.75 3,147.46 15,507,45 25,424.88 
Lease liabilities 79.46 25.32 50.65 16.88 172.31 
Trade Payables 401.25 401.25 
Other Financial liabilities 8.l2,17 4.os 8>6.42 
Total ,,04~.~o l 06Q.12 3,1Q8.11 15,524 .33 - 26 8'>A.86 
At April 1, 2021 
Trade Payables 0 . 12 0. 12 

Other Financial liabilities 0.10 0.10 
Total 0 .42 0.42 

Morethan3 
Year 

100.00% 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

Total 

2.s6~.10 

27.61 

2,535.47 
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(c) Market Risk 

a) Foreign exchange risk 

i)-Foreign currency risk exposure 
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has transactions with foreign parties and is 
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency sales, purchases, primarily with respect to EUR, USD, GBP, AED, CAD. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and 
recognised assets and liabilit ies denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency (INR) at the year end. 

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the period are expressed in INR, is given in the table below. The amounts represent only the fina ncial assets and liabilities that are denominated in 
currencies other than the funct ional currency of the Group. 
The foreign currency outstanding balances that have not been hedged by any derivative instrumen t or otherwise are as follows: 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

Particulars Foreign Foreign Amount Foreign Amount Foreign Amount 
Currency Currency (In Rupees Currency (In Rupees lakhs) Currency (In Rupees 

Denomination Amount lakhs) Amount Amount lakhs) 
(inlakhs) (in lakhs) (inlakhs) 

~ 
Trade Receivables USD 20.40 1,676.90 15.74 1,193.57 

EUR 0.22 19.41 0.19 16.15 
GBP 0.12 12.59 0.21 20.88 
AED 0.01 0.16 1.45 29.99 

Liabilities CB> 
Trade Payables USD 0 .67 55.01 0.14 10.55 

EUR 0.02 1.59 0.01 0.73 . 
GBP 0.02 1.53 
CAD 0.05 2.80 . 

Net Exposure to fore ign risk [A-BJ 
USD 19.73 1,621.88 15.61 1,183.02 . 
EUR 0.20 17.82 0.18 15.42 . 
GBP 0.11 11.06 0.21 20.88 . 
AED 0.01 0.16 1.45 29.99 
CAD (o.os) (2.80) . 

(ii) Sensitivity 
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and the impact on other components of equity arises from 
foreign forward exchange contracts and foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges. 

Impact on profit after tax (Amount) Impact on other components of equity 
(Amount) 

March 31, March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 March 31, March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 
2023 2023 

USO sensitivity 

INR/USD - increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1%) 11.93 8.70 11.93 8.70 
INR/USD decrease bv 1% (11 March 2022 1%1 (u.as) (8.70) (u.no1 (8.70) 

EUR sen sitivity 

INR/EUR - increase by 1% (3 1 March 2022 - 1%) 0.13 0.11 0.13 0.11 
INR/EUR decrease bv 1% (11 March 2022 1%) ro.,sl (0.11) (0.1;\ /o.ul 

GBP sen sitivity 

!NR/GBP - increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1%) 0.08 0.15 0.08 0.15 
INR/GBP - decrease bv 1% ht March 2022 1%) ro.081 ro.1s) 10.08) ro.is) 

' 
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b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
The Group does not have any borrowings having variable interest rate, hence there is no interest rate risk due to rate variation. 

c) Price risk 
(a) Exposure 
The Group's exposure to equi ty securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit or loss (see note 9). 

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance \'lllth the limits set by the Group. 
The majority of the Group's equity investments are publicly traded. 

(b) Sensitivity 
The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the index on the group's equity and profit for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased by 5% or 
decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Group's equity instruments moved in line with the index. 

Impact on profit after tax (Amount) 

March 31, March 31, 2022 
2023 

Increase by 5% (31 March 2022 -5%) 31.54 52.86 

decrease by 5% (31 March 2022 - 5%) (31.54) (52.86) 

Profit for the period would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss. 

c) Hedging Activity 

April 1, 2021 

The Group does not have any derivative contracts and hence all the foreign currency receivable and payable are exposed to foreign currency fluctuation. 

33 Capital Risk Management 

Risk managem ent 
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to: 
• safeguard their abi1ity to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 
• Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt, the Group monitors capital on 
the basis of the following gearing ratio: 
net debt (total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents) and liquid investments 

Net Debt equity ratio As on March As on March As on April 1, 

Net debt 
;>1, 202"l ::Jl, 2022 2021 

Total equity 
8816.84 14.771.10 (0.10) 

Net debt to total eouitv ratio 
~.1gg,18 1,800.68 (0 .02) 

2.77 8.20 O,'>'> 
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34 Related party disclosures 

a) Key management personnel 
Sourav Mukherjee - Director 
Yuvraj Gharat - Director 

b) Key management personnel compensation 

1. Sourav Mukherjee · Director 
Particulars 
Transactions during year 
Remuneration # 

Balances as at year end 
Remuneration Payable 

2. Yuvraj Gharat - Director 
Particulars 
Transactions during year 
Remuneration # 

Balances as at year end 
Remuneration Payable 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 202 2 

357.79 816.85 

195.02 236.36 

March 3 1, 2023 March 31, 2022 

33.50 51.44 

# The liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the Key Management Personnel is 
not ascertained separately and, therefore, not included in Key management personnel compensation. 

35 Segment Disclosure 

The Group is principally engaged in a single business segment viz., providing research and intelligence solutions, investment and business research, market, competitive 
and social media intelligence and communication services to meet the tactical business objectives to its customers. Operating segments are reported in a manner 
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and 
position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. 

b. Geographic Information 
Segment Revenue: Revenues are attributable to individual geography based upon the location of the customers. 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March :l1, 202:l March :l1, 2022 

India 4,815.20 2,974.66 
Other countries 8,:;17.16 .S,OQ7.m 

1:1.:n2.36 8,071.69 

Se21ttent Assets an Lla ties d . bill. 
Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31, As on April 

2023 2022 1,2021 

Segment Assets 
India 17,734.53 22,180.68 0.10 

Other countries 1,785.87 1,350.29 
19,520.40 23,530.97 0.10 

Segment liability 
India 16,259.76 21,714.47 0.42 
Other countries 6 1.46 1s.s2 

16,321.22 21,730.29 0.42 

1. Revenue within India include rendering of services in India to customers located within India; and revenues outside India include rendering of services outside India to 
customers located outside India. 

2. Segment Assets includes all assets including deferred Tax assets and right of use assets 
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36 Revenue from Contract with Customer 

a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group derives revenue from the sale of services and following table shows disaggregation by geographic market: 

Particulars 

Research and related services 
- India 
- Outside India 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

4,815.20 
8,517.16 

13,332 -36 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

2,974.66 
5,097.03 

8,071_69 

- Revenue from top five customers are Rs. 7,337.26 Lakhs (March 31,2023) and Rs. 4,981.08 Lakhs (March 31,2022) which represents 55.03 % and 61.71 % of 
the total sales in the respective year of the Company. 

b) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price 

Particulars 

Contract price 
Less: Adjustments lo contract price 

c) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers 

Particulars 

Current Contract Liabilities related lo revenue 
Trade Receivables (including unbilled) 

d) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

13,332.36 

13,332-36 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

12-40 
3,269.18 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

8,071.69 

8,021.62 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

184.46 
2,535-47 

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried forward contract liabilities. 

Particulars 

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year 

e) Unsatisfied performance obligations 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

176.82 

176.82 

The contracts are for periods of one year or less and are billed as per terms of the contract. As permitted under Ind AS l15, the transaction price allocated to 
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. 
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37 Taxation 

(a) Income ta.'< expense 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Current tax on Profit for the year 
Tax impact of earlier years 
Total current tax expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax (recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss) 
Deferred tax (recognised in Other comprehensive income) 
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 

Income tax expense 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India tax rate 

Particulars 

Profit from operations before income tax expense 

Statutory Income Tax Rate 
Tax on Book profits 

Tax effect of amounts which arc not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 
Corporate social responsibility expenses disallowed in tax 
Special bonus not considered as a deduction for Computation of Income under Income Tax Act. 
Effect on income taxable under different head at different tax rate 
Tax impact of earlier years not forming part of tax computation 
Others 
Total 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

702.76 430.13 
0.17 (21.20) 

702.92 408.93 

(206.16) (122.07) 
(4.11) (1.36) 

(210.27) (123-43) 

492.65 285.50 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,889.69 661.28 

25.17'!6 25.17'!6 
475.60 166-43 

18.88 11.84 
114.89 

(4.87) 10.79 
0 .17 (21.20) 
2.88 2.75 

492.65 285.50 
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c) Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities 
The balance comprises tempora'1' differences attributable to: 

Particu lars As at March ,u 202'.l As at March '.l l 2022 
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

Prooertv. Plant and EQuioment 68.70 •s.79 
lntane,ible assets l.170,Q6 1,603.99 
Allowances for Exoected credit loss 8.60 6.QS 
Unwinding interest on borrowing 127,11 118.46 
Emn!ovee benefit ob!iea1ions 110.81 171.Qd 
Lease Liabilitv !net of Rieht of use assets) 1.QQ 1.61 
Interest in excess of limit paid to non 86.54 86.54 
resident debenture holders 
Others ll.d2 1.12 
Total 288.0, l -'to8,o, '.l22.18 1.?<12.d~ 
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,210.00 l,<120. 27 

" --- ---- - ---- ------ ., --·-, --·----" 
Particulars Property, Lease Liability Others Allowances for Unwinding 

Plant and (net of Right of Expected credit interest on 
Equipment use assets) loss borrowing 

As at Anril 1 2021 - -
Acquired through Business 11.07 ( 10.57 ) (2.74) (3.58) 
Combination on 6 th September 2021 

Charocd/fcreditedl 
- to orofit or loss (s6.86) 2.Qd Co.s8l (1.18] 118.•6 
- to other comorehensive income -
- directlv to eauity 
As at Marcil ·u 2022 r ••.,01 (?.6'.l) ('.l, '.~2] (6,o• 118.<16 
Chareed/(creditedl 
- to nrofit or loss (22.90) s.6• (8.10) (1.65) (11.'"-" 
- to other comnrehensive income 
- directlv to eauitv -
As at Marcil ,u 202:1 (68.70) (i,nn) ( 11.,12) (8.60) 127.11 

As at Anril 1 2021 
Assets Liabilities 

-

Employee benefit Interest in Intangible Total 
obligations excess of limit assets 

paid to non 
resident 

debenture 
holders 

-
(187.84) - 1,737.36 1,543.70 

17.26 (86.<A (111.17) r122.07J 
(1.16) (1.16 

(171.na) (86.~d) 1,601.00 1.420,27 

6S.2d (211.01) (206.16) 
(4.11) (4.11) 

-
(110.811 (86,54) 1,370.06 1,210.00 
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38 Employee Benefits 

A) Defined Benefit Plans 
Post employment obligations: 
Gratuity- Defined benefit plan 
The Group provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible 
for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days 
salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Group makes contributions to recognised funds in India. This defined 
benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk and market (investment) risk. 

B) Balance sheet amounts - gratuity 
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligations over the year arc as follows: 

Particulars Marche<t 202'> Marche<t 2022 

I Changes in defined bene fit obligations 
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 219.94 218.69 
Interest cost 11.33 9.29 
Current service cost 35.56 34.68 
Benefit Paid from the fund (53.40) (53.27) 
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations 

Due to change in financial assumptions (11.64) (5-07) 
Due to change in demographic assumption 
Due to experience adjustments 31.00 15.62 

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 232.79 219.94 

ii Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets 
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 89.97 106.60 
Interest Income 4.64 4.53 
Contributions by employer 102.98 31.08 
Benefit Paid from the Fund (53.41) (53.27) 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan assets 3.03 1.04 
Fair value of plan assets at the end o f the year 147.21 89.97 

iii Net employee benefit expenses for the year 
Current service. Cost 35.56 34.68 
Net interest cost 6.69 4.76 
Net employee benefit expenses for the year# 42.25 39.44 

Other Comprehensive btcome for the current year 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the year 19.37 10.56 
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (3.03) (1.04) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the current year 11 16.34 9 .52 

iv Category of fair value of plan asset 
Policy of insurance 147.21 89.97 

V The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as 
follows: 
Present value of funded obligations 232.79 219.94 
Fair value of plan assets 147.21 89.97 
Net Liability/(Asset) 85.58 129.97 
Unfunded plans 
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 85.58 129.9 7 
Current 85.58 129.97 
Non Current 
# Comparative amount represents annual amount for the penod Apnl 11 2021 to March 31, 2022 

Particulars March 'll 202·• March '>I 2022 
vi The significant acruarial assumptions were as follows: 

Rate of Discounting 7.20% 5.15% 
Rate of Salary Increase 9.00% p.a. 9.00% 
Rate of Employee Turnover 33.00% p.a. for all service 33.00% p.a. for all service 

groups. groups. 

vii Sensitivity Analysis 
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to change in assumptions 

Discount rate Sensitivity 
Increase by 1 % (5.17) (5.30) 
Decrease by 1% 5.49 5.65 

Salary growth rate Sensitivity 
Increase by 1% 5.29 5.37 
Decrease by 1 % (5.10) (s.15) 

Employee Turnover rate Sensitivity 
Increase by 1% (1.53) (1.96) 
Decrease by 1 % 1.~9 2.05 



Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited 
(formerly known as NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited) 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Stateme nts for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in !NR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

viii Risk Exposure 
Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most si~nificant of which are detailed below: 
Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Ra te will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the 
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset. 

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the 
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability. 

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end 
of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it is funded 
through insurance managed funds. 

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk. 

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although 
probability of this is very Jess as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines. 

C) In view of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others v/ s. The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal' and 
outcome of the review petition filed by Surya Roshni Ltd against the SC judgement, the Company deducted provident fund on basic wages as defined in Employees' 
Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 w.e.f. April 1, 2018. The Company has made provision aggregating to Rs. 57.14 Lakhs for the cases where 
provident fund was not deducted basis the above judgement. 

D) Other long Tenn Employee Benefits 
Compensated absences: 
The leave obligations cover the company's liability for leave. The amount of the provision of Rs. 151.53 lakhs (as at March 31, 2022: Rs. 137.70 lakhs) is presented as 
current, since the company does not have an unconditional right lo defer settlement for any of these obligations. The Company's liability is actuarially determined 
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an Independent actuary at the end of each year. 

E) Defined Contribution plan 
The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary and 
employee state insurance fund as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the 
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no fu rther contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards 
defined contribution plan is Rs. 148.23 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 100.33 Lakhs). 
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39 Employee Stock option plan 

As at March 31, 2022, the Group has the following stock option plans for employees. 
2004 Employee stock option plan (hereinafter referred as "Plan A") and 2015 Employee stock option plan (hereinafter 
referred as "Plan B") 
The plans entitles senior employees to purchase shares in the Company at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with vesting 
conditions; all exercised options shall be settled by issue of equity shares of the Company. As per the plan, holders of vested options arc entitled to 
purchase one equity share for every option at an exercise price of INR 10. 

(a) Below is the summary of options granted under the plan: 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

Particulars 
PlanA 
Opening balance 2,500 890,702 890,702 
Granted during the year - 2,500 -
Exercised during the year (10,780) 
Expired during the year - - -
Forfeited during the year - (879,922) 
Closing Balance 2,500 2,500 890 702 
Vested and exercisable 550 - 890,702 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

Particulars 
PlanB 
Opening balance 18,000 42,919 42,919 
Granted during the year 18, 000 -
Exercised during the year - (24,919) 
Expired during the year - -
Forfeited during the year (3,000) (18,000) -
Closing Balance 15 000 18000 42,919 
Vested and exercisable ,t.«OO - 42,919 

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2023 - Rs. 10. 

(b) Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices: 

Plan Grant date Expiry date Accounting Exercise Share options Share options as Share options 
Method price as at March 31, at March 31, as at April 1, 

2023 2022 2021 

A 01-Nov-2021 14 years from the Fair Value 10 2,500 2,500 890,702 
date of option's 
vesting 

B 01-Nov-2021 14 years from the Fair Value 10 15,000 18,000 42,919 
date of option's 
vesting 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end 14 years 14 years 14 years 
of period 
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(c ) Measurement of fair values 
The estimated grant-date fair value of stock options granted under plan A is Rs. 163.67 and under plan B is Rs. 163.67 for the grants made on 
November 21, 2021. The fair value at grant date is independently determined using the Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise 
price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the 
risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. 

The fair value of the options granted during the period ended March 31, 2022 and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values 
of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as follows: 

Vesting in 
November 1, November 1, November 
2022 2023 1 2024 

Share price at grant date 163.67 163.67 163.67 
Exercise price 10 10 10 
Expected volatility 35% 35% 34% 
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0% 
Expected tenure 8.01 9.01 10.01 
Risk-free interest rate (based on2overnment bonds) 7% 7% 7% 

(d) Expense arising from share-based payment transactions 
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows: 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Employee stock option plan expenses 11.82 7.96 

(e) Relinquishment of the ESOPs: 
Before the business combination of NIPL with the Company, NIPL has granted certain Employee Stock option plans (ESOP) to its senior employees. While 
determining the amount of Goodwill on Business combination, the Company has considered liability towards the ESOP. However, subsequent to business 
combinations, some of these ESOPs were exercised by employees and some are forfeited. Upon relinquishment of these ESOPs, the fair value thereof 
aggregating to Rs. 1,428.44 lakhs is credited to other equity in the consolidated financial statements. 
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40 Business Combinations 

Summary of Acquisition 
Pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated August 21, 2021 between the Company, the shareholder holding 80.92% paid up share capital of Netscribes India 
Private Limited (NIPL) and the promoter, the Company has acquired 10,267,912 shares of Rs 10 each of NIPL for a total consideration of Rs. 17,000.58 lakhs at a price of 
Rs. 165.57 per share. The share price of Rs 165.57 was computed by the Independent valuer based on the discounted eashflow method. The effective date of the business 
combination is the date on which consideration was discharged i.e. September 6, 2021. This acquisition will enable Group lo bring synergies and achieve economics of 
scale. 

(a) Details of purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as foUows: 

each 

Th eassetsan dli bill. . d a ties recoo1use ul fth to e acows1tion are as asa res ~ u 0 ows: 

Property, Plant and F.quipment and computer software 
Non-current investments 
Brand 
Customer relationships 
Other non-current assets 
Trade receivables 
Cash and bank balances 
Other current assets 
Total Assets acquired (A) 

Trade payables 
Deferred Tax liability 
Liability towards ESOPs 
Other current liabilities 
Short-term provisions 
Total Liabilities assumed (8) 

Net Identifiable assets acauired (A·B) 

(b) Calculation of Goodwill 

Net Identifiable assets acquired 
Consideration paid 
Less: Net identifiable assets aoouired 
Goodwill 

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high profitability of the acquired business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes. 

(c) Purchase consideration- cash outflow 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net cash acquired 
Cash consideration . 17,000.58 
Less: Balance acquired 

Cash . (4,077,41) 
Net outflow of cash- Investing activity . 12,92~.17 

Acquisition related costs 
Acquisition related costs of Rs 43.56 lakhs that were not directly attributable to the issue of shares are included in other expenses in profit or loss 
and in operating cash flows in the statement of cash flows. 

Merger of Net.scribes (India) Private Limited ('NIPL') with the Company 

Amount 
(Fair value) 

1,013.09 
89.39 

1,282.50 
5,538.90 
3,022.90 
1,848 .03 
4,07741 
1,305.41 

18,177.65 

222.23 

1,554.02 
1,428.44 

795.16 
s86.97 

4,586.82 

13,590.83 

Arnowit 

17,000.58 
11,SQ0.81 
3,409.75 

During the Financial year 2021-22, the application fo r the scheme of merger by absorption (the "Scheme") of Netscribes (India) Private Limited ('NIPL') with the 
Company and their respective shareholders and creditors was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench ("NCLT, Mumbai") with appointed date as 
September 6, 2021 (the 'appointed date'). The Scheme was approved by the NCLT, Mumbai on December 2, 2022, which became effective on December 31, 2022 upon its 
filing with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Pursuant to which, Netscribes (India) Private Limited has been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed 
date of September 6, 2021. The accounting treatment pursuant to the Scheme has been given effect to in the Standalone Financial Statements from the appointed date in 
accordance with the 'Pooling of Interests' method laid down under Accounting Standard (AS) 14 'Accounting for Amalgamations' as prescribed in the Scheme. 10,103 
equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid has been issued to the remaining 19.08% shareholders of NIPL as part of the purchase consideration amounting to Rs. 1.01 lakhs in 
the ratio of 3.95 :1000 shares. 

Further, since the Company has acquired control in NIPL on Septembe r 6, 2021 which is also the appointed date of merger as per the Scheme, there is no Non 
Controlling Interest arising. 

Acquisition of retained earning 
Rs. 28 .82 represents, retained earnings of all the subsidiaries other than NIPL after giving impact of Ind AS adjustments on the transition da te and further reduced by 
the impairment of Goodwill of Rs. 49.14 lakhs generated on consolidation of one of the subsidiary. 
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41 First TimeAdo ptionoflnd AS 

Transition to Ind AS 
These are the Group's first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 
April 1, 2022, with a transition date of April 1, 2021. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the first 
financial statements the Group has prepared under Ind AS. For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2022, the 
Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with the previously applicable lndfan GAAP (hereinafter referred to as 
"IGAAP"). 

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. 
Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that a rc issued and effective for the first Ind AS financial 
statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Group has prepared 
financial statements which comply with Ind AS for year ended March 31, 2023, together with the comparative information as at 
and for the year ended March 31, 2022. The Group's opening Ind AS Balance Sheet has been prepared as at April 1, 2021, the date 
of transition to Ind AS. 

In preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Group has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial slalemenls 
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act. An explanation of how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the 
Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes. 

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed 
In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Group has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind 
AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and IGAAP have been recognised directly in retained earnings. This note 
explains the adjustments made by the Group in restating its IGAAP financial statements, including the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 
2021 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

A. t lnd AS optional exemptions 
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions applied in the transition from previous IGAAP to Ind AS. 

A. 1. t. Deemed cost 
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and 
Intangible assets as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition lo Ind AS, measured as per the IGAAP and 
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities, if any. 
Accordingly, the Group has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their IGAAP 
carrying value. 

A.1.2 Share based paymen t transactions 
Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter not to apply Ind AS 102 "Share based payment" to equity instruments that vested before 
the date of transition to Ind AS and not to apply Ind AS102 to liabilities arising from the share based payment transactions that 
were settled before the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly the Group has elected to apply this Ind AS 102 to the equity 
instruments option that are unvested as at transition date and recognised liabilities only for such unvested options in these 
financial statements. 

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions 

The Group has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS which are mandatorily required 
under Ind AS 101: 

A.2.1 Estimates 
On assessment of estimates made under the Previous GAAP consolidated financial statements, the Group has concluded that 
there is no necessity to revise such estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. 
Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2021 arc consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with IGAAP. The 
Group made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under 
IGAAP: 

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model; 
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost. 

A.2.2 Non-contro lling interests 
Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of 
the parent and to the non-controlling interests. This requirement needs to be followed even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. Ind AS 101 requires the above requirement to be followed prospectively from the date of 
transition. Consequently, the group has applied the above requirement prospectively. 

A.2.3 Class ificatio n and measurement of financial assets 
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (debt instruments) on the basis of the 
facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Consequently, the group has applied the above assessment 
for the classification of financial assets lo be measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. 

B: Reconciliations between IGAAP and Ind AS 
The following reconciliations provide the explanation and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from 
Previous GAAP lo Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101"First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards". 
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Reconciliation of total equity 

Particulars Note reference 

Tota l Equity as per Indian GAAP 
Adjustments on transition to Ind AS: 
Effect of Leases accounting as per IND AS 116 C(ii),C(iii) 
Effect of recognising fi nancial liabilities al amm1ised cost C (v) 
Effect of Fair value of Equity Instmments C(v) 
Others 
Tax on Above Adjustments C (vii) 
Impact of applying the acquisition method of accounting for business C(viii) 
combination under Ind AS 103 

Other Comnrehensive Income (Net of Tax) C(i) 
Total Eouity as ner Ind AS 

T R cconc1 rnhon o to ta comorc 1cnsn•e 111con1c 
Particulars Note reference 

Net Profit/ (loss) as per Indian GAAP 
Merger Impact on Profit 
Adjustn1cnts on transitio n to lnd AS: 
Effect of Leases accounting as per Ind AS 116 C(ii) 
Effect of recognising finan cial liabilities a t amortised cost C(\-) 
Effect of Fair rnlue of Equity Ins truments C(,·) 
Impact of applying the acquisition method of accounting for business C (,iii) 
combination under Ind AS 103 

Others 
Tax on Abo,·e Adjustments C(vi i) 
Net Profit as per Incl AS 
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) C(iv) 
Remeasurements of defin ed benefit plan obligations (net of tax) C(i) 
Total ComnrehensiYe Income as ner Incl AS 

Recon ciliation of s tate m ent o f cash flows for the year ended March 'l t 2022: 
Particulars 

Cash & Cash Eouivalcnt at the vcar e nd as per Indian GAAP 
Net cash flows from operating activities 

Net cas h flows from im·esting actidties 

Net cash flows from financing acthities 

Net increase/(dccrcasc) in ca.sh and cas h equivalents 
Cash and cash cuuivalcnts as at AoriJ 01 2021 

Cash and cash ccmh·alcnts as at March :31, 2 022 as per Ind AS 

C: Notes to first-time ado ptio n: 

i : Rc111casurcn1ents o fpost-ernploymc nt hcncfit obligations 

A,nount as per 
Previous GAAP 

1,174.16 

(16,3.54.63) 

17,545.51 

2,36.5.04 
0 .10 

2,365 .14 

Asat 
March 3 1, 

2022 

1,264.18 

(18 . .58) 
1,275.34 

23.89 
( 1.67) 

(423.97) 
(314-47) 

(4.04) 
t 800.68 

For the year 
ended March 

3 1, 2022 

(3,0 47.09) 
3,181.47 

6 .72 
1,275.34 

2:J.89 
(839.7§) 

( 1.5.99) 
(210.13) 

;374.4.: 

(4.04) 
;l70.38 

Effect of 
tra nsition 
to Ind AS 

As at April 1, 
2021 

(o.;32) 

. 

(0.:12) 

Atnount as 
per 
Ind AS 

1,174.16 

(16,354.63) 

17,545.51 

2,365.04 
0.10 

2,;J65.14 

Under lnd AS, remcasurcmcnts i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net 
interest ex[)ense on the net defined benefit liabili ty are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of Statement of Profit 
and Loss. Under the IGAAP, these remeasurements were form ing part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. As a result 
of this change, the profit before tax for the year ended March 3 1, 2022 increased by Rs 4.04 lakhs (net of tax). There is no impact 
o n the total equity as a t March 31, 2022. 

ii: Recognition of right of use assets and lease liabi1ity 
Under Ind AS 116, a lessee has an option to apply Ind AS 116 with full retrospective approaches wherein the Right of use assets 
and lease liability arc measured as if Ind AS 116 has been applied since the s ta11 of the lease with the restatem·ent of comparati,·e 
figures presented in the financial statements. On the transition date the difference between lease liability and right of use assets is 
to be adjusted against the equity. Consequently, the lease liability is accounted as a financial liabil ity under Ind AS 109, "Financial 
instruments" and right of use asset is amortized o,·er its useful li fe. 
Under IGAAP, the lessee recognised lease rentals under an Operat ing lease as an ex[)ense in the statement of profit or loss as and 
when incurred. 
As a result of this change the profit for the year ended March 31, 20 22 increased by Rs. 6.72 l.akhs and total equity as at March 31, 
2022 decreased by Rs 18.58 lakhs. 

iii: Fa ir "aluation of Security deposits 
Security deposits given for the leased nssets arc recognized at cany ing value under the previous GAAP ,,•hcreas as per Ind AS 
lease de[)osits a re recognised at fai r value as at the date of inception. Accordingly the group has fair valued these security deposi ts 
under Ind AS. 

The difference bct"·een the transaction value and the fair ,·alue has been recognised as Right-of-use assets. Interest on lease 
deposits is recognised over the period of the lease based on the incremental rate of borrowing of the lessee ns the interest rntes 
implicit in the leases arc not easily ::wailable and the Right-of-use assets are to be amortised on a straight line basis. 
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iv: Other comprehensive income 
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a 
standard requires or permits otheiwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as 'other comprehensive income' includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of 
other comprehensive income did not exist under IGAAP. 

v: Financial Instruments 
(a) In accordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments", investments in quoted equity instruments are recognised at fair value 
through the statement of profit and loss at each reporting period. Consequently, the quoted equity investment recognised at lower 
of cost or fair value under the Previous GAAP has been restated to fair value. Pursuant to which the gain/ loss (net) has been 
recognised in profit and loss account as adjustment due to adoption of Ind AS. 

(h) In accordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments", premium payable on redemption, discount on issue, transaction costs 
on issue of debentures are required to be considered as effective finance costs and recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
using the effective interest rate. Consequently, transaction costs recognised directly in statement of profit and loss or amortised 
using a different approach under the Previous GAAP has been reversed and are now recognised through the statement of profit 
and loss using the effective interest rate. 

vi: Share based payment transactions 
Ind AS IOI permits a first time adopter to apply Ind AS 102 to the equity instruments option that are unvested as at transition 
date and re<.-ognised liabilities only for such unvested options. Pursuant to which the Group has determined their obligation 
towards Employee stock options. 

vii: Deferred Tax o n Ind AS adjustments 
In accordance with Ind AS 12, "Income Taxes", the Group on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on temporary 
differences, i.e. based on balance sheet approach as compared to the earlier approach of recognising deferred taxes on timing 
differences , i.e. profit and loss approach. The tax impacts as above primarily represent deferred tax consequences arising out of 
Ind AS re-measurement changes. 

viii: Adjustments on account of Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations" 
Pursuant to business combination and requirement of Ind AS 103, Brand and Customer relationships are identified as Intangible 
assets and immovable property has been fair valued . These immovable property is subject to depreciation and intangibles are 
subject to amortisation. The amortisation and depreciation on these assets are charged to the statement of Profit and loss 
following Ind AS requirements. 
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42 Interest in other entities 

Subsidiarie s 
The Group's subsidiaries as a t March 31, 2022 are set out below. They have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion 
of owner,hip interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business. 

Name of entity Place of Ownership interest held by Principal activities 
business/ the Group 
country of March 31, March 31, 

incorporation 202:l 2022 

Netscribes, Inc. United States 100% 100% 
Market researcn ano puouc op1mon poumg 
and business representative office 

lnrea Research Solutions Private Limited India 100% 100% 
Market research and publtc opm1on pollmg 
and business representative office 

Netscribes Global Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% 100% 
Market research and public opinion polling 
and business representative office 

43 Additional Information required by Schedule III in respect of subsidiaries 

Particulars Net Assets (total asse ts minus Share in profit or ( loss) Share in other Share in total 
to tal liabilities) comprehensive income comprehensive income 

As%of Amount As%of Amount As% of Amount As%of Amowit 
consolidated ne t consolidated consolidated consolidated 
assets profit or other total 

(loss) comprehensiv comprehensiv 
e income e income 

Parent 
l:!h:~'-llbt:ii Data & Insights f rivate: 
Limited 
March 31, 2023 -135% (4,315.63) t45% 2,022.81 100% (12.23) 146% 2,010.58 

March 31, 2022 -352% (6,338.03) 267% 1,000.38 100% (4.04) 269% 996.34 
April 1, 2021 100% (0.32) 

Subsidiaries 
- Indian 
Inrtil R~~earch S~d~tions Privat~ 
1Jmi1!:l! 
March 31, 2023 1% 28.62 0% 0.03 0% 0% 0.03 
Mareh 31, 2022 2% 28.59 o96 (0.08) 0% 0% (0.08) 
April 1, 2021 -910296 28.67 - -

~ Foreign 
Netscribes, Inc, 
March 31, 2023 3% 90.50 1% 9.16 o96 1% 9.16 
March 31, 2022 4% 75.39 2% 8.90 096 2% 8-90 
April 1, 2021 -20425% 64.34 

Ni.,tscribes Glol!;il Ple, Lid, 
March 31, 2023 096 0.00 0% (0.15) 0% 0% (0.15) 
March 31, 2022 0% o.oo o96 0.44 0% 0% 0.44 
April 1, 2021 0% 0.00 

lnter~company e liminations and 
consolidation adjustments 
March 31, 2023 231% 7,395.69 -46% (638.93) 0% (o.oo) -4696 (638.93) 
March 31, 2022 446% 8,034.72 -17096 (635.23) 0% o.oo -172% (635.22) 
April 1, 2021 29527% (93.01) 

Total 
March 31, 2023 10096 3,199.18 10096 1,392.93 100% (12.23) 100% 1,380.70 
March 31, 2022 100% 1,Soo.68 100% 374.42 100% (4.04) 100% 370.38 
Aoril 1 2021 100% (0.32) -
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44 Contingent Liabilities 
The Group does not have any contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2023 

45 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

(a) Basic earnings per share (In Rupees) 

(b) Diluted earnings per share (In Rupees) 

(c)Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share 
Particulars 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic earnings per share 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calcula ting diluted earnings per share 

( d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 
Particulars 

Weighted average number of equity sha res used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share: 

Employee Stock option plans 

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 
diluted earnings per share 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

6,928.97 

6,902.55 

Year ended 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Year ended 

l,862.53 

1,855.39 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

, ,392.93 374.42 

1,392.93 374.42 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

20,103 20,103 

77 77 

20,18o 20,180 
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46 Additional Regulatory Information required by Schedule UI. 

(i) Wtlful defaulter 
None of the entities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(ii) Details of Benami property held 
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the entities in the group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

(iii) Borrowing secured against current assets 
None of the entities in the Group have borrowings from financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the current year and previous year. 

(iv) Disclosure of Relationship with Struck off Companies 
The entities in the Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Acl, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956. 

(v) Compliance with number oflayers of companies 
The group has complied with the number oflayers prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013, read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 
2017. 

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements 
The Company has entered into scheme of arrangement during the year 2021-22 which was approved by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) during the year 
and became effective on December 31, 2022 upon filing with Registrar of Companies. The Company has complied with the Scheme of Arrangement. (refer Note 
40) 

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium 
The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 
that the Intermediary shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like lo or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

(viii) Undisclosed Income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not 
been recorded in the books of account. 

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 
The entities in the Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property 
The entities in the Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment ( including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or 
previous year. 

(xi) Title deeds of immovable properties 
The Group does nol have any immovable property during the year. 

(xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

47 Name Change 

Pursuant to approved Scheme, the Company's name has changed from NS Oxymoron Advisors Private Limited to Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited. The 
Board resolution in this respect was passed on December 19, 2022, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to effectuate the name change as 
per the approved Scheme. Subsequent to the board resolution, the Company filed name change application with Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on December 
24, 2022 for seeking their approval for the name change and the same was approved by the MCA on December 29, 2022. 

In terms of our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP ~}i' .,,,~N/N~omo 

Membership No: 117839 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

JJ~ T ... 
( iLtor 

DIN: 00085678 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 

Yuvraj Gharat 
Director 
DIN: 07189616 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: June 6, 2023 













































 

Netscribes Data & Insights Private Limited, 
Office No. 504, 5th Floor, Lodha Supremus, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India. 

Board: +91 22 4098 7600 Fax: +91 22 4098 7500 Web: www.netscribes.com 
CIN: U74110MH2008PTC182827 

 

Trustee Details: 

Debenture Trustee VISTRA ITCL (INDIA) LIMITED 

Contact details: Mr. Jatin Chonani 

Address: The IL&FS Financial Centre, 7th Floor, 

Plot C-22, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051 

Telephone: +91 022 2659 3150 

Email: itclcomplianceofficer@vistra.com 

 
 

mailto:itclcomplianceofficer@vistra.com

		2023-09-06T19:18:00+0530
	MADHURI BHAGWAN JHURANI




